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FINANCIAL SUMMARY

BT %5 e 22

PROFIT/(LOSS) FOR THE YEAR

FraFl, (EE)

Revenue

Wz

Profit/(Loss) before taxation
Tax expense

BRBEEN,(B8)
HIRF X

Profit/(Loss) for the year

FRmA/ (B1)

Profit/(Loss) attributable to
Equity Shareholders of the
Company

Non-controlling interests

AAmEEBRR
i aH /(BE)

FFERER

ASSETS AND LIABILITIES

EERAERE

Current assets MEBEE
Non-current assets R E E
Current liabilities B AE
Non-current liabilities ERBAE
Net assets EETE
Total equity attributable to AARME S R B
equity Shareholders of the Mgz
Company
Non-controlling interests FEERES
Total equity s
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2016
—E—RE
RMB’000
ARETT

279,173

70,761
(29,310)

41,451

2016
“B-R%¥
RMB’000
ARBTR

196,473
1,217,150

597,494
331,628

484,501

483,913
588

484,501

For the year ended 31 December

BE+-A=+—-BHLEEE

2015 2014 2013 2012
—F-hE _FB-@mE —F-= —2—_F
RMB'000 RMB’'000 RMB’000 RMB’'000
ARET T ARETT AREFT ARET T
389,631 894,339 744,952 614,399
61,820 (147,636) 26,914 26,956
(18,441) (1,389) (11,287) (7,498)
43,379 (149,025) 15,627 19,458
43,691 (148,897) 15,627 19,458
312 (128) - -
43,379 (149,025) 15,627 19,458
As at 31 December
®“+=A=+-—AH

2015 2014 2013 2012
—T-h% —F-QmE —FT-= —T——F
RMB'000 RMB’'000 RMB’000 RMB'000
ARETFT ARETT ARETRT ARETR
219,762 366,576 283,194 382,969
1,243,463 1,230,725 1,301,821 1,156,501
323,657 558,705 477,795 445,652
669,805 632,409 553,180 551,010
469,763 406,187 554,040 542,808
468,923 405,035 554,040 542,808
840 1,152 - -
469,763 406,187 554,040 542,808




CHAIRMAN’S STATEMENT
ESRME

Dear Shareholders,

2017 is an important year for the full implementation of
the “13th Five-Year Plan” and the deepening of supply
side structural reform. The PRC government continues
to push forward the progress of different reforms and
accelerate the shift from old to new growth drivers.
While releasing the benefits from the reforms and
moderately expanding the overall demand, it will also
step up its efforts in structural reform. On the energy
development, with the supply-side structural reform of
the energy sector as a mainstay and with focus on
enhancing supply quality and efficiency, the state
strives to resolve and prevent overcapacity, and
promotes the development and utilisation of clean
energy and makes up for shortcomings in energy
development in order to provide a solid energy support
for economic and social development.

In 2017, the PRC government will actively promote the
development of low-carbon environment according to
the “13th Five-Year Plan”. In particular, the state will
promote the energy revolution, accelerate technological
innovation, and build a clean, low-carbon, safe and
efficient modern energy system. Also, it will improve
the proportion of non-fossil energy and promote the
clean and efficient use of fossil energy such as coal, as
well as strengthening the construction of energy
storage and smart grid and the development of
distributed energy, to implement the energy-saving low-
carbon power dispatch. As a leading clean energy
supplier with natural gas as the main raw materials, the
Group will certainly contribute to and benefit from
accomplishment of the national low-carbon and
environment-friendly development goals.
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CHAIRMAN’S STATEMENT
EERWE

Meanwhile, the Company is also planning for the
development of other clean energy projects, especially
active exploration and feasibility study in distributed
energy, micro power grid, energy storage and other
aspects and active expansion in heating supply
business, to reserve additional projects for the current
and long-term development of the Company, with an
intention to expand the market share in the clean
energy supply market in China. The Company is
currently considering the implementation of preliminary
assessment on possible financing arrangements and
acquisition plans. However, as of the date of this
report, neither the Company nor any of its subsidiaries
has entered into any legally binding arrangement or
contract for the purpose of any of the above possible
acquisition or financing plans.

For the past year, all power plants of the Group
maintained production safety under its respective
sound operation and the production process and
business development of the new projects are actively
improving. The Group has managed to adapt to the
new economic development, and has adopted various
effective measures that successfully decreased the
production cost and optimised the method of power
generation, thus to a certain extent increased the
profitability of the Group. | would like to extend my
heartfelt gratitude to all directors, the management
team and all staff for their dedication, as well as all
shareholders and partners for their tremendous support
to obtain all the above key achievements.

In the future, the Group will be proactive and innovative
with full confidence to achieve outstanding results.

Wei Junyong
Chairman of the Board

Zhejiang Province, China, 24 March 2017
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MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION

AND ANALYSIS
BEE LD

BUSINESS REVIEW

Installed Capacity

The Group is mainly engaged in the construction,
operation and management of natural gas-fired power
plants, and has four wholly-owned gas-fired power
plants in Zhejiang province, namely Zhejiang Amber
De-Neng Natural Gas Power Generation Co., Ltd. (7T
FIAERE R AR B EAR A (“De-Neng Power Plant”),
Hangzhou Amber Blue Sky Natural Gas Power
Generation Co., Ltd. (fIMIRPERXRKXKAREEERA
7)) (“Blue Sky Power Plant”), Amber (Anji) Gas Turbine
Thermal Power Co., Ltd. (BRI (L H) KK AT HR A
Al) (“Anji Power Plant”) and Zhejiang Amber Jing-Xing
Natural Gas Power Generation Co., Ltd. (47 3k¥9 5 &
XARREBEEARAR) (Jing-Xing Power Plant”). As at
31 December 2016, the aggregate installed capacity
and the attributable installed capacity of the above
power plants was approximately 457MW.

Production Volume

The production volume for the year ended 31
December 2016 was 146,251Mwh (2015: 303,020Mwh),
representing a decrease of 51.74% as compared with
last year. The production volume has decreased due to

E A EI) L

KHEE
AEBETBEREUARATARENERER
KERER AEE2EHAEMNMBEALRNTT
BERMMAER - B IR AERERARE
BEBRAR ([EEEMR]) - UMIRAERKA
REFEERARTERER]D - A (EXEH)R
BAREBRAR (LT E®]) &I AR E
AARBEBERAA((REEmR]) - RZT—
NFE+TZA=1T—"H Ll EHAERSER
HERERBE LN BASTMW -

HTE
HE_Z-—RFT-A=+—HIEFENESE
£ /42146,251Mwh (ZZ—H% : 303,020Mwh) -

b EFEES1.74% - BES R A TIBRRMNT
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MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION

AND ANALYSIS

BB & o B AT

the continuous trial implementation of the Dual Tariff
Policy for natural gas-fired power plants by Zhejiang
Province in 2016.

The adjustments of annual production plan led to a
year-on-year decrease in the Group’s annual
production volume. In order to facilitate the trial
implementation of the Dual Tariff Policy, the relevant
government authorities have organised the 2016
production plan for natural gas power generating units
based on the maximum demand within the power grid.
The planned generation hours in 2016 for Blue Sky
Power Plant and De-Neng Power Plant under the
Group were 270 hours and 230 hours, while the
planned generation hours for Anji Power Plant were
450 hours and the planned generation hours for Jing-
Xing Power Plant were 3,500 hours. Under the
guidance of the new policy, the Group’s production
volume in 2016 substantially decreased as compared to
that in 2015.
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MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION

AND ANALYSIS
BEER M oA

Natural Gas Supply

The total natural gas supply for the year ended 31
December 2016 was 34.16 million m® (2015: 69.96
million m?3), representing a decrease of 5117% as
compared with last year. As the production volume
decreased, natural gas supply decreased accordingly.

Fuel Cost

Natural gas is the only source of fuel for the Group’s
power plants. The natural gas price is determined by
the Price Bureau of Zhejiang Province.

Effective from 20 April 2016, natural gas price (inclusive
of VAT) offered by Zhejiang Province Natural Gas
Development Company (the sole natural gas supplier of
the Group) to the Company’s gas-fired power plants
was adjusted from RMB2.41/m® to RMB2.31/m?®.

For the year ended 31 December 2016, the fuel cost
accounted for 25.08% (2015: 48.68%) of the revenue,
representing a decrease of 23.6 percentage points as
compared to last year.

On-grid Tariff

On-grid tariff is determined by the Price Bureau of
Zhejiang Province after taking into account the types of
fuel, cost structure and operating profit of similar power
plants within the provincial grid.

According to the Notice Regarding the Trial
Implementation of Dual Tariff for Natural Gas Power
Generating Units in Zhejiang Province (B8R & & X %A
REBHAATTTMIBHIEERB D)) issued by the Price
Bureau of Zhejiang Province, the trial dual tariff was
implemented since from 1 January 2015.

According to the Notice Regarding the Adjustment on
the On-grid Tariff of Natural Gas Power Generating
Units (KR FABRARBEEHAE FEEENEE))
issued by the Price Bureau of Zhejiang Province,
starting from 20 April 2016, the volume tariff of Blue
Sky Power Plant, De-Neng Power Plant and Jing-Xing
Power Plant under the Group has been adjusted from
RMBO0.60/Kwh (inclusive of VAT) to RMBO0.58/Kwh
(inclusive of VAT) and the capacity tariff remains at
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MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION

AND ANALYSIS
BB w0 AT

RMB470/Kw annually (inclusive of VAT); the volume
tariff of Anji Power Plant under the Group has been
adjusted from RMBO0.54/Kwh (inclusive of VAT) to
RMBO0.52/Kwh (inclusive of VAT), and the capacity tariff
(inclusive of VAT) remains at RMB680/Kw (inclusive of
VAT) annually.

FINANCIAL REVIEW

Highlight

For the year ended 31 December 2016, the revenue of
the Group was approximately RMB279,173,000 (2015:

RMB389,631,000), representing a decrease of 28.35%
as compared to last year.

For the year ended 31 December 2016, profit
attributable to equity shareholders of the Company was
approximately RMB41,703,000 (2015: RMB43,691,000),
representing a decrease of 4.55% as compared to
2015. Basic earnings per share amounted to RMB0.091
for the year ended 31 December 2016 (2015:
RMBO0.103).

The decrease in profit attributable to equity
shareholders of the Company was primarily attributable
to provisions made for withholding tax at 10% for
distributable dividends based on estimated profits
generated in 2016 by the four wholly-owned gas-fired
power plants.

Revenue

Revenue of the Group for the year ended 31
December 2016 amounted to approximately
RMB279,173,000, representing a decrease of 28.35%
as compared with RMB389,631,000 last year. A
decrease in revenue was primarily due to the decrease
in production volume.

Operating Costs

Operating costs of the Group for 2016 was
RMB166,360,000, representing a decrease of 40.47%
as compared with RMB279,467,000 in 2015. A
decrease in operating costs was primarily due to the
implementation of the Dual Tariff Policy for natural gas
fired power plants in Zhejiang province and the
corresponding decrease in both production volume and
natural gas price.
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MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION

AND ANALYSIS
B 2 B R am 52 0 AT

Income Tax

Since preferential enterprise income tax enjoyed by the
power plants of the Group expired on 31 December
2012, those power plants had to provide for and pay
the PRC enterprise income tax at a rate of 25% since
2013. The PRC enterprise income tax provided for the
year ended 31 December 2016 amounted to
RMB29,310,000.

The PRC Enterprise Income Tax Law and its relevant
regulations impose a withholding tax at 10%, unless
reduced by a tax treaty or arrangement, for dividend
distributions out of the PRC from earnings
accumulated from 1 January 2008. Undistributed
earnings generated prior to 1 January 2008 are
exempted from such withholding tax. As at 31
December 2016, deferred tax liabilities of
RMB14,664,000 (2015: RMB5,708,000) have been
recognised in connection with the withholding tax that
would be payable on the distribution of the retained
profits of the Group’s PRC subsidiaries.

No provision of income tax was made for the members
of the Group outside the PRC as the Group had no
taxable profits generated outside the PRC.

Profit Attributable to Equity Shareholders of the
Company

For the year ended 31 December 2016, profit
attributable to equity shareholders of the Company was
RMB41,703,000 (2015: RMB43,691,000), representing a
decrease of RMB1,988,000, or approximately 4.55%, as
compared with last year.

The decrease in net profit in 2016 was primarily
attributable to provisions made for withholding tax at
10% for distributable dividends based on estimated
profits generated in 2016 by its wholly-owned gas-fired
power plants.
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MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION

AND ANALYSIS
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Liquidity and Financial Resources

Net cash generated from operating activities was
RMB94,118,000 (net cash wused in 2015:
RMB12,307,000). The increase in the net cash
generated from operating activities as compared with
last year was mainly due to significant decrease in
repayment of the bills payable in 2016 compared to
2015. Meanwhile, the Company effectively reduced
liabilities and lowered the interest expenses.

The aging of the Group’s receivables is one month and
in general, the revenue generated in the previous
month is received in the current month and used for
the settlement of fuel purchases of the current month.
Credit record of our customers was satisfactory and
there has been no risk of default. Net cash used in
investing activities was RMB42,928,000 (2015:
RMB7,013,000), representing an increase of 512.12% as
compared with last year. The amount was primarily
used towards the remaining project payment for the
construction of and equipment procurement for the Anji
Project. During the period under review, there was no
other significant investing activity.

Net cash wused in financing activities was
RMB80,620,000 (net cash generated in 2015:
RMB20,833,000), which was primarily due to the
borrowings of RMB63,000,000; the repayment of short-
term and long-term loans of RMB132,000,000.

As at 31 December 2016, the Group had a cash
balance of RMB120,582,000 (31 December 2015:
RMB150,012,000), all of which were used for working
capital purpose. Cash was generally placed with banks
as short-term deposits.

As at 31 December 2016, the Group had net current
liabilities of approximately RMB401,021,000 (31
December 2015: RMB103,895,000). The increase in net
current liabilities was mainly attributable to part of
long-term loans was included in substitute current
loans due to shorter than one year of the repayment
term.
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The Group regularly monitors its liquidity positions and
projected liquidity requirements and its compliance with
lending covenants to ensure that it meets its short-term
and long-term liquidity requirements. The Group
maintains long-term satisfactory relationships with the
major banks, and the Directors are confident that the
Group will be able to satisfy all conditions required by
its bank creditors and will have sufficient cash to meet
its working capital requirements for future operations.

The Group monitors its capital structure on the basis of
the gearing ratio. This ratio is calculated as net debt
divided by total capital. Net debt is calculated as total
debt (including all loans and borrowings as well as
shareholder’'s loan, as shown in the consolidated
statement of financial position) less cash and cash
equivalents. Total capital is calculated as equity
attributable to equity shareholders of the Company, as
shown in the consolidated statement of financial
position, plus net debt. As at 31 December 2016, the
gearing ratio was 59.80% (31 December 2015:
60.83%), representing a decrease of 1.03 percentage
points as compared with 2015.

Foreign Exchange

The Group has placed short-term deposits with
licensed banks in Hong Kong Dollars, which will affect
the Group’s financial conditions as the exchange rate of
Hong Kong Dollars to Renminbi fluctuates. As the
Group’s operating expenses are mainly denominated in
Renminbi and our revenue is also settled in Renminbi,
the Group has not hedged the risks of exchange rate
fluctuations through any forward contracts or
borrowings.
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Contingent Liabilities and Capital
Commitments

As at 31 December 2016, the Group had
RMB4,169,000 (31 December 2015: RMB26,002,000) of
capital commitments relating to the purchase and
construction of property, plant and equipment
contracted but not provided for in the annual financial
report. The Group had authorised but not contracted
for capital commitments of RMB909,000 (31 December
2015: RMB7,100,000). During the year, the Group had
no major contingent liabilities or off balance sheet
commitments.

PROSPECTS

2017 is an important year for full implementation of the
“13th Five-Year Plan” and the deepening of supply side
structural reform. The PRC government continues to
push forward the progress of different reforms and
accelerate the shift from old to new growth drivers.
While releasing the benefits from the reforms and
moderately expanding the overall demand, it will also
step up its efforts in structural reform. On the energy
development, with the supply-side structural reform of
the energy sector as the mainstay and with focus on
enhancing supply quality and efficiency, the state
strives to resolve and prevent overcapacity, and
promotes the development and utilisation of clean
energy and makes up for shortcomings in energy
development in order to provide a solid energy support
for economic and social development.

The Group has engaged in clean energy industry for
many years, and has always paid close attention to the
national energy development strategies. Facing such
new developments and opportunities, we believe that
the following points stated in the “Circular of National
Energy Administration on Printing and Issuance of 2017
Energy Work Guidance” are particularly worthy of
attention:

1. Improve the support capacity of oil and gas.

The state will fully implement the major oil and
gas science and technology projects set out in
the “13th Five-Year Plan”, focusing on supporting
deep onshore, deep offshore and unconventional
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oil and gas exploration and development and
other major theoretical and technological
innovation. It will strengthen the coordination of
the use of sea area, to further promote the
exploration and development of offshore oil and
gas, and to promote the new capacity
construction in state demonstration area of shale
gas. It will strive to build a new capacity of 3.5
billion m® and speed up the construction of
interconnected projects of natural gas trunk
pipeline, to improve the support and supply
capacity of natural gas. As a clean energy
supplier with natural gas as the main raw
materials, the Company will certainly benefit from
the enhancement of upstream supply and support
capacity of natural gas.

Expand the use of natural gas.

The state will formulate and implement the
“Opinions on Accelerating the Utilisation of Natural
Gas”, and promote the large-scale use in key
areas such as urban gas, gas power generation,
industrial fuels and transportation fuels. It will also
promote actively the direct supply to major natural
gas users and promote vigorously the
development of distributed natural gas energy.

As a province known for enormous energy
consumption, Zhejiang Province is highly
dependent on external sources of energy. The
Group will actively explore the feasibility of
developing centralised energy supply in a
distributed form of its power plants through
natural gas power generation, as natural gas,
given it is a clean energy, will be an excellent
carrier for energy in a distributed form.

Strengthen the construction of peak adjusting
capacity.

The state will speed up the construction of
natural gas peak adjusting power plants in areas
with concentrated electricity load and sufficient
natural gas supply, and promote vigorously the
construction of natural gas peak adjusting
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storage. The state will formulate and implement
the “Guidance on the Promotion of Healthy
Development of the Energy Storage Technology
and Industry” and establish a system for research
and development of energy storage technology
and integrated testing and engineering verification
platform, to promote the demonstration of key
energy storage technology.

As a leading investor and operator of natural gas
peak adjusting power plants in Zhejiang Province,
the Group always pays attention to the
development of natural gas peak adjusting power
plants in Zhejiang Province, and optimises the
allocation of resources and actively explores the
development and business model which
combining natural gas supply with energy storage
technology.

Promote the construction of smart grid.

The state will formulate and implement the
“Opinions on Promoting the Construction of
Efficient Smart Power System”, and study and
formulate the “Smart Grid Strategy 2030”, and
promote the establishment of development
strategy system for smart grid. The state will
formulate and implement the “Micro-grid
Management Measures”, and promote actively the
construction of new energy micro-grid, urban
micro-grid and micro-grid in remote areas and
islands.

With many years of research conducted in micro-
grid, the Group will continue to closely follow the
development trends of the industry, and put into
action the micro-grid implementation and
exploration work by combining with the
characteristics of its own natural gas power
plants, to provide new development momentum
for the Group.
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In 2017, the PRC government will actively promote the
development of low-carbon environment according to
the “13th Five-Year Plan”. In particular, the state will
promote the energy revolution, accelerate technological
innovation, and build a clean, low-carbon, safe and
efficient modern energy system. It also improves the
proportion of non-fossil energy and promotes the clean
and efficient use of fossil energy such as coal;
strengthen the construction of energy storage and
smart grid and the development of distributed energy,
and implements the energy-saving low-carbon power
dispatch. As a leading clean energy supplier focusing
on centralised supply of natural gas, the Group will
certainly contribute to the accomplishment of national
low-carbon and environment-friendly development goals.

In 2017, the total energy consumption in the PRC will
be kept at around 4.4 billion tons of standard coal, in
which, non-fossil energy consumption will be increased
to around 14.3%. The proportion of coal consumption
will fall to around 60% while the proportion of natural
gas consumption will continue to increase to around
6.8%.

With the adaptation of the “New Normal” and the
reforms of the industrial system, in 2016, the economic
development of Zhejiang Province showed a warming
trend, and the province’s total gross domestic product
(GDP) was RMB4,648.5 billion, up by 7.5% compared
to the previous year (based on comparable prices),
representing a 0.8 percentage point higher than the
national level (6.7%). The electricity consumption growth
of the province picked up in 2016 while the national
power consumption reached 387.3 billion Kwh,
representing a growth rate of 9.0%, up by 7.6
percentage points over the previous year. The Group’s
four existing natural gas power plants are all located in
Zhejiang Province, and the continuous improvement of
the economy and electricity consumption of Zhejiang
Province will be helpful to stabilising and improving of
the Company’s performance.

In response to the above situation, the management
will continue to support and dedicate to the
development of clean energy and is confident in the
future development of the existing power plants and
new or acquisition projects of the Group.
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Meanwhile, the shareholders and potential investors of
the Company should note that the Company, in 2017,
shall continue to implement the policy of trial dual tariff
which commenced from 1 January 2015. The dual tariff
consists of volume tariff and capacity tariff. The power
generation policy has changed the single profit model
of the power plants of the Company in the past to
comprising two components, namely capacity revenue
(capacity tariff) and volume revenue (volume tariff). If
there is any change to the power generation policy, the
Company will make announcement in due course.

Moreover, according to the 2017 Unified Production
Plan for Natural Gas Power Generating Units (ZZ&—+
FRARSGFAMMBIZELE) issued by Zhejiang
Province Economic and Information Commission, the
annual planned generation hours for Blue Sky Power
Plant, De-Neng Power Plant and Anji Power Plant
under the Group will be 300 hours, 300 hours and
1,500 hours respectively, while the planned generation
hour for Jing-Xing Power Plant (being a power plant for
geographical survey) in 2017 will be temporarily 3,500
hours.

In addition, the Group is well prepared for the
research, development and investment in the projects
in relation to gas-fired power generation, as well as
investigation and research on clean energy projects
other than natural gas. The Group will further increase
its reserves in projects for current and long term
development, and will expand its market share in the
clean energy supply in the PRC.

The Group will continue to strengthen its human
resources and focus on the training of talents to build
a team with outstanding members. In addition, the
Group will continue to implement its comprehensive
budget management, upgrade its ability in plan
execution and budget control in order to further
enhance its management standard and secure stable
and sustainable development of the Group. The Group,
having full confidence in the industry, will constantly
show perseverance in its development of clean energy
business. It is believed that the Group will achieve
satisfactory results and become one of the top clean
energy suppliers in the PRC.
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FINAL DIVIDEND

The Board recommends the payment of a final
dividend of HKDO0.03 per share to the shareholders
whose names appear on the register of members of
the Company on Monday, 12 June 2017. Subject to the
approval of the upcoming annual general meeting, the
proposed final dividend will be paid on or about
Wednesday, 21 June 2017.

HEALTH AND SAFETY COMPLIANCE

The Group’s power plants have adopted various
internal policies and implemented protective measures
to prevent health and safety hazards. The policies
adopted by the Company are in line with government
regulations. There were no material accidents or
suspensions during the year.

ENVIRONMENT PROTECTION

Each of the Group’s power plants has installed a
monitoring system to monitor the emission volume of
sulphur dioxide and nitrogen oxides on a real-time
basis. The emission is inspected regularly by the Group
to determine whether the relevant standard has been
satisfied before discharging.

During the power generation process, conventional
coal-fired power plant discharges waste water and
emits air pollutants, such as sulphur dioxide, nitrogen
oxides and fine particles. The Group’s power plants are
fuelled with natural gas which is a cleaner fossil fuel.
Unlike conventional coal-fired power plants, the Group’s
power plants emit significantly lesser amount of
nitrogen oxides and barely emit any sulphur dioxide
and fine particles. For the same amount of heat
generated, combusting natural gas releases 50% less
carbon dioxide as compared to combusting coal.

The Group believes that the environmental protection
system and facilities of our power plants are in full
compliance with the relevant national and local
regulations on environment protection. We actively push
forward the implementation of low carbon
transformation for existing generating units. Upon
completion, the emission of nitrogen oxides in the
process of power generation will be effectively
reduced.
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EXECUTIVE DIRECTORS

1.

Mr. CHAI Wei

Mr. Chai, aged 46, was appointed as an executive
Director on 8 September 2008. He is responsible
for the overall business strategy and corporate
development of the Group, sourcing and
development of new projects and maintaining
relationship between the Group and the local
government authorities in which the Group’s power
plants are located. Mr. Chai has over 20 years of
experience in corporate development and
management in a variety of sectors, including
energy and public media. Prior to joining the Group,
Mr. Chai worked in the public media industry. He
was the founder of Zhejiang King Island Limited (47
T&8EEAMRAR) and Zhejiang Expressway
Advertising Co. (¥ /L = R & &5 A Al). Mr. Chai was
a director and general manager of Zhejiang King
Island Limited (#1)T & 5 /ZE S AR A F]) during the
period from 1992 to 2003, and was the vice-
chairman and general manager of Zhejiang
Expressway Advertising Co. (iT/I =& E & A7)
during the period from 1998 to 2003.

Since 2005, Mr. Chai has been responsible for
the overall management of all our power plants,
namely Blue Sky Power Plant, De-Neng Power
Plant and Jing-Xing Power Plant (collectively “Our
Power Plants”). Mr. Chai has also been a director
of Shanghai Pu-Xing Energy Limited (% £ 288/
772 7F]) (“Puxing Energy”) since 2002, a director
of Xinjiang Wanxiang GPE Technology Co., Ltd.
(FrEE R R EMAR AR since February 2013,
the chairman of Hangzhou Song-Da Investment
Management Co., Ltd. (TR NRZREERERA
Al) since November 2013, and was the general
manager of Puxing Energy during the period from
2002 to December 2008. He has been a non-
executive director of Shanghai Rongyi
E-commerce Co., Ltd (E/ RS REFEHERHG
AR AF]), a company listed on the “New Third
Board” of the National Equities Exchange and
Quotations Co., Ltd. since July 2015. He is
currently a director of the Zhejiang Economic
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Council and the vice president of the Association
of the Energy Industry of Zhejiang province (47T
BEREBREB A E) M. Chai graduated from
Zhejiang Art and Craft School (#/T4& T & X&fiT2
), majoring in industrial design.

Mr. LAI Chun Yu
(resigned on 22 June 2016)

Mr. Lai, aged 40, was appointed as an executive
Director on 22 April 2013. Mr. Lai is also the
Company Secretary of the Company. Mr. Lai has
been a member of CPA Australia since 2002 and
a member of Hong Kong Institute of Certified
Public Accountants since 2004. Mr. Lai holds a
bachelor’s degree in business of Queensland
University of Technology and has over 14 years of
experience in accounting, auditing and financial
management. Mr. Lai has been an independent
non-executive director of Anxian Yuan China
Holdings Limited, a company listed on The Stock
Exchange of Hong Kong Limited (the “Stock
Exchange”) since October 2014. He joined the
Group in May 2009. Prior to that, Mr. Lai was the
qualified accountant and company secretary of a
PRC-based computer-aided software solution
provider. In addition, he was also the financial
controller of Qin Jia Yuan Media Services
Company Limited, a company listed on the Stock
Exchange, and had worked for one of the big four
accounting firms.
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NON-EXECUTIVE DIRECTORS

3.

Mr. WEI Jun Yong

Mr. Wei, aged 47, was appointed as a non-
executive Director on 25 September 2015. Mr.
Wei has over 20 years of experience in corporate
operation management. Mr. Wei has been a
director and the president of Minsheng Life
Insurance Co., Ltd. (RAEASHRER KD AR A R)
(“Minsheng Life”) since 2009 and an executive
committee member since 2011. Mr. Wei has been
the financial officer of Minsheng Life since 2012
and has been the chief financial officer since
2013. Prior to that, Mr. Wei worked in the
headquarter of Ping An and its subsidiaries, and
served as various key management positions.
Since August 2015, Mr. Wei has served as the
president of Shanghai Pu-xing Energy Limited (&
2 Tk 2 a]). Mr. Wei graduated from Harbin
Engineering University ("% EE T2 X&) with a
bachelor’s degree in engineering, majoring in
electronic engineering in 1991. He also graduated
from China Europe International Business School
(PN T EFT) with a master's degree in
management, majoring in business administration
in 2008.

Mr. LIU Xuan Hua

Mr. Liu, aged 36, was appointed as a non-
executive Director on 25 September 2015. Mr. Liu,
who is a Chinese certified public accountant and
a certified tax adviser, has many years of working
experience in the field of financial management.
Mr. Liu joined Wanxiang Group in 2002 and was
responsible for finance-related functions. Since
2013, Mr. Liu has been the deputy manager and
the manager of the Department of Financial Asset
(7 E E =) and then the assistant to the
general manger of Pu-xing (Xinjiang) Energy Co.,
Ltd. (B2 GhE)se/RABMR AR (formerly known
as Xinjiang Wanxiang Clean Energy Co., Ltd. (¥
BB R ZERAMRAR). Mr. Liu graduated from
Hunan University (4 KX2) with a bachelor’s
degree in accounting in 2002 and obtained a
Master of Business Administration (MBA) from
Shanghai University of Finance and Economics
(EBHEARE) in 2012.
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Mr. LI Jin Quan

Mr. Li, aged 48, has over 14 years of experience
in corporate operation management. From 1992
to 2004, Mr. Li was in charge of technology
research and operation management of AVIC
Qingan Group Co., LTD. and its subsidiaries and
served as technician, deputy director of the
manufacture and development department and
general manager of the package material branch.
From 2004 to 2009, he was in charge of
investment management of Wanxiang Western
Development Co., Ltd. (BRI FEAIHEF R AR
and served as senior project manager and deputy
general manager of the investment management
department. He worked at the strategic
development department of China Wanxiang from
April 2009 to 2014 and served as the vice
executive general manager and the executive
general manager of that department. Mr. Li is also
a director (and subsequently the Chairman since
2015) of Hanchuan CNC Machine Tool Co., Ltd.
(2 )| 84 # R B {7 2 A1), In addition, Mr. Li also
served as the non-executive director of the
Company from 15 March 2013 to 17 June 2015.
Mr. Li obtained a bachelor’'s degree in engineering
from Nanchang Institute of Aeronautical
Technology (BEMZE=TX2F) in 1992 and a
master's degree in engineering from Beihang
University (3t 5 it Z= fin K K E) in 2000.
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INDEPENDENT NON-EXECUTIVE DIRECTORS

6.

Mr. TSE Chi Man

Mr. Tse, aged 63, was appointed as an
independent non-executive Director (INED”) on 25
May 2009. Mr. Tse has over 20 vyears of
experience in finance and business development
management. Prior to joining the Group, Mr. Tse
held various positions in a number of
organizations, including Chase Manhattan Asia
Limited as a director, Inchcape Pacific Limited as
a mergers and acquisitions director, Lerado Group
(Holding) Company Limited as an executive
director, and Dresdner Kleinwort Benson (China)
Limited as a managing director. Mr. Tse had also
worked for Imagi International Holdings Limited, a
company listed on the Stock Exchange from
1999 to 2008 where he served as a director
since 2004 and then the chief financial officer
since 2007, overseeing the company’s accounting
and finance, administration and human resources
functions. Mr. Tse was also a member of the
Design Institute Advisory Board of Vocational
Training Council. Mr. Tse holds a bachelor’s
degree and a master’'s degree in business
administration, both from the University of Texas,
Arlington.
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Mr. YAO Xian Guo

Mr. Yao, aged 64, was appointed as an INED on
25 May 2009. Mr. Yao is a professor of the
School of Public Affairs, Zhejiang University. He is
also a member of The Expert Evaluation
Committee of National Social Science Foundation
of China (XM EMEBEESENTEALAER),
executive vice-chairman of the China Industrial
Economic Association (FF B T 2 & E &2 @),
member of the Zhejiang Government Advisory
Council (#IEBITEHZEE) and the chairman
of the Zhejiang Society of Public Administration
(MIEALEREES) Mr. Yao holds a master’s
degree in economics from Fudan University. Mr.
Yao is currently an independent non-executive
director of Wolong Electric Group Co., Ltd,,
Zhejiang Hithink RoyalFlush Information Network
Co., Ltd., Zhejiang Zheneng Electric Power Co.,
Ltd., which are companies listed on the Shanghai
Stock Exchange, and Zhejiang Asia-Pacific
Pharmaceutical Co., Ltd., a company listed on the
Shenzhen Stock Exchange. Mr. Yao has also
served as an independent non-executive director
of Zhejiang Guangsha Co., Ltd., Zhejiang Xinhu
Venture Investment Co., Ltd., Xinhu Zhongbao
Co., Ltd. and Zhejiang Southeast Electric Power
Company Limited, all of which are companies
listed on the Shanghai Stock Exchange, and
Zhejiang Hailiang Co., Ltd., a company listed on
the Shenzhen Stock Exchange.

Mr. YU Wayne W.

Mr. Yu, aged 53, was appointed as an INED on
29 August 2012. Mr. Yu is currently a professor of
City University of Hong Kong. Before joining City
University of Hong Kong, he was a professor of
The Hong Kong Polytechnic University and was
an assistant professor of the School of Business
at Queen’s University in Canada. Mr. Yu holds a
bachelor of business administration degree, a
master of Arts in Economics, and a Ph.D. in
Finance. In addition, he is a Chartered Financial
Analyst. Mr. Yu served as an independent non-
executive director of Shenzhen Gas Corporation
Limited (a company listed on the Shanghai Stock
Exchange).
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Save as disclosed above, each of the Directors (i)
has not held any directorships in any public
companies (the securities of which are listed on
any securities market in Hong Kong or overseas)
in the last three years; (i) does not have any
relationship with any other Directors, senior
management or substantial or controlling
Shareholders of the Company; and (i) does not
hold any positions in the Company or other
members of the Group.

SENIOR MANAGEMENT

Mr. GU Genyong, aged 53, is the General Manager of
the Company. Mr. Gu joined the Group in December
2012 and was responsible for work safety in electric
power generation and the construction management of
the Group. Mr. Gu has engaged in the power industry
for more than 25 years. Prior to joining the Group, Mr.
Gu was the factory manager of Dilong Thermal Power
Plant (38224 E %) of Nine Dragons Group, and an
installation expert and an engineer of SINOPEC Jinling
Petrochemical Company and a member of Jiangsu
Society of Engineering Thermophysics (JT &k & T2 2%
Ei#p&&8). Mr. Gu graduated from Nanjing Institute of
Technology in 1987, majoring in power plant thermal
energy, and from Southeast University upon completion
of a master’'s course in 1999, majoring in system
engineering (corporate management).

COMPANY SECRETARY

The biography of Mr. LAl Chun Yu (32#& =) is set out
on page 21 of this report.
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The Directors are pleased to present their annual
report together with the audited accounts of the Group
for the year ended 31 December 2016.

PRINCIPAL ACTIVITIES

The principal activity of the Company is investment
holding. Its subsidiaries are principally engaged in the
development, operation and management of power
plants fuelled by natural gas in the PRC.

KEY RISKS AND UNCERTAINTIES

Risks and uncertainties involved in the business
operations of the Group may affect the Group’s
financial conditions or growth prospects. The Group
has been focusing on the control of risks and
uncertainties with the aim of understanding and
addressing the concerns of stakeholders. These factors
are not exhaustive or comprehensive, and there may be
other risks in addition to those shown below which are
not known to the Group or which may not be material
now but could become material in the future.

Key risk factors and uncertainties affecting the Group
are outlined below:

1. The Chinese economy has entered into the “New
Normal” phase with further deepening of industrial
structure reform. Among which, the adjustments
on industrial policies during the course of the
advancement of electric power system reform
may have impact on the Group’s business
operation. Such impact involves risk of
uncertainty.

2. The growth of the Chinese macro-economy has
slowed down, which has directly affected the
power consumption demand throughout the
country. The changes in demand may have
impact on the Group’s existing power generation
business. Such impact involves risk of
uncertainty.
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3.  The Zhejiang Government implemented a trial dual
tariff pricing policy for the natural gas power
generation industry. This policy changed the
business model of the Group, which was
previously based only on sales volume of
electricity. The adjustment and change of policy
have affected the Group’s business operation,
and the Group’s financial performance has been
adjusted accordingly.

4.  Zhejiang Province Natural Gas Development Co.,
Ltd. (fIIEXRARFEZEBRAF) is the sole
natural gas supplier of the Group. The stability of
natural gas supply will affect the Group’s business
operation.

PRINCIPAL SUBSIDIARIES

Details of the Company’s principal subsidiaries as at 31
December 2016 are set out in note 14 to the financial
statements.

RESULTS AND DIVIDENDS

Results of the Group for the year ended 31 December
2016 are set out in the consolidated statement of profit
or loss and other comprehensive income on page 65 of
this report.

The Board recommends the payment of a final
dividend of HKDO.03 per share for the year ended 31
December 2016 to shareholders of the Company
whose names appear on the register of members on
Monday, 12 June 2017. The proposed final dividend will
be paid on or around 21 June 2017 following approval
by the shareholders of the Company at the forthcoming
annual general meeting.

SHARE CAPITAL

Details of the movements during the year in the issued
share capital of the Company are set out in note 22 to
the financial statements.
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RESERVES

Details of the movements in the reserves of the
Company and the Group for the year ended 31
December 2016 are set out in note 22 to the financial
statements.

DISTRIBUTABLE RESERVES

As at 31 December 2016, distributable reserves of the
Company amounted to approximately RMB103,243,000
(2015: RMB114,863,000).

PROPERTY, PLANT AND EQUIPMENT

Details of the movements in the property, plant and
equipment of the Group are set out in note 12 to the
financial statements.

BORROWINGS

Particulars of the borrowings of the Group are set out
in note 19 to the financial statements.

DONATIONS

During the year ended 31 December 2016, no
donation was made by the Group (2015: Nil).

PRE-EMPTIVE RIGHTS AND SHARE OPTION
ARRANGEMENT

There are no provisions for pre-emptive rights under
the Company’s Articles of Association or the laws of
the Cayman Islands where the Company is
incorporated. The Company does not currently have
any share option arrangement.

MAJOR CUSTOMERS AND SUPPLIERS

For the year ended 31 December 2016, the percentage
of revenue attributable to the Group’s largest customer
and its five largest customers was 84.50% and 100%
respectively.

For the year ended 31 December 2016, the Group had
only one supplier of natural gas and it attributed to
100% of the Group’s natural gas purchases.
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To the knowledge of the Company, none of the
Directors or their associates, or any shareholder
holding more than 5% of the issued share capital of
the Company held any interests in any of the above
customers and suppliers.

RELATIONSHIPS WITH CUSTOMERS AND
SUPPLIERS

The Group understands that it is important to maintain
good relationship with its suppliers and customers to
fulfill its long-term goals and development. To maintain
its competitiveness, the Group aims at delivering
constantly high standards of quality in the service to its
customers. During the year ended 31 December 2016,
there was no material and significant dispute between
the Group and its suppliers and/or customers.

CHARGES ON ASSETS

Details of the Group’s charges on assets as at 31
December 2016 are set out in notes 12 and 13 to the
financial statements.

DIRECTORS’ INTERESTS IN COMPETING
BUSINESS

None of the Directors has engaged in or were
interested in any business which competed or was
likely to compete, either directly or indirectly, with the
business of the Group during the year ended 31
December 2016.

MANAGEMENT CONTRACTS

No contracts concerning the management and
administration of the whole or any substantial part of
the business of the Company were entered into or
existed during the year ended 31 December 2016.

PERMITTED INDEMNITY PROVISIONS

At no time during the financial year and up to the date
of this report, there was or is, any permitted indemnity
provision being in force for the benefit of any of the
directors of the Company or an associated company.
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COMPLIANCE WITH LAWS AND
REGULATIONS

During the year under review, the Group has complied
with the relevant laws and regulations that have a
significant impact on the operations of the Group.

RELATED PARTY TRANSACTIONS

Details of significant related party transactions entered
into by the Group in the normal course of business
during the reporting period are set out in note 25 to
the financial statements. These transactions constituted
connected transactions of the Company under the
Rules Governing the Listing of the Securities on the
Stock Exchange (the “Listing Rules”) but were exempt
from all the reporting, announcement and independent
shareholders’ approval requirements set out in Chapter
14A of the Listing Rules.

DIRECTORS

The Directors during the year ended 31 December
2016 and up to date of this report are:

Executive Directors

Mr. CHAI Wei
Mr. LAI Chun Yu (resigned on 22 June 2016)

Non-executive Directors

Mr. WEI Jun Yong (Chairman)
Mr. LIU Xuan Hua
Mr. LI Jin Quan (appointed on 2 June 2016)

Independent non-executive Directors

Mr. TSE Chi Man
Mr. YAO Xian Guo
Mr. YU Wayne W.

Mr. Lai Chun Yu resigned as the executive directors
with effect from 22 June 2016 in order to devote more
time in managing the Company secretarial affairs of the
Company.
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In accordance with Article 84(1) of the Company’s
Articles of Association, the Directors (including non-
executive Directors) shall be subject to retirement by
rotation at each annual general meeting. Mr. Yu Wayne
W. and Mr. Tse Chi Man will retire from office at the
forthcoming annual general meeting and Mr. Chai Wei
has elected not to offer himself for re-election and will
retire at the conclusion of the AGM. Mr. Chai Wei
would like to devote more time for his personal affairs.
Mr. Chai Wei has confirmed that he has no
disagreement with the Board and there is no matter
with respect to his retirement that needs to be brought
to the attention of the Shareholders of the Company
and the Stock Exchange. The Company would like to
express its appreciation to Mr. Chai Wei for his
contributions to the development of the Company
during his tenure of office.

Further, according to Article 83(3) of the Articles of
Association, any Director appointed by the Board either
to fill a casual vacancy on the Board or as an addition
to the existing Board shall hold office only until the
next following general meeting of the Company and
shall then be eligible for re-election. Thus, Mr. Li Jin
Quan who was appointed as the non-executive
Directors of the Company on 2 June 2016 shall hold
office only until the AGM and be eligible for re-election
at the AGM.

Mr. Yu Wayne W., Mr. Tse Chi Man, and Mr. Li Jin
Quan will offer themselves for re-election at the AGM.

RETIREMENT OF NON-EXECUTIVE
DIRECTOR

Mr. Liu Xuan Hua has informed the Board of his
intention to retire voluntarily as a non-execute Director
at the forthcoming annual general meeting. Following
his retirement, with effect from the conclusion of the
forthcoming annual general meeting, Mr. Liu Xuan Hua
will cease to be a non-execute Director. Mr. Liu Xuan
Hua has confirmed that he has no disagreement with
the Board and there is no matter in relation to his
retirement that needs to be brought to the attention of
the shareholders of the Company or the Stock
Exchange.
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The Board would like to express its gratitude to Mr. Liu
Xuan Hua for his contribution to the Company during
his tenure as a non-execute Director of the Company.

DIRECTORS’ SERVICE CONTRACTS

Each of the Directors has entered into a service
contract with the Company for a term of three years.
None of the Directors has a service contract with the
Company which is not determinable by the Company
within one year without payment of compensation,
other than statutory compensation.

DIRECTORS’ INTERESTS IN TRANSACTIONS,
ARRANGEMENTS OR CONTRACTS OF
SIGNIFICANCE

No transaction, arrangement or contract of significance
to which a Director of the Company or an entity
connected with a Director was a party and in which a
Director is or was materially interested, either directly or
indirectly, subsisted as at 31 December 2016 or any
time during the year.

INDEPENDENCE OF THE INDEPENDENT
NON-EXECUTIVE DIRECTORS

The Board has received from each of the INEDs an
annual confirmation of his independence pursuant to
Rule 3.13 of the Listing Rules, and considers that all
the INEDs meet the independence guidelines set out in
Rule 3.13 of the Listing Rules and are independent in
accordance with the terms of the guidelines.
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DIRECTORS’ AND CHIEF EXECUTIVES’
INTERESTS AND/OR SHORT POSITIONS IN
SHARES, UNDERLYING SHARES OR
DEBENTURES OF THE COMPANY AND ITS
ASSOCIATED CORPORATIONS

As at 31 December 2016, none of the Directors or
chief executives of the Company or any of their
associates had any interests or short positions in the
shares, underlying shares or debentures of the
Company or its associated corporations (within the
meaning of Part XV of the Securities and Futures
Ordinance (“SFQO”)) which were recorded in the register
required to be kept pursuant to Section 352 of the
SFO, or as otherwise notified to the Company and the
Stock Exchange pursuant to the Model Code for
Securities Transactions by Directors of Listed
Companies (“Model Code”) set out in Appendix 10 to
the Listing Rules.

At no time during the year ended 31 December 2016
was the Company, any of its subsidiaries, its holding
company or any of the subsidiaries of the Company’s
holding company a party to any arrangement to enable
the Directors or their associates (as defined in the
Listing Rules) to acquire benefits by means of the
acquisition of shares in, or debentures of, the Company
or any other body corporate.
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INTERESTS AND SHORT POSITIONS OF TERRZEZRAE
SUBSTANTIAL SHAREHOLDERS

So far as is known to any Director or chief executive of MARBEMESTSHRESTHRAENA B
the Company, as at 31 December 2016, the following ZE—ARFE+ZA=+—H8 TFIALTER
persons (other than a Director or a chief executive of AIEEAEETHRABRINRERT RSN K
the Company) had interests or short positions in the MER D PHEAERIEE SR ISR EXVE
shares or underlying shares of the Company which are FOREIDEBRAAANTEENERIOAE
required to be disclosed to the Company under the KB ARRRIRIEEFH K H E 55 F£3361&
provisions of Divisions 2 and 3 of Part XV of the SFO, FEMNETMHOERIORE :

or which are recorded in the register required to be
kept by the Company pursuant to Section 336 of the

SFO:
Number of shares/ Percentage of
underlying shares issued share
Name of Shareholder Nature of interest held (rote 1 capital
Fissiein 48 HEBRTRE
R & HanHE B 88 e Bt
Amber International Investment Co., Beneficial interest 300,000,000 (L) 65.42%
Ltd. (“Amber International”) EnEAA
WRIHERIRERR AR
(T3R3BE )
Puxing Energy (ot 2 Interest in a controlled 300,000,000 (L) 65.42%
T2 a2 corporation
R LB R
Mr. Lu Wei Ding (“Mr. Lu”) (hote 2 Interest in controlled 300,000,000 (L) 65.42%
BESLA ([BhE]) We2 corporations
R AEER
Ms. Li Li o3 Interest of spouse 300,000,000 (L) 65.42%
B (e A 18 4 &
BC Greater China Opportunities Fund Beneficial Interest 40,000,000 (L) 8.72%

SPC, acting on behalf of and for B #F#EA A

account of BC New Energy Fund

SP (a segregated portfolio thereof)
RERPERBERES (KX K RBC

New Energy Fund SP (3 #£ A Fh 2

MEES 2 BIEEHRE)TE)

BC Asset Management Limited M4 Interest in a controlled 40,000,000 (L)
BC Asset Management Limited %4  corporation
REEEER

ANNUAL REPORT 2016 —Z—XFE#HE 35




REPORT OF THE DIRECTORS
EEEWRE

Notes: B &

(1) The letter “L” denotes the entity/person’s long position in the shares. ©) FHLIRRZERE ALTHEAROMETAE -

2 These shares are held by Amber International, which is owned as () ZERMAFRIDBEERES - TERERNFERBERE
to 100% by Puxing Energy, which is owned as to 57.14% by 100% 1 ° EEBREBPREAERFES714%Ea= - M
China Wanxiang which in turn is, inter alia, 83.33% owned by Mr. REEMARELERELEERFFISIB3NER 2 BB
Lu and 16.67% by E/&®S:2ARAR] (Shanghai Guandingze Co., WRREBRAT S AIFFH83.33% K% 16.67% i o T2
Ltd.), a company owned as to 93.33% by Mr Lu. The remaining BREH #24286% AR EAZSREBBRHBRA A
42.86% of Puxing Energy is owned by R4 ASREBEHERA (TREASRR]#EE - Bt - TERE  PEEM -
7] (Minsheng Life Insurance Co., Ltd.) (“Minsheng Life Insurance”) BEARREASRBESAEEZERMNER -

Therefore, Puxing Energy, China Wanxiang, Mr. Lu and Minsheng
Life Insurance are deemed to be interested in these shares.

(8)  Ms. Li Liis the spouse of Mr. Lu and is therefore deemed to be @ FBAXIABLRENRE BAUKRRA/ELBEER
interested in the said shares in which Mr. Lu is deemed to be RAEAERN ERRHER -
interested.
(4 These shares are held by BC Greater China Opportunities Fund () ZERMBRERFERBES (REXEKABC New
SPC, acting on behalf of and for account of BC New Energy Fund Energy Fund SP (IR AR ERBE S 2BV EEM
SP (a segregated portfolio thereof) which is owned as to 100% by BITE)FE  MKERFEHBEE S B HBC Asset
BC Asset Management Limited. Management Limited # 5 100% #& & °
Save as disclosed herein, as at 31 December 2016, the HE-_Z—R"F+-A=+—"8 BAXRFEH
Company had not been notified by any other persons WEEIN - EARNT PTEN - AT E A A
(other than Directors or chief executives of the T(RRAREEZEHHFSTHABRBRIN RANRE
Company) who had an interest or a short position in HEIR ARG M BERE D R iE BRI E
the shares or underlying shares of the Company which SN HEERGIEXVELE2N £30 ERE A AN A
are required to be disclosed to the Company under the B EBENERIRE  KIEABLALRAF
provisions of Divisions 2 and 3 of Part XV of the SFO, BRIEFEA NI EIEMEIBCIEFENEEMH
or which are recorded in the register required to be BEZESURA °

kept by the Company pursuant to Section 336 of the
SFO as at the date of this report.

PURCHASE, SALE OR REDEMPTION OF THE BE -HE
COMPANY’S LISTED SECURITIES

ggl?

BRARE L™ES

During the year ended 31 December 2016, neither the HE_E—XRFt+-_A=1t—HILFE £&RQ
Company nor any of its subsidiaries purchased, sold or FIREFARNBATMEES - €k EMD
redeemed any of the Company’s listed securities. AKANRERETZES -
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EMPLOYEES AND REMUNERATION POLICIES

As at 31 December 2016, the Group had a total of 271
employees, excluding 7 temporary staffs (31 December
2015: 286, excluding 6 temporary staffs). The Group
determines employees’ remuneration according to
industry practices, financial performance and
employees’ performance. The Group also provides
other fringe benefits such as insurance, medical
benefits and mandatory provident fund contributions
with an aim to retain talents on all levels for further
contributions to the Group.

The emoluments of the Directors are decided by the
Remuneration Committee having regard to the relevant
Director’'s experience, responsibility and the time
devoted to the business of the Group.

ANNUAL GENERAL MEETING

The annual general meeting will be held on Friday, 2
June 2017. A notice convening the annual general
meeting had been published and despatched to the
shareholders of the Company in the manner as
required by the Listing Rules.

CLOSURE OF REGISTER OF MEMBERS

The register of members of the Company will be
closed in the following periods during which no
transfers of shares of the Company will be registered:

(i) from Monday, 29 May 2017 to Friday, 2 June 2017
(both dates inclusive) for the purpose of
ascertaining shareholders’ entitlement to attend
and vote at the meeting of the Company. In order
to be eligible to attend and vote at the meeting,
all transfers accompanied by the relevant share
certificates must be lodged with the Company’s
share registrar in Hong Kong, Computershare
Hong Kong Investor Services Limited, at Shops
1712—1716, 17th Floor, Hopewell Centre, 183
Queen’s Road East, Wanchai, Hong Kong no later
than 4: 30 p.m. on Friday, 26 May 2017.
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(i)  from Thursday, 8 June 2017 to Monday, 12 June
2017 (both dates inclusive) for the purpose of
ascertaining shareholders’ entitlement to the
proposed final dividend. In order to establish
entitlements to the proposed final dividend, all
transfers accompanied by the relevant share
certificates shall be lodged with the Company’s
share registrar in Hong Kong, Computershare
Hong Kong Investor Services Limited, at Shops
1712—1716, 17th Floor, Hopewell Centre, 183
Queen’s Road East, Wanchai, Hong Kong no later
than 4: 30 p.m. on Wednesday, 7 June 2017.

SUFFICIENCY OF PUBLIC FLOAT

Based on the public information available to the
Company and to the best knowledge of the Directors,
during the year and till the date of this report, the
Company has complied with the public float
requirement as set out in the Listing Rules.

AUDIT COMMITTEE

The Company’s Audit Committee is composed of all
the INEDs. The Audit Committee has reviewed the
accounting policies and practices adopted by the
Group and discussed the internal controls and financial
reporting matters, including a review of the audited
consolidated financial statements for the year ended 31
December 2016.

AUDITOR

The financial statements for the year have been audited
by KPMG who will retire and offer themselves for re-
appointment at the forthcoming annual general
meeting.

On behalf of the Board

Wei Jun Yong
Chairman, Board of Directors

24 March 2017
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CORPORATE GOVERNANCE PRACTICES

The Board has been adamant in upholding high
standards of corporate governance to maximize the
operational efficiency, corporate values and shareholder
returns. The Company adopted sound governance and
disclosure practices and continued to upgrade internal
control system, strengthen risk control management
and reinforce the corporate governance structure.

The Company had complied with all the code
provisions of the Corporate Governance Code (the “CG
Code”) as set out in Appendix 14 to the Listing Rules
throughout the year ended 31 December 2016 save for
code provisions A.2.1 of the CG Code as detailed
below.

DIRECTORS’ SECURITIES TRANSACTIONS

The Company has adopted the Model Code as set out
in Appendix 10 to the Listing Rules as its code of
conduct regarding Director’s securities transactions.

All Directors have confirmed, following specific enquiry
by the Company, that they had complied with the
required standard as set out in the Model Code
throughout the year ended 31 December 2016.

BOARD OF DIRECTORS

Board Composition

Throughout the year ended 31 December 2016 and up
to the date of this report, the composition of the
Board, by category of Directors, is set out below:

Executive Directors

Mr. CHAI Wei
Mr. LAI Chun Yu (resigned on 22 June 2016)

Non-executive Directors

Mr. WEI Jun Yong (Chairman)
Mr. LIU Xuan Hua
Mr. LI Jin Quan (appointed on 2 June 2016)
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BOARD OF DIRECTORS (Continued)

Board Composition (Continued)
Independent non-executive Directors

Mr. TSE Chi Man
Mr. YAO Xian Guo
Mr. YU Wayne W.

The Board’s composition demonstrates a balance of
core competence with regard to the business of the
Group so as to provide effective leadership and the
required expertise to the Group. The executive
Directors and senior management have extensive
management experience in the gas-fired power
generation industry. The biographical details and
experience of the Directors and senior management are
set out on pages 20 to 26 of this report.

There are no financial, business, family or other
material/relevant relationships among members of the
Board.

Board Responsibilities

The Board is responsible for leadership and control of
the Group, is entrusted with the responsibility to
supervise the overall management of the business,
including establishing and overseeing the Group’s
strategic development, business plans, financial
objectives, capital investment proposals, and assumes
the responsibilities of corporate governance of the
Group. The Board has delegated the authority and
responsibility for implementing its business strategies
and managing the daily operations of the Group’s
businesses to the executive Directors and members of
senior management.

Board Meetings

The Board conducts meetings on a regular basis and
on an ad hoc basis, as warranted by business needs.
During the year ended 31 December 2016, four Board
meetings, two Audit Committee meetings, one
Nomination Committee meeting and one Remuneration
Committee meeting were convened. Details of
attendance of Board meetings of each of the members
of the Board are set out in “Attendance of Individual
Directors at Meetings” below.
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BOARD OF DIRECTORS (Continuea)

Board Meetings (Continued)

Notices for regular Board meetings are given to each
Director at least 14 days prior to the meeting, whereby
the Directors can put forward their proposed items into
the agenda. The agenda and the relevant Board
papers are then circulated to the Directors 3 days
before the Board meeting in order to enable the
Directors to make informed decisions. For other Board
meetings, reasonable notices are given.

Independent Non-Executive Directors

The Company has received an annual confirmation of
independence from each of the INEDs. The Company
is of the view that all the INEDs meet the guidelines for
assessing independence as set out in Rule 3.13 of the
Listing Rules and considers them to be independent.

During the year ended 31 December 2016, the Board
at all times met the requirements of the Listing Rules
relating to the appointment of sufficient number of
INEDs, with one of them possessing appropriate
professional qualifications or accounting or related
financial management expertise.

Chairman and President

Mr. Chai Wei, the President of the Company, had also
assumed the role of the Chairman of the Board till 2
June 2016, which deviates from the code provision
A.2.1 that the role of the Chairman should be separate
from that of the President.

Mr. Chai has over 20 years of experience in corporate
development and management in a variety of sectors,
including energy and public media, and was the most
suitable candidate to serve in the positions of both the
Chairman of the Board and President of the Company.
During the period from 10 January 2013 to 2 June
2016, the Company was unable to identify another
suitable person who possesses abilities and talent
better than or equivalent to Mr. Chai to serve in either
of the positions. Given that there is a balanced Board
with five experienced NEDs (including three INEDSs)
representing more than half of the Board, the Board is
of the view that there is a strong independent element
on the Board to exercise independent judgment and
provide sufficient check and balance.
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BOARD OF DIRECTORS (Continued)

Chairman and President (Continued)

However, with effect from 2 June 2016, Mr. Wei Jun
Yong, the non-executive Director, has been appointed
as the Chairman of the Board, while Mr. Chai Wei has
ceased to serve as the Chairman of the Board. Such
arrangement separates the roles of the Chairman of the
Board and President of the Company, which enables
the Company to comply with the requirements of the
code provision A.2.1 of the CG Code.

The Board will evaluate from time to time the
appropriateness of the dual roles of the Chairman and
the President performed by the same individual and
ensures that the arrangement will continue to be in the
interests of the Company and its shareholders as a
whole.

Non-Executive Directors

The term of appointment of all the NEDs and INEDs of
the Company is three years. Under the Company’s
Articles of Association, one-third of all Directors
(whether executive or non-executive) are subject to
retirement by rotation and re-election at each annual
general meeting provided that every Director shall be
subject to retirement at least once every three years.

CONTINUOUS PROFESSIONAL
DEVELOPMENT OF DIRECTORS

All Directors receive comprehensive, formal and tailored
induction on appointment, so as to ensure
understanding of the business and operations of the
Group and directors’ responsibilities and obligations
under the Listing Rules and relevant regulatory
requirements.

All Directors are continually updated on developments
in the statutory and regulatory regime, and the
business and market changes to facilitate the discharge
of their responsibilities and obligations under the Listing
Rules and relevant statutory requirements. Continuing
briefings and professional development for Directors will
be arranged by the Company as necessary.
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CONTINUOUS PROFESSIONAL EECEHEBEEERREE)
DEVELOPMENT OF DIRECTORS (Continued)

During the year under review, the Company has REBEFERN  ARAEEMERESZEME L
provided updates and coordinated training on the MBAAREHEERELRTERREITE
Listing Rules and relevant regulatory requirements to all BLEMBAAUREERE 2B - REBLFEE
Directors. Pursuant to the requirements of the CG ABFRAIMEX - FIEESRHARARARH
Code, all Directors should provide their training record HEMFIIGEE - BEESREMNTIIEE
to the Company. According to the training records EENHERRLHENEIRENT

provided by the Directors, the trainings attended by
them during the reporting period is summarized as

follows:
Corporate Governance, Regulatory Development
Name of Directors and Trainings on other relevant topics
Exna LXEL RERRRHMAEREEE
Executive Directors
HITEE
Mr. CHAI Wei v
fEEE
Mr. LAl Chun Yu v
RIRF kA&

Non-executive Directors

FHPITEE

Mr. WEI Jun Yong (Chairman) v
BAOBRE(EFR)

Mr. LIU Xuan Hua v
BEERLE

Mr. LI Jin Quan v
FTEREE

Independent non-executive Directors
BIUHATEE

Mr. TSE Chi Man v
B A

Mr. YAO Xian Guo v
ok 55 B 5 A

Mr. YU Wayne W. v
Al {2 & 5 4
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REMUNERATION OF DIRECTORS AND
SENIOR MANAGEMENT

The Board established the Remuneration Committee
on 18 June 2009 with specific written terms of
reference which deal clearly with its authority and
responsibilities. The Remuneration Committee
comprises two INEDs, namely Mr. Yao Xian Guo
(Chairman) and Mr. Tse Chi Man and one executive
Director, namely Mr. Chai Wei.

The Remuneration Committee is responsible for
assisting the Board in achieving its objective of
attracting and retaining directors and senior
management of the highest caliber and experience
needed to develop the Group’s business successfully.
The Remuneration Committee is also responsible for
the development of a set of fair and transparent
procedures in determining the remuneration policies for
the Directors and senior management of the Company
and for determining their remuneration packages. In
addition, the Remuneration Committee is responsible
for the determination of the remuneration of executive
Directors and senior management of the Company.

Please refer to the terms of reference of the
Remuneration Committee published on the websites of
the Stock Exchange and the Company for the principal
roles and functions of the Remuneration Committee.

No Director is involved in deciding his own
remuneration. During the year ended 31 December
2016, the Remuneration Committee held one meeting
to review the Company’s remuneration policies, the
terms of the service contracts and the performance of
all executive Directors and senior management. During
the year, the Remuneration Committee determined the
remuneration packages of all executive Directors and
senior management and made recommendation to the
Board of the remuneration of the NEDs and INEDs.

The remuneration of the members of the senior
management for the year ended 31 December 2016
are within the band of Nil to HKD1,000,000.
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REMUNERATION OF DIRECTORS AND
SENIOR MANAGEMENT (Continued)

Further particulars regarding Directors’ remuneration
and the five highest paid employees as required to be
disclosed pursuant to Appendix 16 to the Listing Rules
are set out in notes 8 and 9 to the financial
statements.

NOMINATION OF DIRECTORS

The Board established a Nomination Committee on 1
April 2012 with specific written terms of reference
which deal clearly with its authority and responsibilities.
The Nomination Committee comprises two INEDs,
namely Mr. Yao Xian Guo and Mr. Yu Wayne W. and
one non-executive Director, namely Mr. Wei Jun Yong
(the Chairman).

The Board has adopted a board diversity policy setting
out the approach to the diversity of members of the
Board since 2013. The Company recognizes and
embraces the benefits of diversity of Board members.
It endeavours to ensure that the Board has a balance
of skills, experience and diversity of perspectives
appropriate to the requirements of the Company’s
business. All Board appointments will continue to be
made on a merit basis with due regard for the benefits
of diversity of the Board members. Selection of
candidates will be based on a range of diversity
perspectives, including but not limited to gender, age,
cultural and educational background, experience
(professional or otherwise), skills and knowledge. The
ultimate decision will be made upon the merits and
contribution that the selected candidates will bring to
the Board.

Please refer to the Terms of Reference of the
Nomination Committee published on the websites of
the Company and the Stock Exchange for the roles
and functions of the Nomination Committee.

During the year ended 31 December 2016, the
Nomination Committee held one meeting. The
Nomination Committee has performed all its obligations
under its terms of reference in 2016.

ANNUAL REPORT 2016 —Z—XFE#HE 45

EERSNEBABZTFME)

RIEETRBIMEI6ATRENE EH R
hEREHFMEENFAERBE NPT BERE
B sE8 K9 o

EEZRA
EEeR T —_FHNA—HRIURKZEZE
g ZTHEHNERESE  FEREHEE - R
HARECERREMABABYIFATESTHTEL
ERMEBEEERER-BIATESTRHER
E(XEEZEEB) -

EXe T —FERMEFTEKEZ T
BE BRIB/EREFTEREZ TN
R Zz7ét - AARIERMBEEETEKE
ZHbZ R YR NBRESEHES
NRIEBH 2K - KR Z (e E
BIE BEREMBEZTOREBAR AR
TRERA ARSI BEREFEKREZ TI/ILH
B BMEABRKE - RIZT(ERELSE
% BRETSRRER - Fik  XERHBES
= KR(EXRSIEMOE)  KERFMRE - &
REEBEEAERNRERAIRESTSRHMN
BRIMAERE ©

ERREREENABREE  F2HRAR
ARBRFARETE  RR RS RESE -

BET-R"FT_A=1T—HLEFE &%
REERTXRE% RBRZEBEENR_FT—
NEBTEBRELEANNAARE °




CORPORATE GOVERNANCE REPORT
CEEARE

NOMINATION OF DIRECTORS (Continued)

All new appointments to the Board are considered by
the Nomination Committee whose deliberations are
based on the following criteria:

o possession of core competencies, including but
not limited to financial literacy, that are
appropriate to the Company’s business and
complement the skills and competencies of the
existing Directors on the Board;

o ability to commit time and effort to carry out duties
and responsibilities effectively;

o possession of a good track record of experience
at a senior level in corporations/organizations;
and

the board diversity policy.

AUDIT COMMITTEE

The Board established the Audit Committee on 18
June 2009 with specific written terms of reference
which deal clearly with its authority and responsibilities.
The Audit Committee comprises all the INEDs. Mr. Tse
Chi Man is the chairman of the committee.

The Audit Committee serves as a focal point for
communication between the Directors and the external
auditors as regards their duties relating to, among
other things, financial and other reporting, internal
controls, external and internal audits and to assist the
Board in fulfilling its responsibilities by providing
independent view and supervision of financial
reporting.

The Board is of the opinion that the members of the
Audit Committee have sufficient accounting and
financial management expertise or experience to
discharge their duties.

Please refer to the Terms of Reference published on
the websites of the Company and the Stock Exchange
for the roles and functions of the Audit Committee.
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AUDIT COMMITTEE (Continuea)

Two meetings were held by the Audit Committee
during the year ended 31 December 2016. The
committee reviewed, together with the management
and the external auditors, the consolidated financial
statements for the year ended 31 December 2015 and
for the six months ended 30 June 2016, the
accounting principles and practices adopted by the
Group and statutory compliance. In addition to
reviewing the Group’s internal control system, the
committee also reviewed the independence of the
external auditors and approved the remuneration and
terms of engagement of the external auditors.
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ATTENDANCE OF INDIVIDUAL DIRECTORS AT ERESHESRRENR

MEETINGS

The CG Code stipulates that the Board should meet TEERTRET EFTSVATHETS
regularly for at least 4 times a year at approximately & EVEFERTIR NBE—R - @RE
quarterly intervals. The attendance of individual EHEESTE FTMEES BREZEEEK
Directors at meetings of the Board, the Remuneration REZEEERURBRERENBERANTE
Committee, the Audit Committee, the Nomination 7 -

Committee and the General Meeting, respectively, is set
forth in the table below:

Meetings attended/Meetings held in 2016
—E-RECHFER EBETEH

Remuneration Audit Nomination General
Name of director Board Committee Committee Committee meeting
EEga EEgE FWEEE BEREEE REZEEET REKXE
Mr. CHAI Wei 4/4 11 N/A 11 11
REXLE 58 B
Mr. LAl Chun Yu (resigned on 22 June 2016) 2/4 N/A N/A N/A 11
BIRFAE(RZZE—AR"FESAZTZHEE) i A TERA TERA
Mr. WEI Jun Yong 4/4 N/A N/A N/A 11
MY BERE i@ A 58 B 58 B
Mr. LIU Xuan Hua 3/4 N/A N/A N/A 11
BlEELRE i A TiERA TERA
Mr. LI Jin Quan (appointed on 2 June 2016) 2/4 N/A N/A N/A N/A
FeRAEE(RZZE—RFEAZBEZMFE) N iE A TERA TiERA iE A
Mr. TSE Chi Man 4/4 11 2/2 11 11
i 7 3 S A
Mr. YAO Xian Guo 4/4 11 2/2 1/1 11
w5 Bl 5
Mr. YU Wayne W. 3/4 N/A 2/2 1/1 0/1
A2 & kA4 T A
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AUDITORS’ REMUNERATION

KPMG, the external auditors of the Company, were
responsible for providing services in connection with
the review of the Group’s financial statements for the
six months ended 30 June 2016 and the audit of the
financial statements of the Group for the year ended
31 December 2016.

For the year ended 31 December 2016, the total
remuneration in respect of review and audit services
provided by KPMG for the Group amounted to
approximately RMB1,100,000 and other services
amounted to RMB1,900,000 and there was nil for non-
audit services.

The Audit Committee recommended to the Board
(which endorsed the view) that, subject to
shareholders’ approval at the forthcoming annual
general meeting, KPMG, be re-appointed as the
external auditors of the Company for 2017.

FINANCIAL REPORTING

The Board aims at presenting a comprehensive,
balanced and understandable assessment of the
Group’s performance, position and prospects.
Management provides such explanation and
information to enable the Board to make an informed
assessment of the matters put before the Board for
approval.

The Directors acknowledge their responsibilities for
preparing the financial statements of the Group and for
ensuring that the financial statements are prepared in
accordance with applicable statutory requirements and
accounting standards.

The Group has announced its annual and interim
results in a timely manner within the time frame laid
down in the Listing Rules.
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INTERNAL CONTROLS

The Board has an overall responsibility for maintaining
a sound and effective system of internal control and for
reviewing its effectiveness, particularly in respect of the
controls on financial, operational, compliance and risk
management, to safeguard shareholders’ investment
and the Group’s assets.

The Board has conducted a review on the
effectiveness of the internal control system of the
Group including financial, operational and compliance
controls and risk management. The Board is satisfied
that, based on the information supplied, coupled with
its assistance of the Audit Committee, the present
internal controls and risk management processes are
satisfactory for the nature and size of the Group’s
operations and business.

CORPORATE GOVERNANCE FUNCTIONS

The Board is responsible for performing the corporate
governance duties set out in the code provision D.3.1
of the CG Code.

During the year under review, the Board reviewed the
corporate governance functions and practices of the
Company, the compliance of the Model Code and
disclosure in this Corporate Governance Report.

COMMUNICATIONS WITH SHAREHOLDERS
AND INVESTOR RELATIONS

The Board believes that transparent and timely
disclosure of the Group’s information will enable
shareholders and investors to make the best
investment decision and to have better understanding
on the Group’s business performance and strategies. It
is also vital for developing and maintaining continuing
investor relations with the Company’s potential and
existing investors.
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COMMUNICATIONS WITH SHAREHOLDERS
AND INVESTOR RELATIONS (Continued)

The Company maintains a website at
“www.amberenergy.com.hk” as a communication
platform with shareholders and investors, where the
Group’s business developments and operations,
financial information, corporate governance practices
and other information are available for public access.
Shareholders and investors may also write directly
to the Company’s Investor Relationship at Room
706, 7th Floor, Albion Plaza, 2-6 Granville Road,
Tsim Sha Tsui, Kowloon, Hong Kong or via email to
“hupo@amberinternational.com.cn” for any inquiries.
Inquiries are dealt with in an informative and timely
manner.

General meetings provide an opportunity for
communication between the Board and the
shareholders. Board members and appropriate senior
staff of the Group are available at the meetings to
answer any questions raised by shareholders. The 2015
annual general meeting of the Company was held on 2
June 2016, the notice of which was sent to
shareholders no less than 20 clear business days
before the meeting.

ARTICLES OF ASSOCIATION OF THE
COMPANY

During the vyear under review, there was no
amendment made to the Articles of Association of the
Company.

SHAREHOLDERS’ RIGHTS

As one of the measures to safeguard shareholders’
interests and rights, separate resolutions are proposed
at shareholders’ meetings on each substantial issue,
including the election of individual directors, for
shareholders’ consideration and voting. All resolutions
put forward at shareholders’ meetings will be voted
by poll pursuant to the Listing Rules and the poll
results will be posted on the websites of the Stock
Exchange and the Company at “www.hkexnews.hk” and
“www.amberenergy.com.hk” after the relevant general
meetings.

ANNUAL REPORT 2016 —Z—AFEHE 51

ERRzBBERREEBR®)

AR &) & A 8k [lwww.amberenergy.com.hk]
ERERRREEREER 2 TS  IHAR
ATREEBASEERERREE UK
ER GCEEATHLEMEN BREK
REENMEEMER TR EZEREHE BN
BEADHEHMERZE>-CREEEHEAET
BIOBEARAREEMEAR AL EXELE
lhupo@amberinternational.com.cnl « KA &) &

BARAHENTARERBES -

BRRAERHEEFTSHRRZENSBHRE -
EFgNERASERE RABEBYEH
FRRARE  BERREMER - "RAIZZ
Z-RFERRBFAGR-_FT-—A"ERAZ
BT AEBREESRARE AT D R20ME %
BLEEHAXRRRKR -

AABEBERAA

REEEENRN  NABAGZRMBL KIE
ST °

Az SR A2 A

ERIRER RS RER 2 —IHE M - NAF]
RBZEAFTEHEFELZFENEST)RNRRERE
REBIURBE UEBRRZEEREE M
ERBRRREREZZABRKBIRE LM A
NEREBFRARR - RERRZERENEH
% 51 K & 1% 78 B 32 AT 48 3 fTwww.hkexnews.hk]
K 7K &) 48 [www.amberenergy.com.hk] 2

fﬁﬁo




CORPORATE GOVERNANCE REPORT

/\%%5@&&

1k E./l:l?ﬁﬁ%

SHAREHOLDERS’ RIGHTS (Continuea)

Extraordinary general meetings may be convened by
the Board on written requisition of shareholder(s)
individually or jointly holding not less than one-tenth of
the paid up capital of the Company pursuant to Article
58 of the Articles of Association of the Company. Such
requisition shall be made in writing to the Board or the
Secretary for the purpose of requiring an extraordinary
general meeting to be called by the Board for the
transactions of any business specified in such
requisition. If within 21 days of such deposit, the Board
fails to proceed to convene such meeting, the
requisitionist(s) may do so in the same manner.
Shareholders should follow the requirements and
procedures as set out in such Article for convening an
extraordinary general meeting.

For putting forward any enquiries to the Board,
shareholders may send written enquiries to the
Company. Shareholders may send their enquiries or
requests in respect of their rights as mentioned above
to the Company’s Company Secretary or via email as
set out in the above section headed “Communications
with shareholders and investor relations”.
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KPMG

Independent auditor’s report to the shareholders
of Amber Energy Limited
(Incorporated in the Cayman
liability)

Islands with limited

OPINION

We have audited the consolidated financial statements
of Amber Energy Limited (“the Company”) and its
subsidiaries (“the Group”) set out on pages 64 to 168,
which comprise the consolidated statement of financial
position as at 31 December 2016, the consolidated
statement of profit or loss, the consolidated statement
of profit or loss and other comprehensive income, the
consolidated statement of changes in equity and the
consolidated cash flow statement for the year then
ended and notes to the consolidated financial
statements, including a summary of significant
accounting policies.

In our opinion, the consolidated financial statements
give a true and fair view of the consolidated financial
position of the Group as at 31 December 2016 and of
its consolidated financial performance and its
consolidated cash flows for the year then ended in
accordance with International Financial Reporting
Standards (“IFRSs”) issued by the International
Accounting Standards Board (“IASB”) and have been
properly prepared in compliance with the disclosure
requirements of the Hong Kong Companies Ordinance.
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BASIS FOR OPINION

We conducted our audit in accordance with Hong
Kong Standards on Auditing (“HKSAs”) issued by the
Hong Kong Institute of Certified Public Accountants
(“HKICPAY). Our responsibilities under those standards
are further described in the Auditor’'s responsibilities for
the audit of the consolidated financial statements
section of our report. We are independent of the Group
in accordance with the HKICPA's Code of Ethics for
Professional Accountants (“the Code”) together with any
ethical requirements that are relevant to our audit of the
consolidated financial statements in the Cayman
Islands, and we have fulfilled our other ethical
responsibilities in accordance with these requirements
and the Code. We believe that the audit evidence we
have obtained is sufficient and appropriate to provide a
basis for our opinion.

KEY AUDIT MATTERS

Key audit matters are those matters that, in our
professional judgement, were of most significance in
our audit of the consolidated financial statements of the
current period. These matters were addressed in the
context of our audit of the consolidated financial
statements as a whole, and in forming our opinion
thereon, and we do not provide a separate opinion on
these matters.
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Impairment assessment of property, plant and
equipment (“PP&E”)

Refer to note 12 to the consolidated financial
statements and the accounting policies on page 92.

The carrying amount of the Group’s PP&E, which
principally comprised the non-current assets relating to
the Group’s four power plants, totalled RMB1,162
million as at 31 December 2016.

The Group recognised impairment of PP&E as at 31
December 2014 in the amount of RMB140 million as a
result of certain changes in respect of electricity tariff
policies applicable to the Group’s electricity generation
operations and the annual planned power generation
volume of the Group’s power plants from 2015.

Annually, management reassesses whether there are
changes in the key assumptions and estimates that
were adopted in the impairment assessment as at 31
December 2014 in order to determine whether
additional impairment is required or previously
recognised impairment should be reversed.

The four power plants operated by the Group have
been identified as four separate cash generating units
(“CGUs”) for impairment assessment purposes. The
recoverable amount of PP&E allocated to each CGU
was determined by management at the greater of the
value in use and the fair value less cost of disposal.
Management calculated the value in use of PP&E by
use of the discounted cash flow model which involves
the exercise of significant management judgement,
particularly in forecasting electricity tariffs, annual
power generation volumes, gross margins and natural
gas prices and in determining appropriate discount
rates.
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We identified assessing impairment of PP&E as a key EEBEME BERZENBETGH B

audit matter because the impairment assessments —HEREZEFE DTHREEERENR

prepared by management are complex and contain BFHEEEREYSEE TERAE @

certain critical judgements, which can be inherently ZEHEAEEB T EE M RATREXRR
uncertain and could be subject to management bias. EEEMNRR -

How the matter was addressed in our audit EEEEFRPEUNTEEZEEL

Our audit procedures to assess impairment of PP&E EEEYE BERRBRENEZER

included the following: BRENATEIE:

e evaluating management’s identification of CGUs s TEEREEURSELABMMNHEIRY
and the allocation of assets to each CGU and BEReEEENIEEEKRBRIAT
assessing the methodology adopted by S EAFHEEREEERERHERF
management in the impairment assessment P £% 49 B 73 0%

model, with reference to the requirements of the
prevailing accounting standards;

e comparing the most significant inputs used in the e BIWRREREBAFEANZEEN
discounted cash flow forecasts, including BABBEEE 2F%EE - FHX
electricity tariffs, annual power generation RAARER) BEZEHROBELEKE - &
volumes, gross margins and natural gas prices, ESHENTBEEREEHBTHE
with the historical performance of the power BRI RGETTH &

plants, financial budgets approved by the
directors and terms of future electricity supply as
agreed with local governments;

e engaging our internal valuation specialists to assist e ZEEFEZNIHEZERBEEFTE
us in assessing whether the discount rates RReREBANFAERANITRERS
applied in the discounted cash flow forecasts ERIT¥EMAREMNEE 2 A

were within the range adopted by other
companies in the same industry;

e  comparing the key assumptions included in e BLEFERENTRESRERAANLN
discounted cash flow forecasts prepared in the FEBREAXFENRFETLER - U
prior year with the current year’s performance to FEEFERRREREBANERE
assess how accurate the prior year’s discounted REFTENNEMNERESHNERRE
cash flow forecasts were and making enquiries of BEFEHABD: &

management as to the reasons for any significant
variations identified; and
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° obtaining from management sensitivity analyses of
the key assumptions adopted in the discounted
cash flow forecasts and assessing the impact of
changes in the key assumptions to the
conclusions reached in the impairment
assessment and whether there were any
indicators of management bias.

Assessment of going concern

Refer to note 2(b) to the consolidated financial
statements

At 31 December 2016, the Group had net current
liabilities of RMB401 million (which included cash and
cash equivalents of RMB121 million), total interest-
bearing borrowings of RMB720 million, shareholder’s
loan of RMB120 million and capital commitments of
RMB 5 million.

Based on projections of the Group’s profit and cash
inflows from operations and the anticipated ability of
the Group to obtain or re-new bank loans and obtain
financial support from an intermediate parent company
to finance its continuing operations, management
consider that the Group has adequate resources to
continue in operational existence for the foreseeable
future.

We identified the assessment of going concern as a
key audit matter because the Group has been in a net
current liabilities position since 2012 which has
increased the risk that the Group may not be able to
continue to operate as a going concern and because
the assessment of going concern is dependent upon
certain management assumptions and judgements, in
particular in relation to forecasting electricity tariffs,
annual power generation volumes, gross margins and
natural gas prices and in assessing the ability of the
Group to renew or obtain new bank facilities upon
expiry of the existing bank facilities.
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How the matter was addressed in our audit

Our audit procedures to assess the appropriateness of
management’s use of the going concern assumption in
the preparation of the consolidated financial statements
included the following:

o walking through the business planning process
and assessing the design, implementation and
operating effectiveness of management’s internal
controls over the assessment of going concern,
including preparing cash flow forecasts;

o comparing the future expected cash flows in
management’s cash flow forecast with the
Group’s business plan approved by the directors;

° comparing the available bank facilities and
arrangements with underlying documentation and
assessing the impact of any covenants and other
restrictive terms attached thereto;

o evaluating the key assumptions adopted by
management in the preparation of the cash flow
forecast, including electricity tariffs, annual power
generation volumes, gross margins and natural
gas prices by comparing these key assumptions
with the historical performance of the power
plants, financial budgets approved by the
directors and terms of future electricity supply as
agreed with local governments;

° comparing future expected cash flows with
historical data, assessing whether any variations
were consistent with our expectations based on
our understanding of the Group’s business and
considering the accuracy and reliability of past
cash flow forecasts made by management by
comparing them with the current year’s results;
and
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° assessing the sensitivities of the key assumptions
adopted by management in the going concern
assessment and considering whether
management had incorporated any bias in the
selection of such assumptions.

INFORMATION OTHER THAN THE
CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
AND AUDITOR’S REPORT THEREON

The directors are responsible for the other information.
The other information comprises all the information
included in the annual report, other than the
consolidated financial statements and our auditor’s
report thereon.

Our opinion on the consolidated financial statements
does not cover the other information and we do not
express any form of assurance conclusion thereon.

In connection with our audit of the consolidated
financial statements, our responsibility is to read the
other information and, in doing so, consider whether
the other information is materially inconsistent with the
consolidated financial statements or our knowledge
obtained in the audit or otherwise appears to be
materially misstated.

If, based on the work we have performed, we conclude
that there is a material misstatement of this other
information, we are required to report that fact. We
have nothing to report in this regard.
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INDEPENDENT AUDITOR’S REPORT
B BN S

RESPONSIBILITIES OF THE DIRECTORS FOR
THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL
STATEMENTS

The directors are responsible for the preparation of the
consolidated financial statements that give a true and
fair view in accordance with IFRSs issued by the IASB
and the disclosure requirements of the Hong Kong
Companies Ordinance and for such internal control as
the directors determine is necessary to enable the
preparation of consolidated financial statements that are
free from material misstatement, whether due to fraud
or error.

In preparing the consolidated financial statements, the
directors are responsible for assessing the Group’s
ability to continue as a going concern, disclosing, as
applicable, matters related to going concern and using
the going concern basis of accounting unless the
directors either intend to liquidate the Group or to
cease operations, or have no realistic alternative but to
do so.

The directors are assisted by the Audit Committee in
discharging their responsibilities for overseeing the
Group’s financial reporting process.

AUDITOR’S RESPONSIBILITIES FOR THE
AUDIT OF THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL
STATEMENTS

Our objectives are to obtain reasonable assurance
about whether the consolidated financial statements as
a whole are free from material misstatement, whether
due to fraud or error, and to issue an auditor’'s report
that includes our opinion. This report is made solely to
you, as a body, and for no other purpose. We do not
assume responsibility towards or accept liability to any
other person for the contents of this report.

B0 AMBER ENERGY LIMITED IR¥AGEIRERAF

EEANGEMBRREAENER

EXZRRAEREBEABRESFEAZESHMN
B BEREEIRBBRBGHINRER
ERBEERNANGAVBERER  UERE
ERREEGAYBHHRRLBNAMIES R
B UAE&S A I MR 8RR S8 R AT
SIZEE KRR ER AL -

EREEEVBRET ESTEAETHE
CEEEBEREEETENENRBEESRS
BECENEHEWMER RFERSEEDN
BEQGEEE RIBEEEHEEEBER
RELEE JPTEEENERTRERE
it o

EXEERZESENM TRETHERES
ESM B HRERENRME -

REBMRGESMBERENERER

EEZERRAGAMBRREBMERE
I 4 R BRFF S #8 AR TSI B E R SR AR R A 1
REAEARE AT EEBEREFERNKH
AR S - AR EEMERBRMEL - BRIt
SMERMM AR - BEM AR ARENAR -
HBEMEMALTBERABZEMEL -



Reasonable assurance is a high level of assurance but
is not a guarantee that an audit conducted in
accordance with HKSAs will always detect a material
misstatement when it exists. Misstatements can arise
from fraud or error and are considered material if,
individually or in the aggregate, they could reasonably
be expected to influence the economic decisions of
users taken on the basis of these consolidated financial
statements.

As part of an audit in accordance with HKSAs, we
exercise professional judgement and maintain
professional scepticism throughout the audit. We also:

o Identify and assess the risks of material
misstatement of the consolidated financial
statements, whether due to fraud or error, design
and perform audit procedures responsive to those
risks, and obtain audit evidence that is sufficient
and appropriate to provide a basis for our
opinion. The risk of not detecting a material
misstatement resulting from fraud is higher than
for one resulting from error, as fraud may involve

collusion, forgery, intentional omissions,
misrepresentations, or the override of internal
control.

° Obtain an understanding of internal control relevant
to the audit in order to design audit procedures
that are appropriate in the circumstances, but not
for the purpose of expressing an opinion on the
effectiveness of the Group’s internal control.

° Evaluate the appropriateness of accounting
policies used and the reasonableness of
accounting estimates and related disclosures
made by the directors.
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INDEPENDENT AUDITOR’S REPORT
B AR &

e Conclude on the appropriateness of the directors’ e NEFEFTHASTEEMNBELEREEN
use of the going concern basis of accounting HEMRBREMNGENEZRIRET
and, based on the audit evidence obtained, AR EEBREECERETEN

whether a material uncertainty exists related to
events or conditions that may cast significant
doubt on the Group’s ability to continue as a
going concern. If we conclude that a material
uncertainty exists, we are required to draw
attention in our auditor's report to the related
disclosures in the consolidated financial
statements or, if such disclosures are inadequate,
to modify our opinion. Our conclusions are based
on the audit evidence obtained up to the date of
our auditor’'s report. However, future events or
conditions may cause the Group to cease to
continue as a going concern.

Evaluate the overall presentation, structure and
content of the consolidated financial statements,
including the disclosures, and whether the
consolidated financial statements represent the
underlying transactions and events in a manner
that achieves fair presentation.

Obtain sufficient appropriate audit evidence
regarding the financial information of the entities
or business activities within the Group to express
an opinion on the consolidated financial
statements. We are responsible for the direction,
supervision and performance of the group audit.
We remain solely responsible for our audit
opinion.
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We communicate with the Audit Committee regarding, EEM(AEF e RilgErERRRERE
among other matters, the planned scope and timing of ARBEZERORESSEZBEZNINA
the audit and significant audit findings, including any SR ERNEATNE) HEZREZESHET
significant deficiencies in internal control that we B o

identify during our audit.
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We also provide the Audit Committee with a statement
that we have complied with relevant ethical
requirements regarding independence and
communicate with them all relationships and other
matters that may reasonably be thought to bear on our
independence and, where applicable, related
safeguards.

From the matters communicated with the Audit
Committee, we determine those matters that were of
most significance in the audit of the consolidated
financial statements of the current period and are
therefore the key audit matters. We describe these
matters in our auditor’s report unless law or regulation
precludes public disclosure about the matter or when,
in extremely rare circumstances, we determine that a
matter should not be communicated in our report
because the adverse consequences of doing so would
reasonably be expected to outweigh the public interest
benefits of such communication.

The engagement partner on the audit resulting in this
independent auditor’s report is Fung Ping Kwong.

KPMG
Certified Public Accountants

8th Floor, Prince’s Building
10 Chater Road
Central, Hong Kong

24 March 2017
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For the year ended 31 December 2016
BE—_T—NFL+_HA=+—HIFE

Note
B &
Revenue ... - S S
Operating expenses WEMX
Fuel consumption BRREE FE
Depreciation and amortisation TEREH
Repairs and maintenance HERRE
Personnel costs BT KA 5(ii)
Administrative expenses THRAX
Sales related taxes HEMBRE
Other operating expenses HE g
Profit from operations e
Finance income B U A
Finance expenses MR
Net finance costs B 75 P AN 558 5(i)
Other income B A 6
Profit before taxation P& Bt wi i F 5
Income tax P15 5% 7
Profit for the year 5E P i F
Attributable to: LT&FHEM:
Equity shareholders of the Company RN A HE R AR R
Non-controlling interests FEVE IR HE =
Profit for the year 5E Py itz Fl
Earnings per share BSREH
Basic (RMB) Y NUNCA::) 11
Diluted (RMB) HE(ARK) 11

The notes on pages 72 to 168 form part of these
financial statements. Details of dividends payable to
equity shareholders of the Company attributable to the
profit for the year are set out in note 22(d).
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2016
—E—x%
RMB’000
AR™F 5

279,173

(70,030)
(21,146)

(5,690)
(31,047)
(25,183)

(1,784)
(11,480)

112,813

570
(44,316)

(43,746)
1,694

70,761

(29,310)

41,451

41,703
(252)

41,451

0.091

0.091

2015
—E—FhEF
RMB’000
AREF T

389,631

110,164

2173
(57,911)

(55,738)
7,394

61,820
(18,441)
43,379
43,691
(312)

43,379

0.103

0.103

FET2E168E FTE M B UL F MK R K — &
Do RFRBANENAQAEEBRENRE
B R M FE22(d) ©




For the year ended 31 December 2016
BHE—_FT—NF+-_HA=+—HIFE

2016 2015

—T—RF i

Note RMB’000 RMB'000
Bt 5E IN-L B A ARETT

Profit for the year FE Rtk Fl 41,451 43,379

Other comprehensive income for the EERH b2 UL A
year (after tax and reclassification (¥ REH 9 E

adjustments): AEIE) : 10
ltems that may be reclassified HEgAENMsEE
subsequently to profit or loss: B&ErIER :
Exchange differences on translation BREBINFEA
of financial statements of overseas R e [R
subsidiaries =% (15,093) (13,176)
Total comprehensive income FRHE2EBNEE
for the year 30,203
Attributable to: UT&FHRE:
Equity shareholders of the Company ZN/NEIR ) g 30,515
Non-controlling interests R = (312)
Total comprehensive income FRE2EBNEE
for the year 30,203
The notes on pages 72 to 168 form part of these ET2E168E FTE M T R FM B ®RE —
financial statements. 7 e
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CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT

OF FINANCIAL POSITION

4R B AR R 3R

At 31 December 2016
RZE-—ANFF+ZH=+—H

2016 2015
—T—RF s
Note RMB’000 RMB’000
B =E ARE Tt PN S
Non-current assets ERBHEE

Property, plant and equipment Y BB R 12 1,161,922 1,170,829
Lease prepayments EEe 13 47,489 48,826
Deferred tax assets BEXERIBEE 7(ii) 7,739 5,725
Other non-current assets HiEmEEE 15 - 18,083
1,217,150 1,243,463

Current assets RBEE
Inventories 78 13,588 13,912
Trade and other receivables FEWE 5 Kk H b5k 1E 15 62,303 50,838
Pledged deposits [REEEEEEN 16 - 5,000
Cash and cash equivalents HERREEEY 17 120,582 150,012
196,473 219,762

Current liabilities RBEE
Shareholder’s loan RERER 18 120,367 —
Convertible bonds A % E 5 18 - 97,923
Interest-bearing borrowings TEEE 19 413,659 127,000
Trade and other payables ENES Kk HEMKIE 20 58,015 96,157
Current taxation BN HA R 18 5,453 2,577
597,494 323,657
Net current liabilities RENAEFHE (401,021) (103,895)
Total assets less current liabilities @EEBAHERE 816,129 1,139,568

The notes on pages 72 to 168 form part of these
financial statements.
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At 31 December 2016
RZFE—ANF+-H=+—H

2016 2015
=t N —TAfF
Note RMB’000 SRNEIVI=X0V)

B & ARE T PN SV

Non-current liabilities EREERE

Interest-bearing borrowings TEEE 19 306,500 653,405

Deferred revenue 5 JE UR 25 21 10,464 10,692

Deferred tax liabilities ELEHBBEERE 7 (i) 14,664 5,708
331,628 669,805

NET ASSETS BEZHE 484,501 469,763

CAPITAL AND RESERVES BEXRHEE

Share capital AR 22(b) 40,149 40,149

Reserves ke 443,764 428,774

Total equity attributable to equity A T]HEHKREES

shareholders of the Company Mg 483,913 468,923
Non-controlling interests FEIERRER 588 840
TOTAL EQUITY RS 484,501 469,763
Approved and authorised for issue by the board of KEFeRN _T—tF=A=-THELERE
directors on 24 March 2017. AT -

Wei Junyong Tse Chi Man
5 Rk it 7 3
Director Director
EBEE EF
The notes on pages 72 to 168 form part of these FT2E168E FTE M sE Bt E I R EX — 3
financial statements. e
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CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT

OF CHANGES IN EQUITY
GAERRDR

For the year ended 31 December 2016
BE T NFL+ _A=+—HIFEF

Balance at 1 January 2015 R-B-ZE-A-DH&H 36582 85057 24189 306883 35376 (2134 (80918) 405,035 1152 406,187
Changes in equity for 2015 E-LEHALEH

Profit for the year FRERN = = = = = = 43,691 43,691 (312 43379

Other comprehensive income Hit2EKA 10 = = = = = (13,176) = (13,176) - (13,176)
Total comprehensive income 2ARALE - - = = = (13,176) 43,691 30,515 (312 30,203
Issuance of new shares, net of BHR  ENRBTHAX

issuance expense 22(b)() 3,567 29,806 - - - o — 33,373 - 33,373
Appropriation to reserves EEYT 22(c)(v) = = = = 5,484 = (5,484) = = =

Balance at 31 December 2015 R-T-%%

+ZAZt+-BH&H 40,149 114,863 24189 306,883 40,860 (15,310) (42,711) 468,923 840 469,763
The notes on pages 72 to 168 form part of these FET2E168E FTEA M T AUt F M B wMK —
financial statements. )

e~
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For the year ended 31 December 2016
BHE—_FT—NF+-_HA=+—HIFE

Attributable to equity shareholders of the Company
FATRBRRER

Statutory Non-
Share Share Capital Merger surplus Translation Accumulated controlling Total
capital  premium reserve reserve reserve reserve losses  Subtotal interests equity
EERS k2R
k*x RHRE BEEE SHESR i EREE RitBHR It #BE  ARR
Note RMB’000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB’000 RMB’000  RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000
DGR ARETT ARETE ARETRT ARETRT ARKTT ARETR ARNTR ARETR ARETR ARETR

Balance at 1 January 2016 RZF-~E-R-BHER 40,149 114,863 24,189 306,883 40,860 (15,310) (42,7111) 468,923 840 469,763
Changes in equity for 2016 CE-NEHAED
Profit for the year FREF - 4,703 41,703 (252) 4,451
Other comprehensive income Hi2EBA 10 (15,093) - (15,093) - (15,093)
Total comprehensive income FRAEKALE (15,093) 41,703 26,610 (252) 26,358

Dividends approved in respect of ~ E#t AR EFRE
previous year 22(0)i) (11,620) - (11,620) (11,620)
Appropriation to reserves BEGHE 22(c)(v) - (6,909) - -

Balance at 31 December 2016 R=Z—7%E
+ZR=+-HH&ER 103,243 24,189 306,883 (30,403) (7,917) 483,913 588 484,501

7T2E168A FTH M st At E B 3h &k — 26

The notes on pages 72 to 168 form part of these
financial statements.
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CONSOLIDATED

CASH FLOW STATEMENT
wZRA Iﬁ:@ 1L E%:Z

For the year ended 31 December 2016
BE-—F—NFF+_A=1+—HIFE

2016 2015

- Lt T HF

Note RMB’000 RMB’000
Bt AR T N R

Cash flows from operating KETDHRRRERE

activities
Profit for the year F N g 43,379
Adjustments for: KFHEEE

Depreciation of property, plant, and %% - BELRXREITE

equipment 5(ii) 19,809 24,722

Amortisation of lease prepayments ENHESEHE 5(Gii) 1,337 1,337

Net finance costs B 75 K AN 5 =R 5(i 43,746 55,738

Net loss on disposal of property, HEME  BEKERE

plant and equipment & B 5(Gii) 11,503 4,561

Tax expense RIERX 7() 29,310 18,441
Changes in working capital LEBESEH 147,156 148,178
Decrease/(increase) in inventories FERL (G M) 326 (1,512)
Decrease in trade and other FEW B 5 K H fth 5 IE R

receivables 9,933 61,698
Decrease in trade and other payables S E 5 & H fib 538 5 > (17,539) (151,365)
Decrease in pledged deposit BT ROR 5,000 —
Cash generated from operating KEFTHRBRS

activities 144,876 56,999
Interest paid =ENRINS (31,266) (53,978)
Income taxes paid =PI TR (19,492) (15,328)
Net cash generated from/(used in) && ;EEFE,(FFH)

operating activities R&FHE (12,307)
The notes on pages 72 to 168 form part of these FE1BEFTHM T ARLEEMBRE — I
financial statements. 7
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For the year ended 31 December 2016
BHE—_FT—NF+-_HA=+—HIFE

2016 2015
ZT - FE ki
Note RMB’000 RMB’000
Bt 2 IN-L-Eb A ARETT
Cash flows from investing BETHRBBRERE
activities
Interest received 2 B 5(i) 570 1,737
Payment for purchase of property, BEWE  BE
plant and equipment REER R (43,498) (28,750)
Settlement of term deposits BN TEHER - 20,000
Net cash used in investing BETEHFARSEHE
cactivities e (42,928) u— (r013).
Cash flows from financing METHHRBRAERE
activities
Proceeds from shares issued, net of B2 175 P15 ;B
issuance expense (MBRETHRX) 33,373
Proceeds from interest-bearing FFEEESHRIE
borrowings 63,000 184,555
Repayment of interest-bearing BEFEEER
borrowings (132,000) (237,095)
Decrease in pledged deposits EE B FRORLD - 40,000
Dividends paid to equity shareholders 122 &) #E %5 A% B2 Y
of the Company % B (11,620) =
Net cash (used in)/generated from R & ;EEI(EFTA),
__financing activites _______________FiRB&®F#HE (80,620) [ 20,838 .
Net (decrease)/increase in cash RERRESZEY
and cash equivalents (L) HEmiEE (29,430) 1,513
Cash and cash equivalents at R—A—HWRER
1 January HeXEYD 150,012 148,499
Cash and cash equivalents at R+=A=+-—88
31 December RERBFEEED 120,582 150,012
The notes on pages 72 to 168 form part of these F2E168E FTE M s AL E O R K — 2P
financial statements. e
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
B 75 e 2= B o

1

REPORTING ENTITY AND BACKGROUND
INFORMATION

Amber Energy Limited (“the Company”) was
incorporated in the Cayman Islands as an
exempted company with limited liability on 8
September 2008 under the Companies Law, Cap
22 (Law 3 of 1961, as consolidated and revised)
of the Cayman Islands. The Company’s shares
were listed on the Main Board of The Stock
Exchange of Hong Kong Limited (the “Stock
Exchange”) on 10 July 2009 (the “Listing”).

The consolidated financial statements for the year
ended 31 December 2016 of the Company
comprise the Company and its subsidiaries
(together referred to as the “Group”). The principal
activities of the Group are the development,
operation and management of power plants.

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES

(a) Statement of compliance

These financial statements have been
prepared in accordance with all applicable
International Financial Reporting Standards
(IFRSs), which collective term includes all
applicable individual International Financial
Reporting Standards (IFRSs), International
Accounting Standards (IASs) and
Interpretations issued by the International
Accounting Standards Board (“IASB”) and
the disclosure requirements of the Hong
Kong Companies Ordinance. These financial
statements also comply with the applicable
disclosure provisions of the Rules Governing
the Listing of Securities on the Stock
Exchange of Hong Kong Limited. Significant
accounting policies adopted by the Group
are disclosed below.
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2

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(Continued)

(a)

(b)

Statement of compliance (Continued)

The |ASB has issued certain new and
revised IFRSs that are first effective or
available for early adoption for the current
accounting period of the Group. Note 2(g)
provides information on any changes in
accounting policies resulting from initial
application of these developments to the
extent that they are relevant to the Group
for the current and prior accounting periods
reflected in these financial statements.

Basis of preparation of the financial
statements

The measurement basis used in the
preparation of the consolidated financial
statements is the historical cost basis.

The financial report has been prepared on
the basis that the Group will continue to
operate throughout the next twelve months
as a going concern. The Group’s current
liabilities exceeded its current assets by
RMB401,021,000 as at 31 December 2016
(31 December 2015: RMB103,895,000).
Based on future projection of the Group’s
profit and cash inflows from operations and
the anticipated ability of the Group to obtain
continued bank loans and financial support
from an intermediate parent company,
Shanghai Pu-Xing Energy Limited (“Puxing
Energy”), to finance its continuing operations
for the year ending 31 December 2017,
management believe that the Group has

adequate resources to continue in
operational existence for the foreseeable
future.
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
B 75 e 2= B o

2

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(Continued)

(c)

(d)

Functional and presentation currency

These consolidated financial statements are
presented in Renminbi (“RMB”) which is the
functional currency of the Group’s
subsidiaries located in the PRC. All financial
information presented in RMB has been
rounded to the nearest thousands, except
when otherwise indicated. The functional
currency of the Company and its
subsidiaries in Hong Kong is Hong Kong
dollar (“HKD”).

Use of judgements and estimates

The preparation of the consolidated financial
statements in conformity with IFRSs requires
management to make judgements, estimates
and assumptions that affect the application
of policies and reported amounts of assets,
liabilities, income and expenses. The
estimates and associated assumptions are
based on historical experience and various
other factors that are believed to be
reasonable under the circumstances, the
results of which form the basis of making
the judgements about carrying values of
assets and liabilities that are not readily
apparent from other sources. Actual results
may differ from these estimates.

The estimates and underlying assumptions
are reviewed on an ongoing basis. Revisions
to accounting estimates are recognised in
the period in which the estimates is revised
if the revision affects only that period, or in
the period of the revision and future periods
if the revision affects both current and future
periods.
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2

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES

(Continued)

(d) Use of judgements and estimates
(Continued)

Notes 7, 18 and 23 contain information

about

the assumptions and their risk factors

relating to deferred tax assets and liabilities,
convertible bonds and the fair value of
financial instruments. Other key sources of
estimation uncertainty are as follows:

Impairment losses for trade and other
receivables are assessed and provided
pased on the management’s regular
review of ageing analysis and
evaluation of collectability. A
considerable level of judgment is
exercised by the management when
assessing the credit worthiness and
past collection history of each
individual customer. Any increase or
decrease in the impairment losses for
bad and doubtful debts would affect
profit or loss in future years.

Property, plant and equipment (other
than major generator equipment) are
depreciated on a straight-line basis
over the estimated useful lives, after
taking into account the estimated
residual value. Major generator
equipment which can be identified in
relation to specific production process
are depreciated by reference to the
annual power generation volume and
the installed production capacity of
these generator equipment.
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
B 75 e 2= B o

2

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES

(Continued)

(d) Use of judgements and estimates
(Continued)
(ii) Depreciation (Continued)

(iii)

Management reviews annually the
installed production capacity of major
generator equipment, and the useful
life of an asset and its residual value, if
any. The depreciation expense for
future periods is adjusted if there are
significant changes from previous
estimates.

Impairment of property, plant and
equipment

The Group tests whether property,
plant and equipment suffered any
impairment whenever an impairment
indication exists. In accordance with
note 2(n), an impairment loss is
recognised for the amount by which
the carrying amount of the asset
exceeds its recoverable amount. It is
reasonably possible, based on existing
knowledge, that outcomes within the
next financial period that are different
from assumptions could require a
material adjustment to the carrying
amount of property, plant and
equipment.
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2

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(Continued)

(e)

(f)

Changes in accounting policies

The IASB has issued a number of
amendments to IFRSs that are first effective
for the current accounting period of the
Group. None of these developments have
had a material effect on how the Group’s
results and financial position for the current
or prior periods have been prepared or
presented.

The Group has not applied any new
standard or interpretation that is not yet
effective for the current accounting period.

Subsidiaries and non-controlling
interests

Subsidiaries are entities controlled by the
Group. The Group controls an entity when it
is exposed, or has rights, to variable returns
from its involvement with the entity and has
the ability to affect those returns through its
power over the entity. When assessing
whether the Group has power, only
substantive rights (held by the Group and
other parties) are considered.

An investment in a subsidiary is
consolidated into the consolidated financial
statements from the date that control
commences until the date that control
ceases. Intra-group balances, transactions
and cash flows and any unrealised profits
arising from intra-group transactions are
eliminated in full in preparing the
consolidated financial statements. Unrealised
losses resulting from intra-group
transactions are eliminated in the same way
as unrealised gains but only to the extent
that there is no evidence of impairment.
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
B 75 e 2= B o

2

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(Continued)

(f)

Subsidiaries and non-controlling
interests (Continued)

Non-controlling interests represent the equity
in a subsidiary not attributable directly or
indirectly to the Company, and in respect of
which the Group has not agreed any
additional terms with the holders of those
interests which would result in the Group as
a whole having a contractual obligation in
respect of those interests that meets the
definition of a financial liability. For each
business combination, the Group can elect
to measure any non-controlling interests
either at fair value or at the non-controlling
interests’ proportionate share of the
subsidiary’s net identifiable assets.

Non-controlling interests are presented in the
consolidated statement of financial position
within equity, separately from equity
attributable to the equity shareholders of the
Company. Non-controlling interests in the
results of the Group are presented on the
face of the consolidated statement of profit
or loss and the consolidated statement of
profit or loss and other comprehensive
income as an allocation of the total profit or
loss and total comprehensive income for the
year between non-controlling interests and
the equity shareholders of the Company.

Changes in the Group’s interests in a
subsidiary that do not result in a loss of
control are accounted for as equity
transactions, whereby adjustments are made
to the amounts of controlling and non-
controlling interests within consolidated
equity to reflect the change in relative
interests, but no adjustments are made to
goodwill and no gain or loss is recognised.
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2

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(Continued)

(f)

(9)

Subsidiaries and non-controlling
interests (Continued)

When the Group loses control of a
subsidiary, it is accounted for as a disposal
of the entire interest in that subsidiary, with
a resulting gain or loss being recognised in
profit or loss. Any interest retained in that
former subsidiary at the date when control
is lost is recognised at fair value and this
amount is regarded as the fair value on
initial recognition of a financial asset or,
when appropriate, the cost on initial
recognition of an investment in an associate
or joint venture.

In the Company’s statement of financial
position, an investment in a subsidiary is
stated at cost less impairment losses (see
note 2(n)).

Goodwill
Goodwill represents the excess of

()  the aggregate of the fair value of the
consideration transferred, the amount
of any non-controlling interest in the
acquiree and the fair value of the
Group’s previously held equity interest
in the acquiree; over

(i) the net fair value of the acquiree’s
identifiable assets and liabilities
measured as at the acquisition date.

When (i) is greater than (i), then this excess
is recognised immediately in profit or loss as
a gain on a bargain purchase.
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
B 75 e 2= B o

2

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(Continued)

(9)

(h)

Goodwill (Continued)

Goodwill is stated at cost less accumulated
impairment losses. Goodwill arising on a
business combination is allocated to each
cash-generating unit (“CGU”), or groups of
CGU, that is expected to benefit from the
synergies of the combination and is tested
annually for impairment (see note 2(n)).

On disposal of a CGU during the year, any
attributable amount of purchased goodwill is
included in the calculation of the profit or
loss on disposal.

Foreign currency
(i) Foreign currency transactions

Transactions in foreign currencies are
translated into the respective functional
currencies of Group companies at
exchange rates at the dates of the
transactions.

Monetary assets and liabilities
denominated in foreign currencies are
translated to the functional currency at
the exchange rate at the reporting
date. Non-monetary assets and
liabilities that are measured at fair
value in a foreign currency are
translated into the functional currency
at the exchange rate when the fair
value was determined. Non-monetary
items that are measured based on
historical cost in a foreign currency are
translated at the exchange rate as the
date of the transaction. Foreign
currency differences are generally
recognised in profit or loss.
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
75 = M oE

2  SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES 2 BEARGFTEER#E)
(Continued)
(h) Foreign currency (Continued) (h) Sh¥s(&)
(i)  Foreign currency transactions (i) IEXZE)

(Continued)
However, foreign currency differences N MEATREESED
arising from the translation of the SNEEERR N A b 2 E Y ARE
following items are recognised in other 7

comprehensive income:

— available-for-sale equity —  AHHERAKEE CRE
investments (except on BRAN - ERE M2 EIK
impairment, in which case foreign A RBINE ZFRE
currency differences that have NEEER)

been recognised in other
comprehensive income are
reclassified to profit or loss);

— a financial liability designated as — WEARER  EBERIE
a hedge of the net investment in INEIEIFIRE ZE AT
a foreign operation to the extent BENEmasE &

that the hedge is effective; and

—  qualifying cash flow hedges to the — WHEAER EEEHR
extent the hedges are effective. EmEHPIA-
(i) Foreign operations (i) BIIEFF

The assets and liabilities of foreign BINEBNEERAB(REE
operations, including goodwill and fair WHELENEERATE
value adjustments arising on FAE)RBEAHNERHRE
acquisition, are translated into RMB at RBARE - JWINEBA KX
exchange rates at the reporting date. ERXSGANEXZBREARAR
The income and expenses of foreign ¥ o

operations are translated to RMB at
exchange rates at the dates of the
transactions.
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
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2

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(Continued)

(h)

Foreign currency (Continued)

(ii)

Foreign operations (Continued)

Foreign currency differences are
recognised in other comprehensive
income and accumulated in the
translation reserve, except to the
extent that the translation difference is
allocated to non-controlling interests.

When a foreign operation is disposed
of in its entirety or partially such that
control, significant influence or joint
control is lost, the cumulative amount
in the translation reserve related to that
foreign operation is reclassified to profit
or loss as part of the gain or loss on
disposal. If the Group disposes of part
of its interest in a subsidiary but
retains control, then the relevant
proportion of the cumulative amount is
reattributed to non-controlling interests.
When the Group disposes of only part
of an associate or joint venture while
retaining significant influence or joint
control, the relevant proportion of the
cumulative amount is reclassified to
profit or loss.
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2

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(Continued)

(i)

Financial instruments

The Group initially recognises loans
and receivables issued on the date
when they are originated. All other
financial assets and financial liabilities
are initially recognised on the trade
date.

The Group derecognises a financial
asset when the contractual rights to
the cash flows from the asset expire,
or it transfers the rights to receive the
contractual cash flows in a transaction
in which substantially all of the risks
and rewards of ownership of the
financial asset are transferred, or it
neither transfers nor retains
substantially all of the risks and
rewards of ownership and does not
retain control over the transferred
asset. Any interest in such
derecognised financial assets that is
created or retained by the Group is
recognised as a separate asset or
liability.

The Group derecognises a financial
liability when its contractual obligations
are discharged or cancelled, or expire.

Financial assets and financial liabilities
are offset and the net amount
presented in the statement of financial
position when, and only when, the
Group currently has a legal
enforceable right to offset the amounts
and intends either to settle them on a
net basis or to realise the asset and
settle the liability simultaneously.
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
B 75 e 2= B o

2 SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(Continued)

(i) Financial instruments (Continueqd)

(i)

(iii)

(iv)

Non-derivative financial assets —
measurement

The Group has the following non-
derivative financial assets: loans and
receivables.

Loans and receivables

These assets are initially measured at
fair value plus any directly attributable
transaction costs. Subsequent to initial
recognition, they are measured at
amortised cost using the effective
interest method.

Non-derivative financial liabilities
— measurement

Non-derivative financial liabilities are
initially measured at fair value less any
directly attributable transaction costs.
Subsequent to initial recognition, these
liabilities are measured at amortised
cost using the effective interest
method.

Share capital
Ordinary shares

Incremental costs directly attributable
to the issue of ordinary shares are
recognized as a deduction from equity.
Income tax relating to transaction
costs of an equity transaction is
accounted for in accordance with
IAS12.
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2

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(Continued)

(i)

Financial instruments (Continued)

Convertible bonds that can be
converted to equity share capital at the
option of the holder, where the number
of shares that would be issued on
conversion and the value of the
consideration that would be received at
that time do not vary, are accounted
for as compound financial instruments
which contain both a liability
component and an equity component.

At initial recognition the liability
component of the convertible bonds is
measured as the present value of the
future interest and principal payments,
discounted at the market rate of
interest applicable at the time of initial
recognition to similar liabilities that do
not have a conversion option. Any
excess of proceeds over the amount
initially recognised as the liability
component is recognised as the equity
component. Transaction costs that
relate to the issue of a compound
financial instrument are allocated to the
liability and equity components in
proportion to the allocation of
proceeds.

The liability component is subsequently
carried at amortised cost. The interest
expense recognised in profit or loss on
the liability component is calculated
using the effective interest method. The
equity component is recognised in the
capital reserve until either the bond is
converted or redeemed.
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
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2

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(Continued)

(i) Financial instruments (Continueqd)

()

Convertible bonds (Continued)

If the bond is converted, the capital
reserve, together with the carrying
amount of the liability component at
the time of conversion, is transferred to
share capital and share premium as
consideration for the shares issued. If
the bond is redeemed, the capital
reserve is released directly to retained
profits.

(i) Property, plant and equipment

(i)

(ii)

Recognition and measurement

[tems of property, plant and equipment
are measured at cost, which includes
capitalised borrowing costs, less
accumulated depreciation and any
accumulated impairment losses (see
note 2(n)).

If significant parts of an item of
property, plant and equipment have
different useful lives, then they are
accounted for as separate items (major
components) of property, plant and
equipment.

Any gain or loss on disposal of an
item of property, plant and equipment
is recognised in profit or loss.

Subsequent expenditure

Subsequent expenditure is capitalised
only if it is probable that the future
economic benefits associated with the
expenditure will flow to the Group.
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
75 = M oE

2  SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES 2 EXREFHEXM#AE)
(Continued)
(i) Property, plant and equipment () VE -BERREE)
(Continued)

(i) T E

(iij) Depreciation

Depreciation is calculated to write off
the cost of items of property, plant
and equipment less their estimated
residual values using the straight-line
basis method over their estimated
useful lives, and is generally
recognised in profit or loss. Leased
assets are depreciated over the shorter
of the lease term and their useful lives
unless it is reasonably certain that the
Group will obtain ownership by the end
of the lease term. Land is not
depreciated.

Major generator equipment which can
be identified in relation to specific
production process is depreciated by
reference to the installed production
capacity and the annual power
generation volume of these generator
equipment, since this most closely
reflects the expected pattern of
consumption of the future economic
benefits embodied in the assets.
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2

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(Continued)

1)

(k)

Property, plant and equipment
(Continued)

(iii) Depreciation (Continued)
The estimated useful lives and installed
production capacity of significant items

of property, plant and equipment for
current and comparative periods are as

follows:
Buildings and plants 30 years
Major generator 80,000—
equipment 120,000
hours
Other machinery 5-32 years

Motor vehicles, furniture, 5-10 years
fixtures, equipment and
others

The annual power generation volume
of the Group’s power plants is
governed by the relevant government
authorities and may vary from period
to period. Depreciation methods, useful
lives, installed production capacity and
residual values are reviewed at each
reporting date and adjusted if
appropriate.

Lease prepayments

Lease prepayments in the consolidated
statement of financial position represent the
cost of land use rights paid to PRC
government authorities. Lease prepayments
are carried at cost less accumulated
amortisation and impairment losses (see
note 2(n)). Amortisation is charged to profit
or loss on a straight-line basis over the
respective periods of the rights.
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2

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(Continued)

U]

(m)

Leased assets

Leases of property, plant and equipment
that transfer to the Group substantially all of
the risks and rewards of ownership are
classified as finance leases. The leased
assets are measured initially at an amount
equal to the lower of their fair value and the
present value of the minimum lease
payments. Subsequent to initial recognition,
the assets are accounted for in accordance
with the accounting policy applicable to that
asset.

Assets held under other leases are
classified as operating leases and are not
recognised in the Group’s consolidated
statement of financial position.

Inventories

Inventories are measured at the lower of
cost and net realisable value. The cost of
inventories is based on the first-in, first-out
principle, and comprises all costs of
purchase, costs of conversion and other
costs incurred in bringing the inventories to
their present location and condition. In the
case of manufactured inventories and work
in progress, cost includes an appropriate
share of production overheads based on
normal operating capacity.

Net realisable value is the estimated selling
price in the ordinary course of business less
the estimated costs of completion and
estimated cost necessary to make the sale.
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2

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(Continued)

(m)

(n)

Inventories (Continued)

When inventories are sold, the carrying
amount of those inventories is recognised as
an expense in the period in which the
related revenue is recognised. The amount
of any write-down of inventories to net
realisable value and all losses of inventories
are recognised as an expense in the period
the write-down or loss occurs. The amount
of any reversal of any write-down of
inventories is recognised as a reduction in
the amount of inventories recognised as an
expense in the period in which the reversal
OoCCurs.

Impairment
(i) Non-derivative financial assets

Financial assets not classified as at fair
value through profit or loss, including
an interest in an equity-accounted
investee, are assessed at each
reporting date to determine whether
there is objective evidence of
impairment.
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
75 = M oE

2  SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES 2 BEARGFTEER#E)
(Continued)
(n) Impairment (Continued) (n) WEE)
(i) Non-derivative financial assets () HGELHEEE)
(Continued)
Objective evidence that financial assets ETERmEERENTEE
are impaired includes: BEeE:

o default or delinquency by a
debtor;

o restructuring of an amount due to
the Group on terms that the
Group would not consider
otherwise;

o indications that a debtor or issuer
will enter bankruptcy;

° adverse changes in the payment
status of borrowers or issuers;

o the disappearance of an active
market for a security because of
financial difficulties; or

. observable data indicating that
there is a measurable decrease in
the expected cash flows from a
group of financial assets.
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2

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(Continued)

(n)

Impairment (Continued)

(i)

92 AMBER ENERGY LIMITED %3

Non-derivative financial assets
(Continued)

Financial assets measured at
amortised cost

The Group considers evidence of
impairment for these assets at both an
individual asset and a collective level.
All individually significant assets are
individually assessed for impairment.
Those found not to be impaired are
then collectively assessed for any
impairment that has been incurred but
not yet individually identified. Assets
that are not individually significant are
collectively assessed for impairment.
Collective assessment is carried out by
grouping together assets with similar
risk characteristics.

In assessing collective impairment, the
Group uses historical information on
the timing of recoveries and the
amount of loss incurred, and makes an
adjustment if current economic and
credit conditions are such that the
actual losses are likely to be greater or
lesser than suggested by historical
trends.
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2  SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES 2 EBEXRIGHBERE)
(Continued)
(n) Impairment (Continued) (n) BIE(E)
Financial assets measured at REBERASTENEEE
amortised cost (Continued) (#&)

An impairment loss is calculated as the
difference between an asset’s carrying
amount and the present value of the
estimated future cash flows discounted
at the asset’s original effective interest
rate. Losses are recognised in profit or
loss and reflected in an allowance
account. When the Group considers
that there are no realistic prospects of
recovery of the asset, the relevant
amounts are written off. If the amount
of impairment loss subsequently
decreases and the decrease can be
related objectively to an event
occurring after the impairment was
recognised, then the previously
recognised impairment loss is reversed
through profit or loss.

At each reporting date, the Group
reviews the carrying amounts of its
non-financial assets (other than
inventories and deferred tax assets) to
determine whether there is any
indication of impairment. If any such
indication exists, then the asset’s
recoverable amount is estimated.
Goodwill is tested annually for
impairment.
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2

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(Continued)

(n)

Impairment (Continued)

(ii)

94 AMBER ENERGY LIMITED %3

Non-financial assets (Continued)

For impairment testing, assets are
grouped together into the smallest
group of assets that generates cash
inflows from continuing use that are
largely independent of the cash inflows
of other assets or CGUs. Goodwill
arising from a business combination is
allocated to CGUs or groups of CGUs
that are expected to benefit from the
synergies of the combination.

The recoverable amount of an assets
or CGU is the greater of its value in
use and its fair value less costs to sell.
Value in use is based on the estimated
future cash flows, discounted to their
present value using a pre-tax discount
rate that reflects current market
assessments of the time value of
money and the risks specific to the
asset or CGU.

An impairment loss is recognised if the
carrying amount of an asset or CGU
exceeds its recoverable amount.

Impairment losses are recognised in
profit or loss. They are allocated first to
reduce the carrying amount of any
goodwill allocated to the CGU, and
then to reduce the carrying amounts of
the other assets in the CGU on a pro
rata basis.
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
75 = M oE

2  SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES 2 BARETEHEG®E)
(Continued)
(n) Impairment (Continued) (n) WEE)
(i) Non-financial assets (Continued) (i) LHEEE)

An impairment loss in respect of FENBEBSETTEE -
goodwill is not reversed. For other HEMEEMS  BEEE
assets, an impairment loss is reversed FEENBARRKILEER
only to the extent that the asset’s BEEBEmMEECHREE
carrying amount does not exceed the (BEH0BRITESEE) 7 A& El
carrying amount that would have been BEREE -

determined, net of depreciation or
amortisation, if no impairment loss had
been recognised.

(i) Interim financial reporting and (i) P B BY 75 & R T (E

impairment

Under the Rules Governing the Listing BRBEEABEISZMEBERA
of Securities on the Stock Exchange of AFEHLEMHAA - AEBEAK
Hong Kong Limited, the Group is PR B B & 5t 2E Bl E5345% A HA
required to prepare an interim financial R ERTRFEEE @A
report in compliance with IAS 34, AREFHMBRE - NP
Interim financial reporting, in respect of HFEER  AEEEFATK
the first six months of the financial FEHEBMEANAERR
year. At the end of the interim period, BEAH BRRBEOZELE -

the Group applies the same
impairment testing, recognition, and
reversal criteria as it would at the end
of the financial year.
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2 SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(Continued)

(n) Impairment (Continued)

(iii) Interim financial reporting and

impairment (Continued)

Impairment losses recognised in an
interim period in respect of goodwill,
available-for-sale equity securities and
unquoted equity securities carried at
cost are not reversed in a subsequent
period. This is the case even if no
loss, or a smaller loss, would have
been recognised had the impairment
been assessed only at the end of the
financial year to which the interim
period relates. Consequently, if the fair
value of an available-for-sale equity
security increases in the remainder of
the annual period, or in any other
period subsequently, the increase is
recognised in other comprehensive
income and not profit or loss.

(o) Employee benefits

()

Short-term employee benefits
and contributions to defined
contribution retirement plans

Salaries, annual bonuses, paid annual
leave, contributions to defined
contribution retirement plans and the
cost of non-monetary benefits are
accrued in the year in which the
associated services are rendered by
employees. Where payment or
settlement is deferred and the effect
would be material, these amounts are
stated at their present values.

96 AMBER ENERGY LIMITED IRIAGEIRERAF

2 EXEFEE@E

(n) BIEE)
(i) P RIEL 5 &R (E (E)

R EE - AT ERA
7& 77 MR RS BR ) R R (B
P AN 58 25 P B 520 RO R (B &S 18
TERrHERBERERE - BIfE
ERZTHEBNYBFE
A5 B B Y 4R (B I R 2R
HEBBRXERRDESE -
IAGEE - Bt f&a]#
& BUR E 758 2 B R 8
TFEEHEAIEREME M
HAREAE o0 - BIRZIZ AN EH A
2HEBAMIFBRZARER -

() EEHER

()

42 B & S 78 FIl R 7 87 4 7
Btk 51 & #E 5

e FRIEAL BFFR-
E R PR KRG &R R R
IFEEEMMAENER -
R EEREBBREHNF
WRERR o fid ST B B B K
RERELCMEFZEEKN
ZETHBRERETR -



2

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(Continued)

(o)

(p)

Employee benefits (Continued)

Pursuant to the relevant laws and
regulations of the PRC, employees of
the Group participate in the social
insurance system established and
managed by government organisations.
The Group makes social insurance
contributions, including contributions to
basic pension insurance, basic medical
insurance, unemployment insurance,
work-related injury insurance, maternity
insurance and etc., as well as
contributions to housing fund, at the
applicable benchmarks and rates
stipulated by the government for the
benefit of its employees. The social
insurance and housing fund
contributions are recognised as part of
the cost of assets or charged to profit
or loss on an accrual basis.

Provisions and contingent liabilities

Provisions are recognised for liabilities of
uncertain timing or amount when the Group
or the Company has a legal or constructive
obligation arising as a result of a past event,
it is probable that an outflow of economic
benefits will be required to settle the
obligation and a reliable estimate can be
made. Where the time value of money is
material, provisions are stated at the present
value of the expenditure expected to settle
the obligation.
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2

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(Continued)

(p)

(q)

Provisions and contingent liabilities
(Continued)

Where it is not probable that an outflow of
economic benefits will be required, or the
amount cannot be estimated reliably, the
obligation is disclosed as a contingent
liability, unless the probability of outflow of
economic benefits is remote. Possible
obligations, whose existence will only be
confirmed by the occurrence or non-
occurrence of one or more future events are
also disclosed as contingent liabilities unless
the probability of outflow of economic
benefits is remote.

Revenue

Revenue from sales of electricity is
recognised upon the transmission of electric
power to the power grid companies, as
determined based on the volume of electric
power transmitted and the applicable fixed
tariff rates agreed with the respective
electric power grid companies periodically.

Capacity tariff revenue is recognised on a
time-apportioned basis by reference to the
installed production capacity of individual
power plants and the relevant capacity tariff
rates.
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2

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(Continued)

(r)

(s)

(t)

Government grants

Government grants are recognised in the
statement of financial position initially when
there is reasonable assurance that they will
be received and the Group will comply with
the conditions attaching to them. Grants that
compensate the Group for expenses
incurred are recognised as income in profit
or loss on a systematic basis in the same
periods in which the expenses are incurred.
Grants that compensate the Group for the
cost of an asset are initially recognised as
deferred income at fair value and then
recognised in profit or loss as other income
on a systematic basis over the useful life of
the asset.

Lease payments

Payment made under operating leases are
recognised in profit or loss on a straight-line
basis over the term of the lease. Lease
incentives received are recognised as an
integral part of the total lease expense, over
the term of the lease.

Finance income and finance costs

Finance income comprises interest income
and foreign currency gains. Interest income
is recognised as it accrues in profit or loss,
using the effective interest method.

Finance costs comprise interest expense on
borrowings, bank charges and foreign
currency losses and unwinding of the
discount on provisions. Borrowing costs that
are not directly attributable to the
acquisition, construction or production of a
qualifying asset are recognised in profit or
loss using the effective interest method.
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2

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(Continued)

®

(u)

Finance income and finance costs
(Continued)

Foreign currency gains and losses on
financial assets and financial liabilities are
reported on a net basis as either finance
income or finance cost depending on
whether foreign currency movements are in
a net gain or net loss position.

Income Tax

Income tax expense comprises current and
deferred tax. It is recognised in profit or loss
except to the extent that it relates to items
recognised directly in equity or in other
comprehensive income.

(i) Current tax

Current tax comprises the expected
tax payable or receivable on the
taxable income or loss for the year
and any adjustment to the tax payable
or receivable in respect of previous
years. The amount of current tax
payable or receivable is the best
estimate of the tax amount expected
to be paid or received that reflects
uncertainty related to income taxes, if
any. It is measured using tax rates
enacted or substantively enacted at the
reporting date. Current tax also
includes any tax arising from
dividends.

Current tax assets and liabilities are
offset only if certain criteria are met.
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
75 = M oE

2 SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(Continued)

(u) Income Tax (Continued)
(ii) Deferred tax

Deferred tax is recognised in respect
of temporary differences between the
carrying amounts of assets and
liabilities for financial reporting
purposes and the amounts used for
taxation purposes. Deferred tax is not
recognised for:

o temporary differences on the
initial recognition of assets or
liabilities in a transaction that is
not a business combination and
that affects neither accounting
nor taxable profit or loss;

° temporary differences related to
investments in subsidiaries to the
extent that the Group is able to
control the timing of the reversal
of the temporary differences and
it is probable that they will not
reverse in the foreseeable future;
and

o taxable temporary differences
arising on the initial recognition of
goodwill.
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2

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(Continued)

(u)

Income Tax (Continued)

(ii)

Deferred tax (Continued)

Deferred tax assets are recognised for
unused tax losses, unused tax credits
and deductible temporary differences
to the extent that it is probable that
future taxable profits will be available
against which they can be used.
Future taxable profits are determined
based on business plans for individual
subsidiaries in the Group and the
reversal of temporary difference.
Deferred tax assets are reviewed at
each reporting date and are reduced
to the extent that it is no longer
probable that the related tax benefit
will be realised; such reductions are
reversed when the probability of future
taxable profits improves.

Unrecognised deferred tax assets are
reassessed at each reporting date and
recognised to the extent that it has
become probable that future taxable
profits will be available against which
they can be used.

Deferred tax is measured at the tax
rates that are expected to be applied
to temporary differences when they
reverse, using tax rates enacted or
substantively enacted at the reporting
date.

The measurement of deferred tax
reflects the tax consequences that
would follow from the manner in which
the Group expects, at the reporting
date, to recover or settle the carrying
amount of its assets and liabilities.
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2

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(Continued)

(u)

(v)

Income Tax (Continued)

Deferred tax assets and liabilities are
offset if there is a legally enforceable
right to offset current tax liabilities and
assets, and they relate to taxes levied
by the same tax authority on the same
taxable entity, or on different tax
entities, but they intend to settle
current tax liabilities and assets on a
net basis or their tax assets and
liabilities will be realised
simultaneously.

In determining the amount of current
and deferred tax, the Group takes into
account the impact of uncertain tax
positions and whether additional taxes
and interest may be due. This
assessment relies on estimates and
assumptions and may involve a series
of judgements about future events.
New information may become available
that causes the Group to change its
judgement regarding the adequacy of
existing tax liabilities; such changes to
tax liabilities will impact tax expense in
the period that such as a
determination is made.

Dividends

Dividends are recognised as a liability in the
period in which they are declared.
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
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2

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(Continued)

(w) Borrowing costs

(x)

Borrowing costs that are directly attributable
to the acquisition, construction or
production of an asset which necessarily
takes a substantial period of time to get
ready for its intended use or sale are
capitalised as part of the cost of that asset.
Other borrowing costs are expensed in the
period in which they are incurred.

The capitalisation of borrowing costs as part
of the cost of a qualifying asset commences
when expenditures for the asset is being
incurred, borrowing costs are being incurred
and activities that are necessary to prepare
the asset for its intended use or sale are in
progress. Capitalisation of borrowing costs is
suspended or ceases when substantially all
the activities necessary to prepare the
qualifying asset for its intended use or sale
are interrupted or complete.

Segment reporting

Operating segments, and the amounts of
each segment item reported in the financial
statements, are identified from the financial
information provided regularly to the Group’s
most senior executive management for the
purposes of allocating resources to, and
assessing the performance of, the Group’s
various lines of business and geographical
locations.
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
75 = M oE

2 SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(Continued)

(x)

(y)

Segment reporting (Continued)

Individually material operating segments are
not aggregated for financial reporting
purposes unless the segments have similar
economic characteristics and are similar in
respect of the nature of products and
services, the nature of production
processes, the type or class of customers,
the methods used to distribute the products
or provide the services, and the nature of
the regulatory environment. Operating
segments which are not individually material
may be aggregated if they share a majority
of these criteria.

Related parties

(@ A person, or a close member of that
person’s family, is related to the Group
if that person:

(i) has control or joint control over
the Group;

(i) has significant influence over the
Group; or

(i) is a member of the key
management personnel of the
Group or the Group’s parent.
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
B 75 e 2= B o

2  SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES

(Continued)

(y) Related parties (Continued)

(b)  An entity is related to the Group if any
of the following conditions applies:

0)

(it

(vi)

(vii)

The entity and the Group are
members of the same Group
(which means that each parent,
subsidiary and fellow subsidiary is
related to the others);

One entity is an associate or joint
venture of the other entity (or an
associate or joint venture of a
member of the Group of which
the other entity is a member);

Both entities are joint ventures of
the same third party;

One entity is a joint venture of a
third entity and the other entity is
an associate of the third entity;

The entity is a post-employment
benefit plan for the benefit of
employees of either the Group or
an entity related to the Group;

The entity is controlled or jointly
controlled by a person identified
in (a);

A person identified in (a)() has
significant influence over the
entity or is a member of the key
management personnel of the
entity (or of a parent of the
entity); or
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
75 = M oE

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(Continued)

(y) Related parties (Continued)

(b)  An entity is related to the Group if any
of the following conditions applies:
(Continued)

(vii) The entity, or any member of a
group of which it is a part,
provides key management
personnel services to the Group
or to the Group’s parent.

Close members of the family of a person
are those family members who may be
expected to influence, or be influenced by,
that person in their dealings with the entity.

DETERMINATION OF FAIR VALUES

A number of the Group’s accounting policies and
disclosures require the measurement of fair
values, for both financial and non-financial assets
and liabilities. Fair values have been determined
for measurement and/or disclosure purposes
based on the following methods. When
applicable, further information about the
assumptions made in determining fair values is
disclosed in the notes specific to that asset or
liability.
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
B 75 e 2= B o

8 DETERMINATION OF FAIR VALUES
(Continued)

When measuring the fair value of an asset or a
liability, the Group uses observable market data
as far as possible. Fair values are categorised into
different levels in a fair value hierarchy based on
the inputs used in the valuation techniques as
follows:

o Level 1: quoted prices (unadjusted) in active
markets for identical assets or liabilities;

o Level 2: inputs other than quoted prices
included in Level 1 that are observable for
the asset or liability, either directly (i.e. as
prices) or indirectly (i.e. derived from prices);

o Level 3: inputs for the asset or liability that
are not based on observable market data
(unobservable inputs).

(@) Trade and other receivables, trade and
other payables

The carrying values of these financial assets
and liabilities approximate their respective
fair values due to the short maturities of
these instruments.

(b) Interest-bearing borrowings

The carrying amounts of interest-bearing
borrowings approximate their fair values
based on the borrowing rates currently
available for bank loans with similar terms
and maturity.
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
75 = M oE

4 REVENUE AND SEGMENT REPORTING

(a)

Revenue

The principal activities of the Group are the
development, operation and management of
power plants.

Revenue comprises volume tariff revenue
and capacity tariff revenue.

Volume tariff revenue represents the sale of
electricity to power grid companies.

Capacity tariff revenue represents a subsidy
income from power grid companies,
following a reduction in the annual planned
power generation volume of the Group’s
power plants for supply to the power grid
companies and changes in the electricity
tariff policies applicable to the Group from
2015, pursuant to a notice issued by the
Economic and Information Commission of
Zhejiang Province in December 2014.
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
B 75 e 2= B o

4 REVENUE AND SEGMENT REPORTING 4 WzmkpiB|mE#E)
(Continued)
(a) Revenue (Continued) (a) Wiz (#&)
The amount of each significant category of RERNBRNZEZRRZEAND
revenue recognised during the vyear is as AT
follows:

2016 2015

=t Pl T A
RMB’000 RMB’000
ARB T PN S

Volume tariff revenue BEEEERA 67,233 177,691
Capacity tariff revenue AEBEBRA 211,940 211,940
279,173 389,631
For the year ended 31 December 2016, the BE_ZT-—RF+-A=+—HL
percentage of revenue attributable to the FE AEEZABRFPEAREP
Group’s largest customer and its five largest BT 46 U &= LE ] 5 Bl 284.50% K&
customers was 84.50% and 100% 100% (ZZF—H%F : 55 5 /584.30%
respectively (2015: 84.30% and 100% % 100%) °
respectively).
(b) Segment reporting (b) SEB®E
The most senior executive management BRTHREEEREANELED
have identified four operating segments, B - BT it PO =R E R
which are the four power plants, namely:
e  Amber (Anji) Gas Turbine Thermal e RIN(RE)MBAEERLA
Power Co., Ltd. (“Anji Power Plant”); [ZHE®]
e Zhejiang Amber De-Neng Natural Gas e MIFNEERAREESR
Power Generation Co., Ltd. (“De-Neng RAarl([EeeERK])

Power Plant”);
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4

REVENUE AND SEGMENT REPORTING
(Continued)

(b)

Segment reporting (Continued)

° Zhejiang Amber Jing-Xing Natural Gas
Power Generation Co., Ltd. (“Jing-Xing
Power Plant”); and

° Hangzhou Amber Blue Sky Natural Gas
Power Generation Co., Ltd. (“Blue Sky
Power Plant”).

The most senior executive management are
of the view that these four operating
segments contribute to the entire revenue of
the Group and should be aggregated to a
single reportable segment of the Group,
power segment, for financial reporting
purpose as they have similar economic
characteristics and are similar in respect of
nature of products, production processes,
the type of class of customers and the
regulatory environment.

Segment assets include all tangible,
intangible assets and current assets with the
exception of other corporate assets.
Segment liabilities include trade creditors,
accruals and bills payable attributable to
sales activities of the power segment,
convertible bonds, and bank borrowings
managed directly by the power segment,
with the exception of corporate liabilities.
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
B 75 e 2= B o

4 REVENUE AND SEGMENT REPORTING 4 WamkDIHBWMEE)
(Continued)
(b) Segment reporting (Continued) (b) SEI/E(E)
(i) Segment results, assets and () HEB¥4E BERERFE
liabilities

AEERETAEERST
KEEERIED RER M
EOMRRNBE_FT X

Information regarding to the Group’s
reportable segment as provided to the
Group’s most senior executive

management for the purpose of FERZE—RAFFTZA=+—
resource allocation and assessment of AESEFEMNE®RD BER
segment performance for the vyears AT

ended 31 December 2016 and 2015 is
set out below.

2016 2015

- Lol T A

RMB’000 RMB’000

LB ARK T

Reportable segment revenue S| D B = 279,173 389,631
Reportable segment profit ET Sl gl 87,604 74,431
Reportable segment assets EROHEE 1,392,701 1,426,626
Reportable segment liabilities ERHHEE 895,515 969,450
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The measure used for reporting
segment profit is “adjusted EBT” i.e.
“adjusted earnings before taxes”. To
arrive at adjusted EBT, the Group’s
earnings are further adjusted for items
not specifically attributed to the
segment, such as directors’ and
auditors’ remuneration and other head
office or corporate administration
costs.
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4 REVENUE AND SEGMENT REPORTING 4 WmKkDIIWEE)

(Continued)
(b) Segment reporting (Continued) (b) HEBEHE(E)
(i) Reconciliations of reportable (i) EHHEWa  1Bat &
segment revenue, profit or loss, EREEHIEK
assets and liabilities

2016 2015

—T—RF el

Revenue RMB’000 RMB’000

i 25 IN-L-Eb A ARETT
Reportable segment revenue 279,173 389,631
Consolidated revenue 279,173 389,631

2016 2015

—T R F kit

Profit RMB’000 RMB’000

i F IN-L B ARETT
Reportable segment profit 87,604 74,431
Unallocated corporate expenses (16,843) (12,611)

Consolidated profit before B 7% A A

taxation 70,761 61,820

2016 2015

b Aol T A

Assets RMB’000 RMB’000

=13 IN-L- B ARETT
Reportable segment assets 1,392,701 1,426,626
Unallocated corporate assets B E 20,922 36,599
Consolidated total assets 1,413,623 1,463,225
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
B 75 e 2= B o

4 REVENUE AND SEGMENT REPORTING 4
(Continued)
(b) Segment reporting (Continued)

(ii) Reconciliations of reportable
segment revenue, profit or loss,
assets and liabilities (Continued)

Wz 2 o B & ()

(b) SEBERE (&)
(i) Z2HEA BBz - Azt B
ERBREHEE)

2016
—E—-RE

RMB’000
ARETT

Reportable segment liabilities ERHBELE 895,515 969,450
Unallocated corporate liabilities ~A® DB % EE 33,607 24,012
Consolidated total liabilities meafBERs 929,122 993,462

(iii) Geographic information

All of the Group’s revenue is derived
from the volume tariff revenue and
capacity tariff revenue in the PRC, and
the principal non-current assets
employed by the Group are located in
the PRC. Accordingly, no analysis by
geographical segments has been
provided for the year.
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PROFIT BEFORE TAXATION 5 KR#EaEHN

Profit before taxation is arrived at after charging/ BR A AT R A 5 30BR S (GEA) AT IHB
(crediting): B
() Net finance costs (i) BMBREXFE

2016 2015

=t By —=-7x
RMB’000 RMB’000
INL 2N AR%TR

Interest income B A (570) (1,737)
Net foreign exchange gain HINIE UK 25 )5 BE - (436)

Financial income B 75 U A (570) (2,173)

Interest on interest-bearing borrowings s EEE KRR E X

and shareholder’s loan B 35,003 48,975
Interest on convertible bonds AIERES T S CRE 8,837
Total interest expense on financial cRAGEN SRS EE

liabilities 44119 57,812
Less: interest expense capitalised into Bl : EEREENE R

assets under construction BEARFERX —
Total interest expense recognised in RIEEBROFEMAX

profit or loss @ 57,812
Net foreign exchange loss HNEE B3 18 )F §E —
Bank charges RITEH 99
Financial expenses WX 57,911
Net finance costs B 75 B AN 38R 55,738
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
B 75 e 2= B o

5]

PROFIT BEFORE TAXATION (Continuea)

(i)

Personnel costs

BR B¢ A& A (48)

BIRE
2016 2015
—g—xe =B
RMB’000 RMB’000
L RSN AR%T T

Wages, salaries and other benefits e TENMHMEF 28,882 26,591
Contribution to defined contribution plan & %8 #t Z &t &l &9 4 3% 2,165 1,745

31,047 28,336

The Group participates in pension funds
organised by the PRC government.
According to the respective pension fund
regulations, the Group is required to pay
annual contributions. The Group remits all
the pension fund contributions to the
respective social security offices, which are
responsible for the payments and liabilities
relating to the pension funds. The Group
has no obligation for payment of retirement
and other post-retirement benefits of
employees other than the contributions
described above.

The Group also operates a defined
contribution Mandatory Provident Fund
retirement benefits scheme (the “MPF
Scheme”) under the Mandatory Provident
Fund Schemes Ordinance for all of its
employees employed by the Company in
Hong Kong. Contributions are made based
on a percentage of the employees’ basic
salaries and are charged to profit or loss as
they become payable in accordance with the
rules of the MPF Scheme. The assets of the
MPF Scheme are held separately from those
of the Group in an independently
administered fund. The Group’s employer
contributions vest fully with the employees
when contributed into the MPF Scheme.
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5

PROFIT BEFORE TAXATION (Continued) 5 BRBAIERNE)
(iii) Other items (i) HIER
2016 2015
TR F s
RMB’000 RMB’000
JN-LE M ARETT

Operating lease charges rEHeERH 1,234 981
Net loss on disposal of property, plant HEWE¥ - BE KX E

and equipment B8 E R 11,503 4,561
Amortisation 5 1,337 1,337
Depreciation me 19,809 24,722
Auditor’s remuneration % SR B &

— audit services — ZERTE 1,299 1,287
— other services — H iR 1,900 —

OTHER INCOME 6 HMA

2016 2015
—E-RF s
RMB’000 RMB’000
ARBTT BUNCL:Ewr

Government grants I8 FT 48 B 1,694 7,394
The Group was awarded unconditional rEEBEE_ZT—AF+=A=+—H
government grants amounting to RMB1,694,000 FTFEEREKABRFNFELMARE
for the year ended 31 December 2016 (2015: 1,694000C(=Z T — A F: AR %
RMB7,394,000). 7,394,0007T) °
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
B 75 e 2= B o

7

INCOME TAX IN THE CONSOLIDATED 7 HEBRXANAEHR
STATEMENT OF PROFIT OR LOSS
() Taxation in the consolidated statement () SHEEBERINBIEE:
of profit or loss represents:
2016 2015
t- b S-Sl T F &
RMB’000 RMB’000
1Ll AXETT
Current tax B #A % 18
PRC Corporate Income Tax PEERER 16,101
Under provision in respect of prior years LATEFE B E TR 1,049
Deferred tax BEHIE
Origination and reversal of temporary B = FEHE £
differences N # 1 1,291
Total income tax expense in the IREERKRMNAEH
consolidated statement of profit or X 58
loss 18,441

(@ Pursuant to the rules and regulations of
the Cayman Islands, the Group is not
subject to any income tax in the
Cayman Islands.

(b)  No provision for Hong Kong Profits Tax
has been made for the subsidiaries
located in Hong Kong as these
subsidiaries did not have assessable
profits subject to Hong Kong Profits
Tax for the year ended 31 December
2016 (2015: Nil).

(c) The provision for PRC income tax is
based on the respective Corporate
Income Tax rates applicable to the
subsidiaries located in the PRC as
determined in accordance with the
relevant income tax rules and
regulations of the PRC.
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INCOME TAX IN THE CONSOLIDATED
STATEMENT OF PROFIT OR LOSS
(Continued)

(i) Taxation in the consolidated statement
of profit or loss represents: (Continued)

(c) (Continued)

According to the Corporate Income
Tax Law of the People’s Republic of
China (“New Tax Law”) which took
effect on 1 January 2008, the Group’s
subsidiaries in the PRC are subject to
the unified tax rate of 25%.

The PRC Corporate Income Tax Law
and its relevant regulations impose a
withholding tax at 10%, unless
reduced by a tax treaty or
arrangement, for dividend distributions
out of the PRC from earnings
accumulated from 1 January 2008.
Undistributed earnings generated prior
to 1 January 2008 are exempted from
such withholding tax. As at 31
December 2016, deferred tax liabilities
of RMB14,664,000 (2015:
RMB5,708,000) have been recognised
in connection with the withholding tax
that would be payable on the
distribution of the retained profits of the
Group’s PRC subsidiaries.

(d) The Group has not recognised deferred
tax assets in respect of cumulated tax
losses of RMB2,161,000 (2015:
RMB1,375,000) as it is not probable
that future taxable profits will be
available against which the Group can
utilise the benefit therefrom.

N
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
B 75 e 2= B o

7 INCOME TAX IN THE CONSOLIDATED 7 BREBRRANMEHE)
STATEMENT OF PROFIT OR LOSS
(Continued)
(ii) Reconciliation between tax expense (i) HEABEAENBERTH
and accounting profit at applicable EetmFHAR:
tax rate:

2016 2015
ZE—RFE s
RMB’000 RMB’000
ARE T BN v

Profit before taxation B B B0 & A 70,761 61,820
Notional tax on profit before taxation, & % Bl 3% F| #) % 25§ 18
calculated at the rates applicable to 1% 48 8 B X #Y % Fl

profits in the countries concerned BRAMEGTE 17,155

Tax effect of non-deductible expenses 7~ A] 1% 5 % 69 B¢ 76
2 79

Tax effect of unused tax losses not RERNKRE A %)“EIE

recognised EENMBETE 244
Tax effect of tax losses not recognised i 1 F € 7 #E 32 fR 18

in prior years EENRBEEE (1,284)
Tax effect of prior years’ unrecognised © &)@ A FE KR

tax losses utilised MIEEBEENNBEEE (1,286)
Under provision in prior years NWEFERETR 1,049
Withholding tax on profits retained by = B fff & /2 &) 4R €8 )4 7l

PRC subsidiaries B TE OB 2,484
Actual tax expense EREBEBERAEZ 18,441
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N2

INCOME TAX IN THE CONSOLIDATED 7 HREEBBERAMNAMEHE)
STATEMENT OF PROFIT OR LOSS

(Continued)

(iii) Recognised deferred tax assets and (i) EERELEHESERERE
liabilities
Deferred tax assets and liabilities are EEFRBEERBENT:

attributable to the following:

Assets Liabilities

BE Eff

2016 2015 2016 2015
“E-RF i —F - FE s
RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000
ARBTR PN EwE ARETT PN W

Property, plant and mE - BEK
equipment B

Withholding tax on profits 7 £ &/ B Ff /B8
retained by the Group’s A &% & % Fl

PRC subsidiaries B FEME (14,664)
Unutilised tax losses R A
MIEEE
Government grants BRI 5 Bh
Deferred tax assets/ EERBEE,/
(liabilities) (BfR) (14,664)
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
B 75 e 2= B o

7 INCOME TAX IN THE CONSOLIDATED 7 HEBBRRAMAEBHE)
STATEMENT OF PROFIT OR LOSS
(Continued)
(iv) Movement in deferred tax balance (ivy FREEHRIEEGEE

during the year

Withholding
tax on profits
retained by
Property, the Group’s
Unutilised tax plant and PRC Government
losses equipment subsidiaries grants
F5EH
*HEN Y% BE MBAIRE
HEBRE Rth BIHELOH  BERE @it
RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000
ARETRE ARETRT ARBTR ARETRT ARETR

At 1 January 2015 R-ZE—RE—F—8 ) (3,224) 2,730 1,308
Recognised in consolidated statement of REEBRHERER

profit or loss 1,284 (34) (2,484) (57) (1,291)
At 1 January 2016 R=ZZE-A~"E—A—H 1,284 1,768 (5,708) 2,673 17
Recognised in consolidated statement of RiEABRERER

profit or loss (1,284) 3,355 (8,956) (57) (6,942)
At 31 December 2016 R=F—A"E+=-A=1+-H 5,123 (14,664) 2,616 (6,925)
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DIRECTOR’S REMUNERATION

Directors’ emoluments disclosed pursuant to
section 383(1) of the Hong Kong Companies
Ordinance and Part 2 of the Companies
(Disclosure of Information about Benefits of
Directors) Regulation are as follows:

Executive directors BITES

Mr. Chai Wei KBRS

Mr. Lai Chun Yu (resigned on 22 June 2016) BREFEE(R=ZT—15F
AAZTZREE)

Non-executive directors FHITES

Mr. Wei Junyong ROBRE

Mr. Liu Xuanhua AEELE

Mr. Li Jinquan (appointed on 2 June 2016) FEREERZT—RF
NAZBEZMA)

Independent non-executive directors BUFRTES
Mr. Tse Chi Man HEXEE
Mr. Yu Wayne W. AREEEE
Mr. Yao Xianguo Bl A

Directors’
fee

Exfe
RMB'000
ARBTR

EEMe
1B 1% & B N A& B 55383(1) ik B A |] (I
EEEMDZERROE2BHEENES
B & a0

Year ended 31 December 2016
BE-F-~E+-A=t-HLEE

Salaries,

allowances Retirement

and benefits Discretionary scheme
in kind bonuses contributions Total

e ZHR B BIRETE
BEWHE T4l 23 @it
RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000
ARETR AR®TRT ARETR ARETR
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8 DIRECTOR’S REMUNERATION (Continued) 8 EEME(H)

Executive directors WTEE
Mr. Chai Wei LEEE - 513 - 39 552
Mr. Lai Chun Yu RIEFEE = 619 = 15 634
Non-executive directors FRTEE
Mr. Wei Junyong (appointed on RUBREN-_F—14F
25 September 2015) NAZ+EBEZA) - - i - i
Mr. Liu Xuanhua (appointed on ASELRE(R=Z—1F
25 September 2015) NAZ+HEBEZE) = - - - =
Mr. Pei Shaohua (resigned on 17 June 2015) # A ER4L(R=T—1F
ANATEBEE) = = - - n
Mr. Li Jinquan (resigned on 17 June 2015) ZeREE(R-Z—1F
ANATEBEEE) = - = - -

Independent non-executive directors BIEHTES

Mr. Tse Chi Man HEXEE 151 = = = 151
Mr. Yu Wayne W. AREELE 151 - - - 151
Mr. Yao Xianguo HrBxE 151 = = = 151

453 1132 - 54 1,639
There were no amounts paid during the year to FRC-ASERERNESERIE/M
directors in connection with their retirement from BAEEMNREMZN TESEMFIE -
employment with the Group, or inducement to NMEIVESHNESIRAERETAN
join. There was no arrangement during the year B Z Bk ©

under which a director waived or agreed to waive
any remuneration.

m——— = === === swsss——————————— —SS—————
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INDIVIDUALS WITH HIGHEST
EMOLUMENTS

Of the five individuals with the highest
emoluments, one (2015: two) is director whose
emoluments are disclosed in note 8. The
aggregate of the emoluments in respect of the
other four (2015: three) individuals are as follows:

REHAL

REBAZRSHFALH  —H(ZT—
TF MB)AES EMSHENHFE
8 HMMA(ZE—RF : ZH)ALH
[l <E-CR (N

2016 2015
- Lot —T 5
RMB’000 RMB’000

ARBFT PN ST

Wages, salaries and other benefits

TE  -FE&REMEH
Contributions to defined contribution plan 5 %8 {4 2% 51 &1 fit &

1,566 820
131 114

1,697 934

Number of individuals

AT AR

The above individuals’ emoluments are within the
band of Nil to HKD1,000,000 (2015: Nil to
HKD1,000,000).

There were no amounts paid during the year to
the five highest paid employees in connection
with their retirement from employment with the
Group, or inducement to join.

it AEE BN S N FZ E1,000,00058 7T
(ZZ—R%F : TF1,000,000/ T) °

FA-AKEMERAZSERFHEERE
BB 35 1 /3 i BE AN S 8] ) 22 B ) () B S A
EAIFRIA -
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
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10 OTHER COMPREHENSIVE INCOME 10 HttZEUWA
Tax effects relating to each component of HhZ2HBRASERBIBRBHE
other comprehensive income

2016 2015
—E—RE —E—RF

Tax Tax
Before-tax (expense)/ Net-of-tax Before-tax  (expense)/  Net-of-tax
amount benefit amount amount benefit amount
BIE 1|
B B @i (A% BrBiiE B B Al (X)) B i 12
&8 BE &8 k-l B= k-]
RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000
IN-3-E b ADN-L S AN LSl ARBTT ARKTTE ARKTE

Exchange differences on BB A B B

translation of financial BREENELEZSR

statements of overseas

subsidiaries (15,093) (15,093) (13,176) - (13,176)
Other comprehensive income  H 2 &4 A (15,093) (15,093) (13,176) = (13,176)
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11  EARNINGS PER SHARE 11 BREFR
(a) Basic earnings per share (@) BEREXEF
The calculation of basic earnings per share BREXRBRIIRFARQG] L BE
is based on the profit attributable to % A% R e {5 m A1) A R #641,703,000
ordinary equity shareholders of the T (ZZE—RF : AR%43,691,000
Company of RMB41,703,000 (2015: T0) R B BT TR AR A I T
RMB43,691,000) and the weighted average 458,600,000 (= & — A F:
of 458,600,000 ordinary shares (2015: 424,436, 7T128%) T & 0T -
424,436,712) in issue during the vyear,
calculated as follows:
Weighted average number of ordinary 28 R B 0 FE S 1 &
shares
2016 2015
Lol T A F
W\ [T T-Te @ Number of
CHETCE shares
B% % 2k
Issued ordinary shares at 1 January R—A—HE#TH
(note 22(b)) L@ Ak (M 3E22(b)) L N[O 415,000,000
Weighted average number of BB 1T AR e hn#E
new shares issued (note 22(b)(i)) 15 2 (Bt 5E22(b)(i)) 9,436,712
Weighted average number of ordinary R+ A=+—B&@&EK
shares at 31 December &) DN 15 # CEEIOLIOLE 424,436,712

(b)

Diluted earnings per share

Diluted earnings per share was the same as
basic earnings per share for the year ended
31 December 2016 and 31 December 2015.
The calculation of diluted earnings per share
for the year ended 31 December 2016 and
31 December 2015 does not assume the
conversion of convertible bonds because the
conversion of convertible bonds would be
anti-dilutive.

(b)

BREFERF
BE_T-RFT-_A=+—8RK
—E-RAFTA=T—HLLEE
B B i 8BRS i B K B A A
A EBE_ZE-—RF+A=
T—BAERZE-—RF+ZA=1+—
BLEFENESRESRNE - L&
RREH@RAERES - FHREHR
BRESSEREERR
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
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12 PROPERTY, PLANT AND EQUIPMENT 12 Y% -BEKRRZRE

Cost: BA:
At 1 January 2015 R-Z-HF—f—R 262,994 1,243,081 177,505 16,066 17173 1,716,819
Additions NE 7,963 3,514 93 380 12,132 24,082
Transfer from assets under construction EEBEEEE 858 105 2,596 - (3,559) -
Disposals HE = (6,752) (442) (224) = (7.418)
At 31 December 2015 RZE-hE+=A=1—-H 271,815 1,239,948 179,752 16,222 25,746 1,733,483
Additions NE 143 i 332 315 21,615 22,405
Transfer from assets under construction EEBEREE 421 18,411 870 16 (19,718) -
Disposals e - (21,643) (474) (153) - (22,270)
At 31 December 2016 RZE—A"E+=A=1+-H 272,379 1,236,716 180,480 16,400 27,643 1,733,618
Accumulated depreciation and Rt ERRESE:

impairment losses:
At 1 January 2015 RZE-RAF—-A—H (55,507) (365,975) (107,846) (11,461) = (540,789)
Charge for the year FRER (7,770) (7,074) (8,633) (1,245) = (4,722)
Written back on disposals HERE — 2,362 282 213 — 2,857
At 31 December 2015 RZZE-AF+=-A=t—-H (63,277) (370,687) (116,197) (12,493) = (562,654)
Charge for the year FRNER (7,862) (3,248) (6,394) (2,309) - (19,809)
Written back on disposals HERR = 10,192 417 104 = 10,767
At 31 December 2016 RZE—A"E+ZA=1+-H (71,139) (363,749) (122,120) (14,694) = (571,696)
Net book value: BREFE:
At 31 December 2016 RZZ—R"E+ZA=+-H 201,240 872,973 58,360 1,706 27,643 1,161,922
At 31 December 2015 RZZ-RE+ZA=+—-H 208,538 869,261 63,555 3,729 25,746 1,170,829
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

S0 755 3 7 B =t

12 PROPERTY, PLANT AND EQUIPMENT
(Continued)

0)

All of the property, plant and equipment
owned by the Group are located in the
PRC.

As at 31 December 2016, certain property,
plant and equipment with aggregate carrying
amount of RMB175,571,000 were pledged as
collateral for bank loans (2015:
RMB176,505,000) (see note 19(i)).

12 YE- -BERKREE)

AEEBEENYE - BENREES
IR E e

R-ZZE—-—XRE+-_A=+—8 "  #
BRmEE A A R¥175,571,000T (=
T — R F: AR #176,505,0007T)
MNETYE BEARECIREA
RITEROER G (R FE19()) -
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13 LEASE PREPAYMENTS 13 EBNHEE

RMB’000
Cost: R AR®T T
At 1 January 2015 R-—ZE—HF—HA—H 59,020
Additions NE —
At 31 December 2015 R-ZE—AFE+-_HA=+—H 59,020
Additions =N -
At 31 December 2016 RZEBE—RE+HA=+—H 59,020
Accumulated amortisation: FheE:
At 1 January 2015 R-—ZE—RF—HA—H (8,857)
Charge for the year FANEA (1,337)
At 31 December 2015 RZE—RAF+ZA=+—H (10,194)
Charge for the year FANEA (1,337)
At 31 December 2016 RZE—ARF+=ZH=+—H (11,531)
Net book value: AREFE:

At 31 December 2016 RZE—ARE+=ZA=+—H 47,489
At 31 December 2015 RZE-—RAF+=A=+—8H 48,826
()  Lease prepayments represent cost of land () TENHESERLRHEBRI0E504F
use rights in respect of land located in the B9 HR Bt b 8 b B RE AR A o

PRC with a lease period of 30 to 50 years
when granted.

(i)  As at 31 December 2016, certain land use i) MZZE—AR"F+=—A=+—H' kK
rights with aggregate carrying amount of B E A ARS877,000L(=F
RMB9,877,000 were pledged as collateral for — A F : AR %10,337,0007T) K &
bank loans (2015: RMB10,337,000) (see note T AREEEAR/RITERD

19(i). & (R BT EE1903) ©
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14

INVESTMENTS IN SUBSIDIARIES

The following list contains only the particulars of
subsidiaries which principally affected the results,
assets or liabilities of the Group. The class of

shares held is ordinary unless

otherwise stated.

14

REBLRAINIRE
TREFFIEFELAKERE

HEENMBRATNFE KA EEH

SN PRFRRX D 2B B R B

Percentage of equity
attributable to the

Company
EATEERET I
Place and date of Issued and fully
establishment/ paid-up/registered Principal
Name of company Notes incorporation Direct Indirect capital activity
B35 ERTRHRE
AT & B 5 RRILH B % B H] Hi i = M & & ETEEH
Amber Bluesky (HK) Limited Hong Kong 100% — HKD10,001/ Investment
(“Amber Bluesky”) 26 June 2008 HKD20,000 holding
RHER(EB)ARRA 0 10,0017 78,/ &R
(MR\EXD —TENFXNAZ=+XA 20,000 7T
Amber Jingxing (HK) Limited Hong Kong 100% = HKD10,001/ Investment
(“Amber Jingxing”) 26 June 2008 HKD20,000 holding
BRHRE(BEB)BRAR e 10,0017 7T,/ REER
(MFRmmE]) —EENFRAZ+RAE 20,0007 7T
Amber Deneng (HK) Limited Hong Kong 100% - HKD10,001/ Investment
(“Amber Deneng”) 26 June 2008 HKD20,000 holding
RIER(BB)ERAAF B 10,0017 7T,/ REER
(M3 mnEae —EENFRAZ+AXA 20,0007 7T
Amber Anji (HK) Limited Hong Kong 100% - HKD1/HKD10,000 Investment
(“Amber Anji”) 2 September 2008 holding
RHEEEB)BRAA BB 17 7T /10,0007 7T &R
(MEm\zsD —EENFNAAZR
Blue Sky Power Plant (i) The PRC — 100% USD17,171,400/ Power
15 December 2004 USD17,171,400 generation
EXER (i) & 17,171,400% 7T/ BB
—EEMFE+-_A+HEH 17,171,400 7T
Jing-Xing Power Plant (i) The PRC = 100% USD16,660,000/ Power
6 January 2005 USD16,660,000 generation
REE R (ii) & 16,660,000% 7T/ % E
—ZETRFE-ARA 16,660,000 7T
De-Neng Power Plant (iff) The PRC — 100% USD18,408,710/ Power
18 August 2004 uSD18,408,710 generation
=8 B (i) & 18,408,710 7t/ ®E
—ZETWMENA+NR 18,408,710 7T
Anji Power Plant (iv) The PRC = 100% USD46,011,933/ Power and heat
25 February 2011 USD51,700,000 generation
ZEER (iv) & 46,011,933% 7T/ BERER
—E——%-A=-+HHAH 51,700,000 J©
Wenling Juneng Wind Power (v) The PRC - 68% RMB4,000,000/ Under design
Generation Co., Ltd. 3 July 2014 RMB50,000,000 and development
(“Wenling Power Plant”) stage
REBRERNEBEERAT (v & AR #4,000,0007T,/ MAERR
(HREERKI) —T-ME+A=A A R #50,000,0007T BREER
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14 INVESTMENTS IN SUBSIDIARIES 14 RBAANIRE#E)
(Continued)
Notes: Bt 3% -
(i) Blue Sky Power Plant was established in the PRC as a sino- (i) EXEMARPBKIINPINEGERE B
foreign equity joint venture and became a wholly foreign- ZENFLtAZTHAKARIINEBEDRE -

owned enterprise on 25 July 2008.

(if) Jing-Xing Power Plant was established in the PRC as a sino- (if) =
foreign equity joint venture and became a wholly foreign- =z
owned enterprise on 5 September 2006.

HEEHANTERINOTIIGERE B
ERFNATRKRBIIEBEDLE -

(iii) De-Neng Power Plant was established in the PRC as a sino- (iii) EREBRARZSTNFNATNABRPEK
foreign equity joint venture on 18 August 2004. NRFRINEERE -
(iv) Anji Power Plant was established in the PRC as a wholly (iv) THEEMAR-TE——F_A=-+HARFEH
foreign-owned enterprise on 25 February 2011. RBINEBE D -
(v) Wenling Power Plant was established in the PRC as a (v) BREEMAN_Z—HNFE+A=ZARPEK L
domestic company on 3 July 2014. R AN
15 TRADE AND OTHER RECEIVABLES 15 BWEZRHEMKE

2016 2015
TR FE ks
RMB’000 RMB’000
ARBETT BN B

Trade receivables FEWE 5 5K IE 30,583 20,801
Prepayments TE 5K IE 2,705 5,004
VAT recoverable within one year —F AR U EEE 26,650 22,927
Other receivables H A fE U 518 2,365 2,106
62,303 50,838
All of the trade and other receivables are Fﬁﬁﬂﬁ%ﬁ%&ﬁ’r@%ﬁﬁ%ﬁTﬁA F
expected to be recovered within one year. Credit RE - B AEEEIOKREER - R
term granted to power grid companies is 30 —T— £$+ A=+—H #BB—%F
days. VAT recoverable over one year of B9 AT Y [B] 3% 5 F A K #18,083,0007T 1Y
RMB18,083,000 is presented as “other non- [EIEREEEIVIER -

current assets” as at 31 December 2015.

132 AMBER ENERGY LIMITED IRIHEERER AR



15

16

17

TRADE AND OTHER RECEIVABLES
(Continued)

At 31 December 2016, ageing analysis of trade
receivables of the Group based on the invoice
date is as follows:

15 EWESKREMRIEE)

NZEBE—RE+ZA=1+—8 K&£EE
WESHIBREZHNIRE DT

2016
—E—REF
RMB’000

ARBFR

Within 1 month —@AR

30,583

PLEDGED DEPOSITS

Pledged deposits can be analysed as follows:

16 EEFEK
EEMERIMIT

2016
%%
RMB’000
AR%F 5

Guarantee deposits for issuance of BITRHEERBERRITEED
commercial bills and banking facilities R & 17 &

CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS

All the balances of cash and cash equivalents at
the end of the reporting period are cash at banks
and on hand.

17 RERAEEEY

2015
—E—FF
RMB’000
ARBT T

20,801

2015
—E—RF
RMB’000
AR T T

5,000

RBERFEE AR IREFE
MERBRTERRTFHERE -
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18 CONVERTIBLE BONDS AND

SHAREHOLDER’S LOAN

On 29 November 2011, the Company issued
convertible bonds (the “Convertible Bonds”) in the
aggregate principal amount of HKD124,800,000.
The subscriber of the Convertible Bonds is Amber
International Investment Co., Ltd. (“Amber
International”), the immediate holding company of
the Company. The principal terms of the
Convertible Bonds are as follows:

(@) Optional conversion

The holder of the Convertible Bonds
(“Bondholder”) may convert the Convertible
Bonds in integral multiples of HKD3,900,000
into fully paid ordinary shares of the
Company with a par value of HKD0.10 each
at an initial conversion price (“Conversion
Price”) of HKD1.30 per share at any time
from 29 November 2011 (the “Issue Date”)
up to (and including) 28 November 2016 (the
“Maturity Date”). The Conversion Price is
subject to adjustments in the manner set out
in the Convertible Bonds agreement as a
result of dilutive events. The maximum
number of ordinary shares that may be
converted is limited to the extent that
following such conversion, the shares held
by public should not be less than 25% of
the then issued share capital of the
Company.
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18 AEREZKRREMN

NZE——F+—A=+hB KAFE
17 48 7K % %8124,800,0005% 7T HY) A] EH # (&
F(oERESR) JTERELSNRE
ABRAREEERARIRABRKRKE
ERAR([IRIABKR]) - AT ERESH
FEBHRRBAT:

(a) TTEEZRE
AERESFEATESFAEAD
AAR—FE——F+—A=+B (%
TRDEZZE—XE+—A=1+N
B EHR|(BEZA) EBEEM
R BT BRBREMMRREDS
f%1.307% 7t - ¥ £ ¥ /&3,900,000
BB ENERESERAM
ERFHAABEFREBEI0B T
MIEBAL - MREXSEBEESH
RoERESRRMSE AR -
AEBKAEEREE ERAEH
BRERZAFRODEDSDRAEAR
AEREEITRAN2% AR -



18 CONVERTIBLE BONDS AND
SHAREHOLDER’S LOAN (Continued)

(b)

Redemption

Unless previously converted, purchased or
cancelled, the Company shall redeem the
Convertible Bonds at the principal amount
and pay all the outstanding interest on
Maturity Date.

As the functional currency of the Company
is HKD, the conversion of the Convertible
Bonds will be settled by exchange of a fixed
amount of cash in HKD with a fixed number
of the Company’s equity instruments. In
accordance with the requirements of IAS 39
Financial Instruments-Recognition and
Measurement, the Convertible Bonds
agreement needs to be separated into a
liability component consisting of the straight
debt element and redemption elements of
the bonds, and an equity component
representing the options of the Bondholder
to convert the bonds into equity. The
proceeds received from the issue of the
Convertible Bonds have been split as
follows:

(i) Liability component represents the fair
value of the contractually determined
stream of cash flows discounted at the
prevailing market interest rate
applicable to instruments of
comparable credit status and providing
substantially the same cash flows, on
the same terms, but without the
conversion features.

The liability component was
subsequently measured at amortised
cost using an effective interest rate of
9.72%.

18 ATEBRESFKRRERE)

(b)

HEE

RIFEZAIEEHR - BEHFEHE K
NAARIHRRAE BB A&
BES  WEBINREENS -

HMRARTNIGEEERET &
BAERESKERETHA R
NAERTEH MR TS BNBE
TREEE - REBEEBRGHELNE
HmERMITE — WAKRTEZR
o AEBRESHBEAASRBRER
DBREFsNEEEHBINE
D) RERT S FBEFFEA
A EFERQIRENRIERE) -
BTAEBESHERRE DN
T

() BEHBIVUEHNEERESR
ENAFE ERATRE
WEE BN E X 1% A R &
RERABERBRESRE
BErAEBRERSENTARE
AR IRITH IS A RBEIR o

BESSHEIREEK AF
BAEBFERIT2%: = -

ANNUAL REPORT 2016 =T — ~FEEHE

135



NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
B 75 e 2= B o

18 CONVERTIBLE BONDS AND 18 AEBESFRKRRERE)
SHAREHOLDER’S LOAN (Continued)
(b) Redemption (Continued) (b) EEE(Z)

(i)  Equity component represents the (i) HRIHIEBLREERE B
conversion options, which is BETEBRESNEEM
determined by deducting the fair value SHRERNBAEELS»HQ
of the liability component from the FEEBEE

proceeds of issue of the Convertible
Bonds as a whole.

The movement of the liability component and the FA-AEBRESNAERS ME
equity component of the Convertible Bonds for mE o EEnT

the year is set out below:

Liability Equity
component component Total
BERy #EBH st
RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000
AR T AR®BTT ARKFT

As at 1 January 2015 RN-_ZT—RAF—HF—H 85,857 26,065 111,922
Interest expensed during the year 4 A3 - | & 8,837 = 8,837
Interest payable during the year & A& & B (2,091) — (2,091)
Foreign currency translation INEME ERR
difference 5,320 = 5,320
As at 31 December 2015 R=ZZE—HF
+=—A=+—H 97,923 26,065 123,988
Interest expensed during the year 4 A X - | & 9,116 — 9,116
Interest payable during the year £ A & & B (2,034) — (2,034)
Foreign currency translation N
difference 6,630 — 6,630
Reclassified to shareholder’s loan EHEEREE X (111,635) — (111,635)
As at 31 December 2016 RZE—RF
+=—A=+—H = 26,065 26,065
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18

CONVERTIBLE BONDS AND
SHAREHOLDER’S LOAN (Continued)

The Convertible Bonds matured on 29 November
2016. The Bondholder had not exercised the
conversion option prior to the Maturity Date. The
Company also did not make any redemption upon
the maturity of the Convertible Bond. The
Bondholder gave the Company a written
confirmation dated 29 November 2016 that it
agreed to waive all its rights (if any), whether
contractual or otherwise, to bring any claim and/
or commence any proceedings against the
Company for any remedies and/or reliefs for any
breach of the Conditions committed by the
Company in connection with the expiry of the
Maturity Date. The Bondholder has also given the
Company another written confirmation that the
outstanding principal and interest payable of the
Convertible Bond on the Maturity Date would
become repayable on demand by Amber
International, and interests on outstanding
principal would continue to be charged at 2%
after Maturity Date unless agreed otherwise
thereafter. Accordingly, the outstanding principal
amount of RMB111,635,000 and outstanding
interest payable of RMBS8,732,000 on Maturity
Date were reclassified as shareholder’s loan under
current liabilities on the consolidated statement of
financial position as at 31 December 2016.

18

HERESRBRRER@#E)

AEBRESDRNE—ANFEF+—A=+
NBEE - BEHFAARE AR &
ITEEBE - RARMER]EIRES
BIEARS(E LI EEE - EHFAEARS
Z—RF+—A-t+ALBRAAREH
—HEAER  BRERBNENEE
F (BN TIRIAFT L EME) » AT
AABEREBEEBHAEMOEGFRA
ARREERERE IR BEREE
BEABSEMERE HER - &EF
BEHEANMEMARGIRES —HE@E
R ERAERESRIBANKESR
e REMFERNRIRIDEERZRkEE
B BREERETSHNFERIEBAE S
BIER2% W - BRIEER S AT - A
gt REBHNAERASEARE
111,635,000 & FE {7 #] B A R %
8,732,000tEEHM N E AR T —XRF
TZA=1+—BMEEFBRREAR
BEBEE THREER
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19 INTEREST-BEARING BORROWINGS 19 :tEEE

2016 2015

- Lol T H 5
RMB’000 RMB’000
AR Tt BN S

Current B &
Secured bank loans BEHEFRITER —
Unsecured loans from a related party ERIREE T B
(note 25) (Fff 5E25) =
Current portion of non-current secured  FERNEF A IR ITE KH
bank loans Bl B8R &6 5 40,000
Current portion of non-current unsecured 3k B[ 8 £ 15 # 4R 17 & 2 &Y
bank loans BV ER &8 7> 22,500
Current portion of non-current unsecured FERNER M B8 5 R A
bank loans guaranteed by a related EIKFIETERN
party B B &6 71,500 64,500
Current portion of non-current unsecured 3EB1Ef%E #7388 5 B3
loans from a related party (note 25) B ER &R 5 (B 7 25) 261,659 —
413,659 127,000
Non-current FE BN #A
Secured bank loans BB RITER 25,000 25,000
Unsecured bank loans EEFRITER 10,000 32,500
Unsecured bank loans guaranteed by a M E&EH 3‘%‘{% By 4 3 48
related party IRITER 271,500 343,000
Unsecured loans from a related party EIRWBEEHER
(note 25) (B 5E25) 252,905
1o [0 ]0) 653,405
720,159 780,405
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19

INTEREST-BEARING BORROWINGS 19 FEEE%®E)
(Continued)

0)

(it

(ii)

The secured bank loans as at 31 December (i)
2016 carried interest at rates ranging from
4.35% to 4.90% (2015: 5.25% to 6.55% per
annum) and were secured by the following

—E-XE+-A=+—HHEKE
HIRITEFIRFFE4.35% £4.90%
(ZE—RF: M £5.25% =
6.55%) 5t B - WA T 5 & E K

2016 2015
—T—RF EsE it
RMB’000 RMB’000
ARB T PN B

175,571 176,505
9,877 10,337

assets: #
Carrying amounts of assets: SERTE:

Property, plant and equipment Y% - WEKZE
Lease prepayments NS

Unsecured bank and other loans as at 31 (if)

December 2016 carried interest at rates
ranging from 3.92% to 4.90% (2015: 3.92%
to 6.55% per annum).

The Group’s interest-bearing borrowings (i)
were repayable as follows:

—E-XE+-A=t—HWHEE
BRTEREEMERIRFE R X
3.92% F4.90% (ZE—RHF : F£7|
R3.92% % 6.55%) 51 & °

AEBEFEEENERRAT:

2016 2015
—E|— N F ek
RMB’000 RMB’000
ARE Tt N R

Within 1 year —FA

Over 1 year but less than 2 years BB —FERFENR
Over 2 years but less than 5 years BBRMFEERAFA
Over 5 years HBiEAF

413,659 127,000

74,500 346,905
218,500 266,000
13,500 40,500

306,500 653,405

720,159 780,405
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20 TRADE AND OTHER PAYABLES

20 BNEZRHEAMNIA

2016 2015

b Febt- W — T T
RMB’000 RMB’000
ARETT BN S

Trade and bill payables

Other payables and accrued expenses

EBNESREREMNERE 2,431 29,475
HEMRIERETRAX 55,584 66,682

58,015 96,157

As at 31 December 2016, the ageing analysis of
trade and bill payables of the Group based on the

invoice date, is as follows:

RZE—RFTA=+—H ~EEE
NEZRARENZREREZEHNEK
e MTan e

2016 2015
mt .l —T0F

RMB’000 RMB’000
ARE TR NS

Within 3 months

Over 3 months but less than 6 months
Over 6 months but less than 1 year

21 DEFERRED REVENUE

Government grants

=@MAR 900 28,394
HBiE=1EAENEAR 87 607
BBRANEAE—FA 1,444 474
2,431 29,475

IR 3 R 2
2016 2015
t- Dbl T HF
RMB’000 RMB’000
IN-L-E A AXETT
XA #e8 B 10,464 10,692

The Group was awarded a compensation
amounting to RMB11,435,000 from Anji Economic
Development Zone Administrative Committee for

its acquisition of the land use

right for

construction of Anji Power Plant in 2012. The
grant was first recognised as deferred revenue
and is amortised over the grant period of the land

use right.
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RZE——F TERKERABREREZR
BepERBELNEREARERLTS
B R i ) A & B &S (B A R 11,435,000
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
75 = M oE

22 CAPITAL, RESERVES AND DIVIDENDS

(a)

Movements in components of equity

The reconciliation between the opening and
closing balances of each component of the
Group’s consolidated equity is set out in the
consolidated statement of changes in equity.
Details of the changes in the Company’s
individual components of equity between the
beginning and the end of the year are set
out below:

The Company

22 BEXR - - RBEERKRE
(a) EBBHZEH
REBGAERSBYEYEER
a2 WIRH W GRAREHEK -
AARERIERZBD FEYEERZ
BERENT

.|

Balance at 1 January 2015 R-E-5%
—RA—B#&& 36,582 85,057 358,044 26,065 (12,093) (155,573) 338,082
Changes in equity for 2015:  —F—AFHHEH:
Loss for the year FRER = = = = = (17,510) (17,510)
Other comprehensive income HEm2mEBA = = = = 6,082 = 6,082
Total comprehensive income for ~ FR2EK A B
the year - - - - 6,082 (17,510 (11,428)
Issuance of new shares, net of  F{TH K - EMH
issuance expense BITHX 22(0)(i) 3,567 29,806 = = = = 33,373
Balance at 31 December 2015 RZ-F—AF
+ZA=+-B4%8& 40,149 114,863 358,044 26,065 (6,011) (173,083) 360,027
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22 CAPITAL, RESERVES AND DIVIDENDS 22 EBEXR - RBEERRE(#E)

(Continued)

(a) Movements in components of equity (a) HERBHoZ2EHE)
(Continued)
The Company (Continued) xug (&)

Share Share Contributed Capital Translation Accumulated Total

capital premium surplus reserve reserve loss equity

BE KRHEE MARSE EAHE ELGE RitlBR @

Note RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000  RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000
i ARBTT ARBTE ARBTRE ARETT ARBTT ARBTI ARETR

Balance at 1 January 2016 RZ-F—R%&
—R—B#8& 40,149 114,863 358,044 (6,011) (173,083) 360,027

Changes in equity for 2016: =B — N FHEHEH:
FNEE (20,296)  (20,296)
HEi2mBA - 6,345

Loss for the year

Other comprehensive income

Total comprehensive income for 4 A 2 4 A 458

the year

Dividends approved in respect of T #t k7 4 i &

previous year

6,345 (20,296) (13,951)

22(d)(ii) (11,620)

Balance at 31 December RZB—RE
+ZRA=+-—-B4&8% 103,243 358,044 (193,379) 334,456

2016

(b) Share capital (b) B&=&
2016 2015
—E—RFE —T—RHF
No. of No. of
shares Amount shares Amount
08 4= &8 & 17 28 Kokt
Note RMB’000 RMB’000
B = ARETR ARET T
Authorised: ERE
Ordinary shares of BRI E010% T
HKDO0.10 each ) 3 i A 1,000,000,000 CEFVELE 1,000,000,000 88,050
Ordinary shares, issued BRETRHELER:
and fully paid
At 1 January n—A—A 458,600,000 40,149 415,000,000 36,582
Shares issued BEEITRG (i) 43,600,000 3,567
At 31 December W+=-—A=+—H” 458,600,000 40,149 458,600,000 40,149
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22 CAPITAL, RESERVES AND DIVIDENDS
(Continued)

(b)

(c)

Share capital (Continued)

(i)

On 14 October 2015, 40,000,000
ordinary shares and 3,600,000 ordinary
shares of HKDO0.10 each were issued
at a price of HKDO0.97 per share
to the third parties pursuant to the
subscription agreement and the placing
agreement signed with the Company.
The proceeds of HKD4,360,000
(equivalent to RMB3,567,000)
representing the par value, were
credited to the Company’s share
capital.

Reserves

On 14 October 2015, 40,000,000
ordinary shares and 3,600,000
ordinary shares of HKDO.10 each were
issued at a price of HKDO0.97 per
share to the third parties pursuant to
the subscription agreement and the
placing agreement signed with the
Company. The excess of the proceeds
totalling HKD37,932,000 (equivalent to
RMB31,035,000) over the nominal
value of the total number of ordinary
shares issued, before the share issue
expenses, were credited to the share
premium account of the Company.

The application of the share premium
account is governed by the
Companies Law of the Cayman
Islands.

22

BEX - RERKRE@®

(b) B&ERE)

) —ZT—AF+A+ITA AR
RIREEE = RFTRER
Z MR ERE  RFR0.97E
TTHERRKESED B &7
40,000,0000% X23,600,000/% &
A& {0108 TRy L A% - 48
BRI EENS XA
4,360,000/%% 7t (FHE R AR VH%
3,567,0007T) B st A &R R & /Y
PR o

(c) &

—£$+H +mA - W‘t‘
&M’&T BINREHZ
ic & 7 % IR &A% 0. 97,%7EWE
1% [A128 = 75 3£7740,000,000 %
}:.3,600,0000% & I m {£0.10
BT EBK o RIMKRRD
BTERMFGBRIELRE
37,932,000 L (FHE R A R
#31,035,0007T) A& %1 F7 8% 17
TRRABEENEE B
AR RF ARG HZER -

B EEROEMAXRSE
ERAVERE o
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
B 75 e 2= B o

22 CAPITAL, RESERVES AND DIVIDENDS 22 BXR - RBEERREC(

(Continued)
(c) Reserves (Continued) (c) fE#Ew(2)
(i) Capital reserve (i) BEXfFE

BEXARBEREATAER:

Capital reserve comprises the
following:

the aggregate of paid-in capital of
the companies comprising the
Group as at 1 January 2009,
after elimination of investment in
subsidiaries;

the difference between the total
amount of consideration paid and
the total carrying value of non-
controlling interests acquired, for
acquisition of 47% equity interest
in De-Neng Power Plant by the
Group in 2009;

capital contribution by Amber
International of a dividend
receivable from De-Neng Power
Plant in 2009; and

the amount allocated to the
unexercised equity component of
Convertible Bonds issued by the
Company recognised in
accordance with the accounting
policy adopted for Convertible
Bonds in note 2(i)(v).
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— AKEHBETRARRZ-FT
ZENFE—A—BNEH
e ER (B E=RHTE A
AZREHH)

- AEER ZNFUWK
BEESE Jﬁw% &
B T RERTEERT
W BB FE IR i 2 2 BR T
BEMERE:

— RHEBER-_ZTIAF
15 8 U 18 BE TR O ALB
EE R

— AR EE2()(v) BT S AT B
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22 CAPITAL, RESERVES AND DIVIDENDS
(Continued)

(c)

Reserves (Continued)

Merger reserve represents the excess
of the aggregate of paid-in capital of
the subsidiaries comprising the Group
pursuant to a reorganisation completed
in June 2009 for the Listing (the
“Reorganisation”) of the Group over the
consideration paid by the Company,
representing the nominal value of the
shares issued by the Company in
exchange thereof.

Contributed surplus represents the
excess of the fair value of the shares
of Amber Deneng, Amber Jingxing and
Amber Bluesky determined on the
basis of the consolidated net assets of
Amber Deneng, Amber Jingxing and
Amber Bluesky at the date of the
Reorganisation over the nominal value
of the shares issued by the Company
in exchange thereof.

Statutory surplus reserves were
established in accordance with the
relevant PRC rules and regulations and
the articles of association of those
companies comprising the Group
which are established in the PRC.
Appropriations to the reserves were
approved by the respective boards of
directors.

22

BEXR fERRE#E)

(c)

(&)

B FEBEASEETHE
REIRBEAEER_FFTN
FRAR LT ERZEA(E
MEZBRAEBEBEAAN
REFARE(BIARRBIER
RBHABETRONEE) 2 E
B e

BABRBIERBEIRIAERE
FRHERERFHERGEE
EFEEENRIBEE R
HRENFEIREREKNNE
HEBMNRFEBEANRR
ERRBAETRMOEE
ZE e

AEBBRHBEERETER
B M E MOR AR A R R B
VEAREBEET & AR A
BERMRRIL - RHEER
EEREFSHE -
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B 75 e 2= B o

22 CAPITAL, RESERVES AND DIVIDENDS
(Continued)

(c)

Reserves (Continued)

(v)

(vi)

Statutory surplus reserve
(Continued)

For the entity concerned, statutory
surplus reserves can be used to make
good previous years' losses, if any,
and may be converted into capital in
proportion to the existing equity
interests of investors, provided that the
balance after such conversion is not
less than 25% of the registered capital.

Distributability of reserves

Under the Companies Law of the
Cayman Islands, the share premium
account of the Company may be
applied for payment of distributions or
dividends to shareholders provided that
immediately following the date on
which the distribution or dividend is
proposed to be paid, the Company is
able to pay its debts as they fall due in
the ordinary course of business.
Accordingly, the directors of the
Company determined that the
aggregate amount of distributable
reserves of the Company as at 31
December 2016 was RMB103,243,000
(2015: RMB114,863,000).
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22 EXR-RERBRE#E)

(c)

fi (=)

(v)

(vi)

EER R (E)

BRRRIMEATAGRHER
AREHNEFENERER(
B) MAEKREERGRE
O EmKER - EEikE
BN 1J DI M EAH
25% °

o5 R
RIEHESEHE QAL AQF
A% 15 4 {8 BR 7] A 7 (A AR SR AE
HoRSIZAKE - HEEZE
DRSS EER - &
ARIBABRENTMNRBEER
BREFHNEE - B - AR
FAEEFEFARTR-_ZE—X
F+-—A=Z+—BHNAIHD IR
wmE®BBE BRARIE
103,243,000t (ZE— A& :
A R #114,863,0007T) °



NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
75 = M oE

22 CAPITAL, RESERVES AND DIVIDENDS 22 EBEXR-FERERE#E)
(Continued)
(d) Dividends d ER
(i) Dividends payable to equity () FRAEMLXLIGEZBZRE
shareholders of the Company ®’E

attributable to the year

2016
—E—REF

RMB’000
AREFR

Final dividend proposed after the R & E 1% # K 2% 1 oK Hf
reporting date of HKD0.03 per % B & 1%0.03% T

share (2015: HKDO0.03) (ZZE—Hh*E:
0.03/&7T) 11,465
The final dividend proposed after the WEBHFLERARBERREBRK
end of the reporting period has not BEVERKEHFLEEER
been recognised as a liability at the RAfE-

end of the reporting period.

(i) Dividends payable to equity (i) REAHERLTZHIESM
shareholders of the Company EAGHEBREL—H B
attributable to the previous FERE

financial year, approved and paid
during the year

2016
= L

RMB’000
ARBTR

Final dividend in respect of the RERH AT T B
previous financial year, approved  _ — B B E K Hi
and paid during the year of i% 8. & 1%0.03% T
HKDO0.03 per share (2015: nil) (ZE—hF &)
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
B 75 e 2= B o

23 FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS

Financial risk management
Overview

The Group has exposure to the following risks
arising from financial instruments:

. credit risk
. liquidity risk
° market risk

This note presents information about the Group’s
exposure to each of the above risks, the Group’s
objectives, policies and processes for measuring
and managing risk, and the Group’s management
of capital.

(@) Credit risk

Credit risk is the risk of financial loss to the
Group if a customer or counterparty to a
financial instrument fails to meet its
contractual obligations, and arises principally
from the Group’s receivables from
customers.

Exposure to credit risk

The Group’s credit risk is primarily
attributable to trade and other receivables.
Management has a credit policy in place
and the exposures to these credit risks are
monitored on an ongoing basis.

Zhejiang Electric Power Corporation and
Huzhou Electric Power Bureau are the
customers of the Group for the year ended
31 December 2016.

The maximum exposure to credit risk is
represented by the carrying amount of each
financial asset in the consolidated statement
of financial position.
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23 £RTHE

Bt 75 B i B
L it
AEBEHEKXEERTANNATRER

e FEERAR
s RBEZRAR
s WHER

AN RE 2 51 A 5= 18 TE bt % IR R B 9
BR - AKEFEREERBHBER -
BREER  ARARENELRERE -

(a) EEREMK
FEERBRESRIANEEFXRS
HHRBITAHELMSAE B
THHRBEERER  TERAAE
EREKEFRE -

=B E R

AEEMEERREZRARBEE
ShEMFIEA - EREDHFTEE
BE UHEEREZSEERAR -

FIENRBRHAMNENREARE
BEz-_ZT—X"F+-_A=1+—H
EFENEFP -

EERBALGEMBAR KA
ECRMEENKEEESLR -



23 FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS (Continuea)

Financial risk management (Continued)

(a)

(b)

Credit risk (Continued)
Exposure to credit risk (Continued)

Credit risk for power plants in the PRC
power industry is concentrated on a limited
number of power grid companies. However,
management, having considered the strong
financial background and good credit
worthiness of the power grid companies,
believe there is no significant credit risk.

Further quantitative disclosures in respect of
the Group’s exposure to credit risk arising
from trade and other trade receivables are
set out in note 15.

Liquidity risk

Liquidity risk is the risk that the Group will
encounter difficulty in meeting the
obligations associated with its financial
liabilities that are settled by delivering cash
or another financial asset.

The Group’s approach to managing liquidity
is to ensure, as far as possible, that it will
have sufficient liquidity to meet its liabilities
when they are due, under both normal and
stressed conditions, without incurring
unacceptable losses or risking damage to
the Group’s reputation.

The Group’s policy is to regularly monitor its
liquidity requirements and its compliance
with lending covenants, to ensure that it
maintains sufficient reserves of cash and
adequate committed lines of funding from
major financial institutions to meet its
liquidity requirements in the short and longer
term.

23

TRITA@#E)

Bt P b B (E)
(a) EEREMEE)
=ZE @ (&)
ERBRENTE  ERZ2EERR

(b)

SPELEEBRAR - AW &R
EEARVRENEREREERR
i EEERSAEEALESKE
BRE R -

BRASEFEHREES R EM
RBEELENEERRNEME(
WEEH NS -

B & & b
MBETRERIE AN REEREITEN
RNBReREbeMEE 2T E
MzeBAEARZEERBEIN
Rk o

AEEEERBDESNASEL
BEREANBRTEEMRERA
BRBNABDESEEIBAED
TEEABEAENBRABER
SEMEE -

AEENBREERERAEEDN
MBEEFRARETERZLY
MER  BERAKEEFERRES
RERESIESREEARR
HEHRE - BAEHAMEHAR
BEEHFK -
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23 FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS (Continued) 23 &M I AE#E)
Financial risk management (Continued) MBEREREZ)
Overview (Continued) #F #k (42)
(b) Liquidity risk (Continued) (b) RHBELER(E)
The following are the remaining contractual NTARBEBHNEREBELSL
maturities of financial liabilities at the FIHAE A -

reporting date.

The amounts are gross and undiscounted, ZEHERERE  BREFNE B8
and include estimated interest payments and A S FRIB I AT % ¥ 5 1
exclude the impact of netting agreements: EHNEE:

Year ended 31 December 2016
BE-—F—F+-A=+—HILEE

Total Within one
Carrying undiscounted year or on More than
amount cash flow demand one year
RFFBE & — R
R H B HEEE REXRE BBE—F
RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000

ARETR ARETR ARETR ARETR

Interest-bearing borrowings &t B f& & 720,159 784,421 443,033 341,388
Trade and other payables [E{TZ 5 & E i 518 58,015 58,015 58,015 -
Shareholder’s loan = 120,367 122,774 122,774 -

898,541 965,210 623,822 341,388

Year ended 31 December 2015
BE-_F—AF+=-HA=+—HLEE

Total  Within one
Carrying undiscounted year or on More than

amount cash flow demand one year
RIFFBE L —ER

B H (B mEER RERE EB—%F

RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000

ARETR ARETRT ARETR ARETR

Interest-bearing borrowings &t B (& & 780,405 883,580 156,416 727164
Trade and other payables JE{f & 5 & H b 718 96,157 96,157 96,157 —
Convertible Bonds AR E 5 97,923 106,472 106,472 =

974,485 1,086,209 359,045 727,164
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23 FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS (Continuea)

Financial risk management (Continued)

(c)

Market risk

Market risk is the risk that changes in
market prices, such as foreign exchange
rates and interest rates, will affect the
Group’s income or the value of its holdings
of financial instruments. The objective of
market risk management is to manage and
control market risk exposures within
acceptable parameters, while optimising the
return.

(i) Currency risk

RMB is not freely convertible into
foreign currencies. All foreign exchange
transactions involving RMB must take
place through the People’s Bank of
China or other institutions authorised to
buy and sell foreign exchange. The
exchange rate adopted for the foreign
exchange transactions are the rates of
exchange quoted by the People’s Bank
of China that are determined largely by
supply and demand. Changes in
foreign exchange rate affect the RMB
value of sales proceeds of products
that are denominated in foreign
currencies.

23

TRMIA#E)
MBERERE)

(c)

15 L I&

IS AR T E B NEERR
R %) 8 B B 2 K 5 B I A 5 4
SBMTABENRR - HBEKRE
B EEAELRROA B2
BRI IS AR T SR E R -

() EEERE
ARETAIEH A BRAINE o
ESRARBENINER S
HABBTEARRITHE
R R B INER B E
T NEXSZEBTEAR
RITAAMAOER  MZKFE
RTIBRPKEE - BEXF
BKERXENIINEHENER
HEMBARKEE-
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23 FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS (Continued) 23 @I E(#)

Financial risk management (Continued) MBRERERE)

Overview (Continued) Lk (2)

(c) Market risk (Continued) (c) TiIZEE

(i)  Currency risk (Continued) (i) EEREEE)

Exposure to currency risk B g
The following table details the Group’s TRHAIIAEENREHF
exposure at the end of the reporting HAENLEEARIENES
period to currency risk arising from KA ENEEREEXAE
recognised assets or liabilities mEENEEE R -

denominated in a currency other than
the functional currency of the entity to
which they relate.

2016 2015
k- bt ol — T 0
USD’000 USD’000

F=E=x FET
Trade and other payables ERES Kk K kIE - (539)
Interest-bearing borrowings STREE (19,700) (19,700)
(19,700) (20,239)
The following RMB/USD average NTEFRNEANARKR
exchange rates applied during the ELFEHER:
year:

usD e
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23 FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS (Continuea) 23 @ IA#E)

Financial risk management (Continued) MR ERE)
(c) Market risk (Continued) (c) THIZEEE)
(i)  Currency risk (Continued) (i) E&EEpEE)

Sensitivity analysis BB T
A 5 percent strengthening of the RMB J‘SA‘T’_)EJ =+—8 AREX
against the following currency at 31 BB ABE%EIZ 5 E
December would have affected profit B BREANEN o« ZOM
before tax by the amounts shown Tﬂﬁj B35 ﬁﬁﬁﬁﬂt A2 (R 2
below. This analysis assumes that all FIR)MEFTE - DWMEBH
other variables, in particular interest BEEE T — ﬁiﬁﬁ’fxﬁﬁ%
rates, remain constant. The analysis is —E
performed on the same basis for
2015.

2016 2015
ZE R F iy
RMB’000 RMB’000
IN-L-E A ARETT

Effect on profit before tax R AR M A 2

uUsD ETT 6,571
A 5 percent weakening of the RMB Eﬁfrﬁﬁ@@%%ﬂ( R E
against the above currency at 31 AT BIR+=HA=+—H”
December would have had the equal AREH Pl B E%E
but opposite effect on the above EEMEEE EME®EEA
currency to the amounts shown above, EHEEERNTE -

on the basis that all other variables
remain constant.
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23 FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS (Continuea)

23 @I E(#)

Financial risk management (Continued) MBRERERE)

Overview (Continued) HEE (1)

(c) Market risk (Continued) (c) TiIZEE
(i) Interest rate risk (i) FFEE B

Cash and cash equivalents, pledged
deposits and interest-bearing
borrowings are the Group’s major
types of financial instruments subject to
interest rate risk. Cash and cash
equivalents are with fixed interest rates
ranging from 0.01% to 1.1% per annum
for the year ended 31 December 2016
(2015: 0.01% to 1.1% per annum).
Pledged deposits are placed to satisfy
conditions for issuance of commercial
bills and bank facilities granted to the
Group, with fixed interest rates of 1.8%

AEBGFEMNERERD SR
TEATZHABERe MR
SEEY  BEBEER - FE
BB HE_ZT—XRF+_A
=+—HLFE BekHEd
ZEBYUWHETFERNENT
0.01%F11% (ZE—FHF : F
FZ0.01%E1.1%) - O EFTF
HRERTABEZEBRRTR
RNEBFTERITEENIEHE
Mk HE-_T—X~F+-A
=+ —RALEFENETEFFE
B18% (ZZT—HF : FH X

per annum for the year ended 31 1.8%) ©
December 2016 (2015: 1.8% per

annum).

Interest rate profile FE B

At the end of the reporting period, the
interest rate profile of the Group’s
interest-bearing financial instruments
was as follows:

R|BEMELER - NEEOE
ST RN XREERMT

2016 2015

b bl — T FF

RMB’000 RMB’000

ARE Tt N S

Fixed rate borrowings EBEEE 174,659 127,905
Variable rate borrowings EEEE 545,500 652,500
720,159 780,405
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23 FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS (Continuea)

Financial risk management (Continued)

(c)

Market risk (Continued)

(i)

Interest rate risk (Continued)

Fair value sensitivity analysis for fixed
rate borrowings

The Group does not account for any
fixed rate financial liabilities at fair value
through profit or loss. Therefore, a
change in interest rates at the
reporting date would not affect profit or
loss.

Cash flow sensitivity analysis for
variable rate borrowings

At 31 December 2016, it is estimated
that a general increase/decrease of
100 basis points in interest rates, with
all other variables held constant, would
have decreased/increased the Group’s
profit after tax and consolidated equity
by approximately RMB4,018,000 (2015:
RMB4,190,000).

The sensitivity analysis above indicates
the instantaneous change in the
Group’s profit after tax and
consolidated equity that would arise
assuming that the change in interest
rates had occurred at the end of the
reporting period and had been applied
to re-measure those floating rate non-
derivative instruments held by the
Group which expose the Group to
cash flow interest rate risk at the end
of the reporting period. The impact on
the Group’s profit after tax and
consolidated equity is estimated as an
annualised impact on interest expense
of such a change in interest rates. The
analysis is performed on the same
basis for 2015.

23

TRIA@#E)

MBRKRERE)
(c) WiBEE(Z)
(i) FIEREEEE)
EEEEN R FEHEES
#r

AEE BB EAT
ERARERSMAN Bk
RBEAMOAEEDTE

FEEm -

EEEENE TS HEE

/'\/ﬁf

F E—XRNE+_A=+—
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23 FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS (Continuea)

Financial risk management (Continued)

Overview (Continued)

(d)

Capital management

The Group’s primary objectives when
managing capital are to safeguard the
Group’s ability to continue as a going
concern, so that it can continued to provide
returns for shareholders and benefits for
other stakeholders and to maintain an
optimal capital structure to reduce the cost
of capital.

The Group actively and regularly reviews
and manages its capital structure to
maintain a balance between the higher
equity shareholders’ return that might be
possible with higher levels of borrowings
and the advantages and security afforded by
a sound capital position, and makes
adjustments to the capital structure in light
of changes in economic conditions.

The Group monitors its capital structure on
the basis of the gearing ratio. This ratio is
calculated as net debt divided by total
capital. Net debt is calculated as total debt
(including all interest-bearing borrowings as
well as shareholder’s loan, as shown in the
consolidated statement of financial position)
less cash and cash equivalents. Total capital
is calculated as equity attributable to equity
shareholders of the Company, as shown in
the consolidated statement of financial
position, plus net debt. The Group may
adjust the amount of dividends paid to
shareholders, issue new shares, return
capital to shareholders or sell assets to
reduce debt.

156 AMBER ENERGY LIMITED IRIHEERBR AR

23 @I E(#)
MBEGEERE)
HBFE (&)

(d)

BEXER

AEEEEEANTZENERR
BAEBMAFELLEN Mg
S 45 B A ISR S BN [ ¥ e A oAt )
SARE T FEF S - WRFFHEN
BAERE REERAKA -

AEEEGERa T EREAR
B RERERESEEMRENE
a5 IR IR B3R B AR 2 B AR R B0 (B 2
RARERTH @ St & B R EE
FHEEARRRE -

AEBFNBAEEANL X (BIER
FERABNRER) B EARE -
BERFENERAB(BREAY
BARRARFAF OB BB E R
RER)RAS MR EBWFE -
BRBERRA VBRI KT
AR AR as R MBS #E DO ROF
B AKEAEBARKMNTRE
M  BITHR - MBCRERESR
Ay HEEEMDER °



23 FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS (Continued)

Financial risk management (Continued)

Overview (Continued)

(d)

(e)

Capital management (Continued)

The gearing ratio as at 31 December was as
follows:

23 2RI E#E)
MR ERE)
#E it (42)
(d BEEHEE)

R+tZA=+—BHAaBEARLE

W

2016 2015
ZE—RF ek
RMB’000 RMB’000
N1 ARETT

Gearing ratio BEEBEALE 59.80% 60.83%

Fair value

The carrying amounts of significant financial
assets and liabilities approximate their
respective fair values as at 31 December
2016 and 2015.

24 COMMITMENTS

(i)

Capital commitments outstanding at
31 December 2016 not provided for in
the consolidated financial statements
were as follows:

(e) AFE{E

RZE—ARFR_ZFT—RAF+=A
—t-—H EACREERBEN

REEEESEEATFERE

24 EIE

i) R=ZF—A"E+ZA=+-—8"
EERGEMBRRBERME

A SRR - EOT

2016 2015
=IOt T IF
RMB’000 RMB’000
ARBTR N S

Contracted for SEED) 4,169 26,002
Authorised but not contracted for B IF#EE KEFT4 909 7,100

5,078 33,102
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24 COMMITMENTS (Continued)

(ii) At 31 December 2016, the total future
minimum lease payments under non-
cancellable operating lease are

payable as follows:

24 FRIE (&)

(i) R=FT—RE+=-A=+—8"
REBEFTRFACEEHERMTH
ARBREASESHREFE DT :

2016 2015
b Ll T
RMB’000 RMB’000
IN-L- B AR TT
Within 1 year —FR 513 916
After 1 year but within 5 years —FRERFAN 770 1,070
1,283 1,986
25 RELATED PARTY TRANSACTIONS 25 BERIRS
For the year ended 31 December 2016, HE-_ZT—"F+-A=1+—HLFE"

transactions with the following parties are
considered as related party transactions. The
following is a summary of the principal related
party transactions carried out by the Group with
the below related parties for the year.

Name of party

FE R &

BENIALZRGERBETRS ° A
TRASHEETIBEETNFANEE
RETRXFME -

Relationship

FA 1%

Amber International

Bk 30 Bl B

China Wanxiang Holding Co., Ltd.
(“Wanxiang Holding”)
PEEMZERERAR(TEMER]

Puxing Energy

KYA 12 4
2 B EE

Wanxiang Finance Co., Ltd.
(“Wanxiang Finance”)

Em#BARIR (&R
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Immediate holding company of the Company

ARAHBEERZERAR

Ultimate controlling party of the Company

RABERBRERTT

Intermediate parent company of the Company

RRARWEEG QA

Fellow subsidiary
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25 RELATED PARTY TRANSACTIONS
(Continued)

(a)

Significant related party transactions
and balances with related parties

Particulars of significant transactions
between the Group and the above related
parties during the year ended 31 December

2016 are as follows:

25 [FEE

(a)

AR5 (%)

HBERETHEXMES XS
R4 85

ARBE LAMESRBRE-T—
AETZAST—RILEENEA
RBHEMT :

2016
“E-RE
RMB’000
AREFR

2015
—T—RF
RMB’000
AREFTT

Loans from
Wanxiang Finance
Puxing Energy

REUTHETHER

BR#H

Y B 4k,
jE:‘IZQE/\i B

117,600
252,905

25,000
8,754

Loans repaid to
Wanxiang Finance

HESRFPUTHES

BRH#

5,000 237,945

Unsecured bank loans guaranteed by,
net of release upon repayments

Wanxiang Holding

LA R 3E 75 12 R B9 R 4 49
MITER » CHRERE

fRER V1B &R

B A 12 BB

(64,500) (52,500)

Interests paid to
Wanxiang Finance
Puxing Energy

T FPUTHRERHHE

BER¥%

Y B2 NG
T2 e

514
6,272 -

Interest accrued
Wanxiang Finance
Puxing Energy

Amber International

FEst I8
BER¥%

Y B2 4k,
T2 R

3730 B B

524 -
11,331
205 —

Issuance of commercial bills
accepted by
Wanxiang Finance

BUTHESRMZET

ET $
& A 81 1%

70,000

Settlement of commercial bills that
accepted by
Wanxiang Finance

BUTHESEMZEM

HERR
BRHH

130,000

Deposits with
Wanxiang Finance

EUTHERER

ER¥%

17,500

Withdrawal of deposits with
Wanxiang Finance

EUTHERRBRER

BRH

32,500
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25 RELATED PARTY TRANSACTIONS 25 BERRZ(E)
(Continued)
(a) Significant related party transactions (a) BAREFETHEXAEFIXS
and balances with related parties RuEeR(E)
(Continued)

2016 2015
—T— R F e
RMB’000 RMB’000
NS ARETT

Interest on discounting FFUTRESZEE
commercial bills paid to EREFE

Wanxiang Finance SR % 2,581
The balances arising from the significant RZE—RFE+ZA=+—H &K
transactions between the Group and the SEEFRBEFNERRSME
above related parties as at 31 December ERE G
2016 are as follows:

2016 2015

k- Pt ol T 0
RMB’000 RMB’000
IN- LB AKETE

Amber International %30 B R
— Shareholder’s loan — BRRERK 120,367 -
— Convertible bonds — AERES - 97,923
— Dividend payable — ERRE 11,326 11,326
— Interest payable — ERFE 205 6,273
131,898 115,522

Wanxiang Finance & ) Bt 75
— Deposits — T 5,000
— Bills payable - ERNER 20,000
— Interest-bearing borrowings — FEEE —
— Interest payable — ERFE —
15,000

Puxing Energy T2 Fee
— Interest-bearing borrowings — FTEfEE 261,659 252,905
— Interest payable — ERFE 7,876 2,817
269,535 255,722
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25 RELATED PARTY TRANSACTIONS
(Continued)

(b) Key management personnel
remuneration

Remuneration for key management
personnel of the Group, including amounts
paid to the Company’s directors as
disclosed in note 8 and certain of the
highest paid employees as disclosed in note
9, is as follows:

25 BERRSZ(E)
b) TEZBEAEMSE

AEEXTEEEAEBME (BEM
M8 BN ARBIE R R
HINIRENETRSHFEEX
NHEBER)DT

2016
—E—REF

RMB’000
ARBFR

Short-term employee benefits EEEEREA
Post-employment benefits BE B3k 12 4@ )

3,619
177

3,796

Total remuneration is included in “personnel
costs” (see note 5(ii)).

& @FEFFATE T AR 5T
5(ii)) °
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26 COMPANY-LEVEL STATEMENT OF 26 A7\ E @B %A% &R
FINANCIAL POSITION
2016 2015
—¥-REF —ET-RF
Note RMB’000 RMB’000

By & AREFR AR TIT

Non-current assets ERFEE
Interests in subsidiaries B BT B A R B #E = 602,552 580,367
Current assets RENEE
Other receivables within one — F A E b & U B
year 555 511
Cash and cash equivalents BekBEEEEY 20,260 35,979
20,815 36,490
Current liabilities mENAE
Shareholder’s loan RRE R 120,367 —
Convertible bonds Al E# R E 5 - 97,923
Interest-bearing borrowings FEBE 136,659 —
Trade and other payables FE B 5 Kk HAth 58 31,885 31,002
288,911 128,925
Net current liabilities RBERFE (268,096) (92,435)

Total assets less current BEERRHERE

liabilities 334,456 487,932
Non-current liabilities EREBERE

Interest-bearing borrowings TEEE 127,905
NET ASSETS BEFE 334,456 360,027
CAPITAL AND RESERVES BEXREE 22(a)

Share capital A% 22(b) 40,149 40,149
Reserves & 1 294,307 319,878
TOTAL EQUITY LS 334,456 360,027
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28

NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

NON-ADJUSTING EVENTS AFTER THE
REPORTING PERIOD

After the reporting date, the directors proposed a
final dividend on 24 March 2017. Further details
are disclosed in note 22(d).

IMMEDIATE AND ULTIMATE
CONTROLLING PARTY

At 31 December 2016, the directors consider the
immediate and ultimate controlling party of the
Group to be Amber International and Wanxiang
Holding, respectively, which are incorporated in
the British Virgin Islands and the PRC
respectively. These entities do not produce
financial statements available for public use.

27

28

S0 755 3 7 B =t
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151 B R BT 5E22(d) °
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
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29 POSSIBLE IMPACT OF AMENDMENTS, 29 BE-—ZE—X<E+=-HA=+—H1t
NEW STANDARDS AND Er‘aﬁﬁﬁ‘ﬁtﬂ e AR A IS ET ~ #
INTERPRETATIONS ISSUED BUT NOT R EARZREN RS E

YET EFFECTIVE FOR THE YEAR ENDED
31 DECEMBER 2016

Up to the date of issue of these financial HEZSMBHREATIZEE  BHEEs
statements, the IASB has issued a number ERZEREMMEBE_T—"F+=
amendments and new standards which are not A=t—HBLEFERKERERRZE
yet effective for the year ended 31 December MR RARER 2 ZIEERT LFE]
2016 and which have not been adopted in these AR - AR EASEERESE TS
financial statements. These include the following I8 -

which may be relevant to the Group:

Effective for
accounting periods
beginning on or

after
BUTHEHSHZE
i EHRMER
Amendments to IAS 7, Statement of cash flows: Disclosure initiative 1 January 2017
B et ERE7TRANER - HenER: HEE —E—+F—H—H
Amendments to IAS 12, Income taxes: Recognition of deferred tax assets 1 January 2017
for unrealised losses
B ERIE12RIER] > IEH AR ERERECHIBEE —E—+tF—HA—H
IFRS 9, Financial instruments 1 January 2018
BRI B mE LR FE @R ITE —ZT-)\F¥—HA—H
IFRS 15, Revenue from contracts with customers 1 January 2018
BB B 7 RS 2RI SB155% - B A - )\¥—A—H
Amendments to IFRS 2, Share-based payment: Classification and 1 January 2018
measurement of share-based payment transactions
R B EERFE2HRAEE] > ARDRBERNIN - ARHBER —E-)\F—H—H
XNRHHDERGE
IFRS 16, Leases 1 January 2019
BB B s I 5 R 165 - HE —T-AF—HA—H
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29

POSSIBLE IMPACT OF AMENDMENTS,
NEW STANDARDS AND
INTERPRETATIONS ISSUED BUT NOT
YET EFFECTIVE FOR THE YEAR ENDED
31 DECEMBER 2016 (Continued)

The Group is in the process of making an
assessment of what the impact of these
amendments and new standards is expected to
be in the period of initial application. So far it has
concluded that, except as disclosed below, the
adoption of the other amendments and new
standards is unlikely to have a significant impact
on the Group’s results of operations and financial
position.

IFRS 9, Financial instruments

IFRS 9 will replace the current standard on
accounting for financial instruments, IAS 39,
Financial instruments: Recognition and
measurement. IFRS 9 introduces new
requirements for classification and measurement
of financial assets, calculation of impairment of
financial assets and hedge accounting. On the
other hand, IFRS 9 incorporates without
substantive changes the requirements of IAS 39
for recognition and derecognition of financial
instruments and the classification of financial
liabilities.

At this stage, the Group is not able to estimate
the impact of IFRS 9 on the Group’s financial
statements. The Group will make more detailed
assessments of the impact over the next twelve
months.

IFRS 9 is mandatory for financial years
commencing on or after 1 January 2018. At this
stage, the Group does not intend to adopt the
standard before its effective date.

29
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29 POSSIBLE IMPACT OF AMENDMENTS,

NEW STANDARDS AND
INTERPRETATIONS ISSUED BUT NOT
YET EFFECTIVE FOR THE YEAR ENDED
31 DECEMBER 2016 (Continued)

IFRS 15, Revenue from contracts with
customers

IFRS 15 establishes a comprehensive framework
for recognising revenue from contracts with
customers. IFRS 15 will replace the existing
revenue standards, IAS 18, Revenue, which
covers revenue arising from sale of goods and
rendering of services, and IAS 11, Construction
contracts, which specifies the accounting for
revenue from construction contracts. The Group is
currently assessing the impacts of adopting IFRS
15 on its financial statements.

At this stage, the Group is not able to estimate
the impact of IFRS 15 on the Group’s financial
statements. The Group will make more detailed
assessments of the impact over the next twelve
months.

IFRS 15 is mandatory for financial years
commencing on or after 1 January 2018. At this
stage, the Group does not intend to adopt the
standard before its effective date.
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29

POSSIBLE IMPACT OF AMENDMENTS,
NEW STANDARDS AND
INTERPRETATIONS ISSUED BUT NOT
YET EFFECTIVE FOR THE YEAR ENDED
31 DECEMBER 2016 (Continued)

IFRS 16, Leases

As disclosed in note 2(l), currently the Group
classifies leases into finance leases and operating
leases and accounts for the lease arrangements
differently, depending on the classification of the
lease. The Group enters into some leases as the
lessor and others as the lessee.

IFRS 16 is not expected to impact significantly on
the way that lessors account for their rights and
obligations under a lease. However, once IFRS 16
is adopted, lessees will no longer distinguish
between finance leases and operating leases.
Instead, subject to practical expedients, lessees
will account for all leases in a similar way to
current finance lease accounting, i.e. at the
commencement date of the lease the lessee will
recognise and measure a lease liability at the
present value of the minimum future lease
payments and will recognise a corresponding
“right-of-use” asset. After initial recognition of this
asset and liability, the lessee will recognise
interest expense accrued on the outstanding
balance of the lease liability, and the depreciation
of the right-of-use asset, instead of the current
policy of recognising rental expenses incurred
under operating leases on a systematic basis over
the lease term. As a practical expedient, the
lessee can elect not to apply this accounting
model to short-term leases (i.e. where the lease
term is 12 months or less) and to leases of low-
value assets, in which case the rental expenses
would continue to be recognised on a systematic
basis over the lease term.
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29 POSSIBLE IMPACT OF AMENDMENTS,

NEW STANDARDS AND
INTERPRETATIONS ISSUED BUT NOT
YET EFFECTIVE FOR THE YEAR ENDED
31 DECEMBER 2016 (Continued)

IFRS 16, Leases (Continued)

IFRS 16 will primarily affect the Group’s
accounting as a lessee of leases for warehouses,
lands and office premises which are currently
classified as operating leases. The application of
the new accounting model is expected to lead to
an increase in both assets and liabilities and to
impact on the timing of the expense recognition
in the statement of profit or loss over the period
of the lease. As disclosed in note 24(i), at 31
December 2016 the Group’s future minimum
lease payments under non-cancellable operating
leases amount to RMB 1,283,000, the majority of
which is payable between 1 and 5 years after the
reporting date. Some of these amounts may
therefore need to be recognised as lease
liabilities, with corresponding right-of-use assets,
once IFRS 16 is adopted. The Group will need to
perform a more detailed analysis to determine the
amounts of new assets and liabilities arising from
operating lease commitments on adoption of
IFRS 16, after taking into account the applicability
of the practical expedient and adjusting for any
leases entered into or terminated between now
and the adoption of IFRS 16 and the effects of
discounting.

IFRS 16 is mandatory for financial years
commencing on or after 1 January 2019. At this
stage, the Group does not intend to adopt the
standard before its effective date.
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